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Application Cover Sheet 

Name of Organization 
Summit County Educational Service Center 

Contact Information 

Address: 420 Washington Ave., Cuyahoga Falls 44221 

Phone: 330-945-5600 

Email: joei@cybersummit.org 

Primary Contact 

Name: Patti Maloney, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

Phone: 330-945-5600 x 513972 

Email: pattim@cvbersummit.ora 

Name and IRN of Each Currently Sponsored Conversion Community School: 

IRN # 011381 
Greater Summit County Early Learning Center (GSCELC) 
2141 Pickle Road 
Akron, Ohio 44312 
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Note:  Below are the application and additional documents as they were originally received by ODE.  As part of the
application process, sponsors have the option to provide additional information and documentation. Therefore, the
application and scores indicated below may not be final.



Section I 
Sponsor Commitment & Capacity 

1. Describe your organization's mission, strategic vision and core values. How has 
sponsoring a conversion community school supported or extended the organization's 
vision and values? Please provide any examples, such as mission statement, a strategic 
plan, board resolutions or policies; feel free to use hyperlinks to the organization's 
website. 

The Summit County Educational Service Center strives to provide educational 
leadership and opportunities to the residents of Summit and surrounding counties. 
The SCESC states in the goals for our agency to identify research based best 
practices and facilitate learning opportunities that focus on systemic thinking and 
to provide a variety of educational services that enhance the academic 
achievement and success of students. Core Values include: Collaboration, 
Commitment, Credibility, Empowerment, Integrity, Listening, Respect, 
Stewardship, and Trust. Sponsoring and oversight of our community school 
creates a quality demonstration model for all Summit County Districts to 
collaborate and advance the work of educating children in an inquiry based model. 
This is consistent with the goal stated in our strategic plan to, "Promote the 
exploration and use of innovative strategies and instructional research based best 
practices" as well as providing "support for initiatives that enhance the academic 
achievement and success of all students." 
(see attached mission and goals statements and/or reference at 
www.c'{.bersummit.org) 

2. Do you intend to open additional or assume sponsorship of existing conversion schools? 
If so, describe your organization's plan for sponsoring additional community schools. How 
many and what type of additional community schools do you plan to sponsor in the 
future? In which counties and districts will the schools be located? [This question is for 
informational purposes only; it will not be scored.] 
At this time we are not opening or assuming sponsorship of any conversion or community 
schools. 

3. Describe the level of financial resources your organization has had available for on-going 
sponsoring activities. Please provide a budget of your organization's yearly revenue and 
expenditures specific to sponsoring activities. 
The Summit County Educational Service Center {further referred to in this document as 
the ESC) has set aside $3,000.00 for the purpose of attending state sponsored 
community school trainings. Although the ESC has not attended a Nationally sponsored 
event, we do attend bi-annual meetings held at the state level. Because we only sponsor 
one Community School, we believe this is "commensurate with the scale of our 
community school profile". The Governing Board of the ESC approved a sponsorship 
agreement. Due to this commitment, projects that require time and effort for professional 
development spent by the Superintendent, Superintendent Administrative Assistant, 
Treasurer, Treasurer office staff and Human Resource Department of the ESC to support 
this school have been sanctioned by the Board of Governors. Advantage is also taken of 
the documents and ideas offered on-fine, that are of no cost to our oraanization, are used 
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to ensure our performance as a sponsor is of the highest quality. (please see financial 
information attached, including items listed in the financial statement and described in the 
sponsorship contract) 

4. Describe the frequency and the areas of professional development/trainings in which your 
staff is engaged relative to community school sponsorship. For example, do any staff 
attend national, state or ODE conferences and workshops? 
Over the last six years since Greater Summit County established monthly Building 
Leadership Team Meetings and District Leadership team meetings. It has been past 
practice that a Sponsor representative participate and attend regularly those monthly 
meetings to be informed of community school practices, convey updates on new 
requirements and also to benefit from mutual dialog through professional development. 
The sponsor supported the community schools scope of work in acquiring a Race to the 
Top grant. Sponsor representatives also participated at school meetings when Race to 
the Top consultants from ODE visited the community school. All of this type of 
participation by the sponsor extends well beyond requirements. The sponsor 
representative also attends external workshops on finance, school law, and sponsor 
updates that have been held in Columbus or Mansfield through ODE or OAPCS to receive 
timely sponsorship updates and become aware of new requirements, membership 
services, ongoing legislation and how it affects Charter School operations and help with 
tracking legislation. The sponsor also has made it a regular practice to receive and share 
important updates at monthly board meetings based on the professional development 
they have received and are relevant to supporting the success of the overall operations. 
All participation by the sponsor in Professional Development has been at the local and 
state level. No national conferences have been attended by the sponsor representative or 
any community school representatives. 

5. What policies and practices has your organization implemented to avoid potential conflicts 
of interest in working with the schools it sponsors? Please provide a copy of your conflict 
of interest policy and examples of signed conflict of interest statements, if available. 
The Summit County ESC has a number of policies that address conflicts of interest. 
These policies were designed to ensure the ESC maintains the highest quality of ethical 
standards. These policies are also attached. 

The Summit County ESC does not maintain the finances for the Greater Summit County 
Early Learning Center in the ESC financials. The Greater Summit County Early Learning 
Center has their own set of books as well as bank account and uses the USAS system of 
cash accounting The Early Learning Center initiates all of their own purchases and 
contracts with appropriate checks and balances as seen in public schools throughout the 
State of Ohio. The Early Learning Center is audited by the Auditor of State's office and is 
open to public scrutiny at any time. Audits for the Early Learning Center as well as the 
Educational Service Center can be found on-line through the Auditor of State's website. 

While the ESC may assist the leadership of the Learning Center in compliance with law, in 
no way does the ESC dictate who is hired and at what rate. This, as in all other decisions, 
is the responsibility and choice of the Board and management of the Early Learning 
Center. The ESC assists with questions from the ELG as any service center would and 
exact no influence over this separate public entity. 
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6. How do you assess your organization's performance as a sponsor? Please provide any 
examples pertaining to an annual review by the board of the strategic plan goals 
achieved; or a continuous improvement plan, if applicable; or stakeholder input about 
services provided; etc. 
The success of the community school is a true measure of the success as the sponsor. 

As the sponsor, our experience is in the public education system has given us a base line 
to establish policies and procedures that aide in the success of the community school. 
The community school director meets with the sponsor on a regular basis to dialog on 
needs and support. 

Please include an organizational chart and as requested above, a copy of the organization's 
budget and expenditures. Additional documentation could include the organization's strategic 
plan, annual report, independent audits, guidance documents, and/or relevant organizational 
policies. 
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U1 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Summit County Educational Service Center 
is committed to providing leadership and 

service in education. 
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Goal #1: LEADERSHIP 

Research, develop, and support 
educational leadership initiatives. 

• Provide leadership development activities for policy makers, district administrative 
staff, building principals, teachers, support staff and students. 

• Identify research based best practices and facilitate learning opportunities that focus on 
systemic thinking and organizational development. 

• Cultivate community partnerships and collaborations (e.g., government, universities, 
health care providers, and others). 

• Monitor and promote awareness of legislative activity and assist districts in meeting 
and/ or exceeding compliance with state and federal mandates. 
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Goal #2: ACADEMIC ISSUES 

Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in 
support of district initiatives that enhance the academic achievement 

and success of all students. 

• Deliver educational services that support an aligned system of curriculum 
development, instruction, and assessment in the context of an academic standards 
based program of studies. 

• Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in support of district 
initiatives that enhance the academic achievement and success of all students. 

• Provide consultation and technical support for districts to assist with diagnosis, 
intervention, and service needs of students. 

• Promote the exploration and use of innovative strategies and instructional research 
based best practices. 
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Goal #3: STEWARDSHIP 

Serve as responsible stewards of the human and fiscal capital 
of the organization. 

• Provide on-going internal professional development. 

• Provide a facility that promotes an efficient, effective working environment. 

• Develop a shared understanding of the importance of fiscal responsibility. 

• Facilitate inter- and intra-department collaborative initiatives. 
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STATEMENT of VALUES 

The Summit County Educational Service Center values: 

Collaboration 
Commitment 

Credibility 
Empowerment 

Integrity 
Listening 
Respect 

Stewardship 
Trust 
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Goal 1: 

Strategy: 
la. 

L 

2. 

LEADERSIDP 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Research, develop, and support educational leadership initiatives. 

Provide leadership development activities for policy makers, district administrative staff, building principals, teachers, 
support staff and students. 

What (Task): Who: When: Evaluation: 

Support superintendents, other administrators and 
teachers in identified best teaching practices: • State Support Team Current through End of the year professional development 

• Summit County Superintendents' Association meetings Region 8 (SST8) the end of20!3 and/or program-specific feedback 

• Principals' Network 
Director 

• Curriculum Directors Network • Curriculum & 

• SCESC Special Ed. Directors' Meetings 
Instruction Director 

• Superintendent 
• Regional Special Education Forum 

District Team Facilitation for planning district-wide • Early Learning School 
• 

professional development (PD) 
Readiness Coordinator 

• Jacob K. Javits Grant work 
• Praxis (training and evaluating) 

• Entry Year Teacher Program 

• Preschool Systems Model 

Support to District Leadership Teams for systemic • SST8 Director Current through Ohio Department of Education (ODE)-

change process for school improvement: • Leadership Consultant end of2013 approved Comprehensive Continuous 

• Ohio Improvement Process • SST8 Consultants Improve Plan (CCIP) 

Goal I 
n_ - ,.,.. 
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3. 

4. 

5. 

What (Task): 

Support for development of Positive School Climate • 
through social and emotional health: • 

Safe Schools Grant • a. 
b. Life Skills Grant 
c. Summit County Educational Service Center Alternative 

Education Academy (AEA) 
d. Summit County Opportunity Preschool Education Academy 

(SCOPE) 

Explore new opportunities to grow leadership skills of • 
policy makers, administrators and teachers • 

a. Survey districts for interest in leadership training 
b. Survey district interest in networking opportunities for 

leadership teams • 
c. Introduce Professional Leaming Community activities 

focused upon values in leadership to become an instructional 
leader 

d. Pursue website possibilities for leadership support for district 
policy makers (i.e., board members) 

Development of website link and updated information 

on scientifically-based research materials and best • 
practices in teaching 

• Quick-reference website available via SCESC website for 
internal and district access • 

Who: When: Evaluation: 

Leadership Consultant Current through a. & b. Final grant report approval 
SST8 Consultant end of2013 

Early Leaming School (contingent upon c . I 00% student goal accomplishment 
Readiness Coordinator available grant 

monies) d. Appropriate academic achievement 
and financial security through 
increased enrollment 

Leadership Consultant a.&b. a. & b. 60% survey completion 

Business Operations, End of each 

Special Projects and school year c. Activity identification and 

Technology Director implementation 

Curriculum & c. September, 

Instruction Director 2009 d. Evidence gathered that would 
determine the need for a leadership 

d. Fall, 2010 support website 

Business Operations, Winter, 2010 Link or web page developed 

Special Projects and 
Technology Director 
Webmaster 

Goal I 
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Goal 1: LEADERSIDP 

Summit County Educational SeITice Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Research, develop, and support educational leadership initiatives. 

Strategy: 
lb. Identify research based best practices and facilitate learning opportunities that focus on systemic thinking and 

organizational development. 

What <Task): 
. 

Who: When: Evaluation: 

l. Identify organizations who have best practices in education 
through SCESC "Think Tank" to maintain updated knowledge of • SST8 Director Spring, 20 I 0 Development of 

research-based best practices for educators • Committee created of 5-7 research-based best 
members from ESC and practices resources 

• Extend support to districts or other stakeholders to develop research SST8 personnel 
teams consisting of administrators, teachers and other sources (e.g., 
university personnel). 

Develop bank of best practices for district and other stakeholders • SST8 Director 
2. • Committee created of 5- Development of 

• Infusion of best practices from developed bank into various 7 members from ESC Spring, 20 I 0 research-based best 
networks (e.g., CD's, Spec Ed Directors, etc.), ESC consultants' and SST8 personnel practices resources 
work, etc. 

Goal I 
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Goal 1: LEADERSHIP 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Research, develop, and support educational leadership initiatives. 

Strategy: 
le. Cultivate community partnerships and collaborations (e.g., government, universities, health care providers, and 

others). 

What <Task): Who: When: Evaluation 

1. Provide opportunities for regional collaboration among various • Curriculum & Current through the end of End of the year 

providers of services to students: Instruction Director 2013 professional 

• Summit & ·Medina Counties' combined Curriculum Director's • SST8 Director development and/or 

meetings • Early Learning School program-specific 

• Regional Special Education Forums (Summit-Portage-Medina) Readiness Coordinator feedback 

• Preschool Supervisors' Regional Meetings 

2. Collaborative efforts between SCESC and area universities: Business Operations, • • On-going grant writing and implementation with University of Special Projects and Current through the end of Identified collaborative 
Akron and Kent State University Technology Director 2013 programs 

• Research Center at Kent State University Early Learning School • 
Readiness Coordinator 

• Superintendent 
3. Engage in collaborative/supportive efforts with governmental, • Student Services 

Current through end of Documentation of 

health care and other partners to provide services: Director 2013 attendance at meetings 

• P-16 Collaborative (preschool through undergraduate school) • Business Operations, 
and participation in 

• Collaboration with Akron Metropolitan Housing Authority Special Projects and 
activities 

• Domestic Preparedness Task Force Technology Director 

• Help Me Grow/Ohio Department of Health • Early Learning School 
Readiness Coordinator 

Goal 1 
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Goal 1: LEADERSHIP 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Research, develop, and support educational leadership initiatives. 

Strategy: 
ld. Monitor and promote awareness of legislative activity and assist districts in meeting and/or exceeding compliance with state 

·and federal mandates. 

What (Task): Who: When: Evaluation 

I. Provide legislative updates for varied leadership groups: • Superintendent Current through end of End of the year 

• Principals' Meetings • Student Services 2013 professional 

• Special Education Forum Director development and/or 

• Curriculum Directors' Network • Gifted Coordinator program-specific 

• Summit County Superintendents' Association meetings • Curriculum & feedback 

Instruction Director 

2. Enhance communication on legislative issues among internal as Spbcific communication 

well as district personnel and other stakeholders: • Leadership Consultant September, 2009 sent each school year 
and information posted 

• Explore options for sharing current legislative information to on web page 
internal staff 

3. Develop tools for legislative communication: • Business Operations, 
Special Projects and September, 2009; updates Link, web page and/or 

• Website information and links Technology Director through 2013 other media developed 

• Brochures and other print mediums • Webmaster 

Goal 1 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Goal 2: ACADEMIC ISSUES 
Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in support of district initiatives that enhance the academic 
achievement and success of all students. 

Strategy: 
2a. Deliver educational services that support an aligned system of curriculum development, instruction, and assessment in the 

context of an academic standards based program of studies. 

What Task: Who: When: Evaluation: 
!. Continue to facilitate the following: • Content consultants Current through end of Professional development formal 

• Development of courses of study 2013 feedback 

• Development of pacing guides 

• Development of common formative and summative 1 
assess1nents 

• Development of specific lesson design 

• Development of model lessons . 

2. Continue to assist districts with textbook and related I · Content consultants I Current through end of I Adoption by district boards of 
2013 education 

resource selection. 

3. Continue to present/facilitate workshops related to • Content consultants Current through end of Professional development 

formative assessment. 2013 specific feedback 

4. Lead district personnel in the implementation of the • Curriculum & Instruction Current through end of District implementation of goals, 

Ohio Improvement Process (OIP) and the Decision Director and selected consultants 2013 strategies, and actions steps 

Framework (DF). 

5. Continue to provide professional development related • Content consultants Current through end of Professional development 

to reading and writing across the curriculum. 2013 specific feedback 

Goal 2 
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6. 

7. 

What ITask): 
Provide professional development related to integrated 
lesson design, including that appropriate for self-
contained grade-level classrooms. 

Provide professional development focused on 
developing student communication of ideas through 
writing . 

Who: When: Evaluation: 
• Content consultants Current through end of Professional development 

2013 specific feedback 

Current through end of 

• Content consultants 2013 Professional developn1ent 
specific feedback 

Goal 2 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Goal 2: ACADEMIC ISSUES 
Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in support of district initiatives that enhance the academic 
achievement and success of all students. 

Strategy: 
2b. Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in support of district initiatives that enhance the academic 

achievement and success of all students. 

What (Task): Who: When: Evaluation: 
1. Continue to provide Ohio Achievement and Ohio • Content consultants and Current through end of 2013 Final product in district hands 

Graduation Test Data Item Analysis for districts. technology personnel (via district curriculum directors) 

2. Continue to in-service districts using test data to 
Professional development 

• Content consultants Current through end.of2013 specific feedback 
examine content area strengths and weaknesses. 

3. Continue to assist districts in the collection and • Content consultants and Professional development 

analysis of multiple years of test data for the purpose technology personnel Current through end of 2013 specific feedback 

of finding trends. 
Observed use of data in the 

4. Facilitate the analysis of both pre-populated and other • Selected SCESC staff Current through end of2013 development of district goals 

data types in connection with the OIP and DF. 

5. Continue to help facilitate the process of district 
Delivery of product to the 

Content consultants Current through end of2013 district 
creation of their assessments and the placing of them • 

m a format suitable for scanning and use m 
conjunction with item analysis. 

Goal 2 



I-' 
00 

What (Task): 

6. Continue to assist districts with analysis of Value-
Added data. 

7. Assist districts in the use of data sites and tools such 
as Success, Measure-Up and Data Driven Decisions 
for Academic Achievement (D3A2) to build capacity 
in the implementation of data-based decision-making. 

8. Assist, support and offer consultation services for 
districts which have expressed interest m the 
implementation of Mandarin Chinese m their 
curriculum. 

Who: When: Evaluation: 
Professional develop1nent 

• Curriculum and instruction Current through end of2013 specific feedback 
Director 

Professional development 
• Selected SCESC staff Current through end of 2013 specific feedback 

District implementation of 

• Business Operation, Winter, 2009 through end of Mandarin Chinese 
Special Projects and 2013 
Technology Director 

• Curriculum & Instruction 
Director 

Goal 2 
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Goal 2: ACADEMIC ISSUES 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in support of district initiatives that enhance the academic achievement and 
success of all students. 

Strategy: 
2c . Provide consultation and technical support for districts to assist with diagnosis, intervention, and service needs of students. 

What ff ask): Who: When: Evaluation: 

1. Continue working'with district level administrators to implement • Preschool Coordinator Winter, 2009 through Implementation of Assessment 

an Early Childhood systems modeJ that promotes program • Early Leaming School the end of20!3 Evaluation Programming 

improvement and sustainability 
Readiness Coordinator System Curriculum(AEPS) 

• Autism Behavior 
• Preschool Advisory Council Leadership Team Consultant 
• Preschool Advisory Council 

2. Develop and implement programs that affect all students' 
performance and achievement • Special Education Current through the End of the year professional 

• Support to district Speech Language Pathologists Supervisor end of2013 development and/or progrrun 

• DIBELS (Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills) 
specific feedback 

training for teachers to assist with literacy progress monitoring • Speech Language 

• Behavior Consultant that supports curriculum for the early Supervisor 

childhood classrooms 

• Specialized classrooms for students with intensive behavior • SST 8 consultants 
challenges 

Goal 2 
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3. 

4. 

What l1 ask): 

• Alternative Assessment training for special education teachers to 
co1nplete state requirements for students not taking the state exams 

• lntervention support in all academic areas 

• Literacy program for early intervention classroom 

• Response to Intervention (RTI) 

• Operating Standards training 

• Assistive Technology technical support for districts 

Continue collaborative initiatives 
a. Monthly superintendents meetings 
b. Summit County quarterly Special Education Director"s Network 

ineetings 
c. Student Services department meetings 
d. Special Education Director's secretary meetings 
e. Comm~nity a~encies: Head Start, Akron Metropolitan Housing 

Auth_onty, Oh10 Centerfor Autism and Low Incidence (OCALI), 
Medina County Educattonal Service Center, Ashland University', 
Kent State University 

f. Alternative Education Academy 

Replicate SCOPE (Summit County Opportunity Preschool 
Education) Academy 

Who: When: Evaluation: 

• su.perintendent 

• Student Services Current through the a. - e. Attendance at meetings 

Director end of2013 and participation at 

• SST 8 Director meetings 

• Secretary to the 
Student Services 
Director a. - f. End of the year 

• SST 8 Consultants professional 
development and/or 
program specific 
feedback 

• Superintendent 

• Student Services Fall 2010 Implementation at an 

Director additional site and/or addition 

• Early Learning School of classrooms 

R~adiness Coordinator 

• SST& Consultants 

Goal 2 
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Goal 2: ACADEMIC ISSUES 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Provide a variety of educational services and technical assistance in support of district initiatives that enhance the academic 
achievement and success of all students. 

Strategy: 
2d. Promote the exploration and use of innovative strategies and instructional research based best practices. 

What (Task): Who: When: Evaluation: 

l. Develop and implement initiatives for students with disabilities • Student Services Current through end of · End of the year professional 

• Ziggurat project with Ohio Center for Autism and Low Incidence Director 2013 development and/or program 

(OCALI) • Early Learning specific feedback 

• TEACCH (Ireatment and &ducation of ,Autistic and related .Communication School Readiness 
Handicapped Qhildren and Adults) Coordinator 

• ·Assessment Evaluation Programming System curriculum for preschool • Kent State University 
program (AEPS) • Business Operations, 

• Peer mediation for students Special Projects, and 

• Universal Design for Leaming for preschool and district grade level Technology Director 

teams • Work Study 

• Alternative Education Academy (AEA) for high school students Coordinator 

• Transition professional development, support and consultation for 
administrators and educators to assist students with disabilities ages 14 
and older 

2. Develop and implement initiatives to further develop district 
personnel 

Content Consultants Current through end of End of the year professional 
• Para Pro Assessment study sessions • 

2013 development and/or program 
• Assistive Techno!o~' orofessional development, sunnort, and • SST 8 Consultants 

Goal 2 
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consultation for districts 

• Alternate assessment support and professional development for educators 

• Related service consultation, evaluation and support of district personnel 

• Literacy coaches within the districts 

• Marzano' s training 
• Pathwise training 

• Curriculum Based Measurement (CBM) training for professionals 

• Child Abuse Prevention training for our region as required by HB276 

Develop and implement technological support 
• Interactive Video Distance Learning (IVDL) capabilities and the use of 

interactive whiteboard and internet technologies in high quality 
professional development as a model to educators. 

• Special Education specific feedback 
Supervisor 

• Speech/Language 
Supervisor 

• SSTS Consultants 
Early Learning Current through end of Number of distance learning • 
School Readiness 2013 sessions 

Consultant 

• Special Education Attainment of75% of staff· 

Supervisor being trained on use of 
whiteboard 

Goal 2 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Goal 3: STEWARDSHIP 
Serve as responsible stewards of the human and fiscal capital of the organization. 

Strategy: 
3a. Provide on-going internal professional development. 

What (Task): Who: 

I. Identify staff training needs and wants • Human 

• Survey all staff members - what they want and need Resources 

• Survey supervisors - what do they think staff members want and need Coordinator 

• Treasurer 

• Directors 

2. Develop and implement processes and procedures for developing, 
scheduling, tracking and assessing training activities • Human 

Resources 
Coordinator 

• Treasurer 

• others as 
identified by 
survey results 

3. Evaluate if commercially available training opportunities qualify as 
Administrative • appropriate professional development activities in meeting this Team 

goal 

4. Determine methods of publicizing and communicating professional • Administrative 

development programs and activities Assistant to the 
Superintendent 

• Webmaster 

• other selected 
personnel 

When: 

June, 2009 

September, 2009 

September, 2009 

August, 2009 
through the end of 
2013 

Evaluation: 

100% of staff members surveyed 
return cOmpleted surveys 

Processes and procedures developed 
and communicated to Administrative 
Team 

Conversations complete and decision 
documented 

Plan in place for 
publicizing/communicating 

Goal 3 
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5. 

6. 

7. 

What (Task): 

Develop, implement, and evaluate professional development in the • 
following areas: 

• Overall budgeting and financial processes 

• Explanation of tax deferred accounts • 
• Accurate and thorough completion of forms relating to fiscal operations • 
• Operating equipment and technology related to presentations and 

workshops 

• Building safety and security issues 

• Payroll processing and related issues • • Purchase order and billing procedures and bill collection 

• Use of office technologies including computers, telephones, copy 
machines and other office equipment. 

• Updates on computer software - basics and advanced 

• Basics of the budget of the organization 

Establish and communicate expectations regarding participation in • 
professional development 

Determine if an incentive or reward system is appropriate and/or • 
necessary for participation in professional development 

Who: When: Evaluation: 

Human August, 2009, Plan for 2009-2010 in place with 
Resources through the end of dates, topics, presenters; annual plans 
Coordinator 2013 to be developed for subsequent years. 
Treasurer 
Business 
Operations, 
Special Projects 
and Technology 
Director 
other selected 
personnel 

Administrative 
Team September, 2009 Expectations documented as agreed 

on by Administrative Teain; 
co1nmunicated via email, Insider, 

Administrative department meetings 

T earn with input 
September, 2009 Decision docu1nented by from Board of 

Governors Administrative Team and 
communicated (with Board of 
Governors ::innroval if needed) 

Goal 3 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Actiou Plan: 2008-2013 

Goal 3: STEWARDSHIP 
Serve as responsible stewards of the human and fiscal capital of the organization. 

Strategy: 
3b. Provide a facility that promotes an efficient, effective working environment. 

What £Task):, Who: When: 

I. Develop, communicate and implement fiscal and organizational • Business a. - d. Fall, 2009 

procedures for the following activities: Operations, 

a. Use of resources, supplies and materials for all professional Special Projects 

development activities and programs and Technology 

b. Pre-workshop room set-up, post-workshop room clean-up and access Dlrector 

to and use of technology and equipment • Treasurer 

c. Building and grounds safety and security • Administrative 

d. Environmental guidelines, including but not limited to: Team e. January, 20 I 0 

opening/closing windows, heat and cooling settings, and recycling • Other selected 

e. Work order process for requesting maintenance and repairs personnel 

2. Identify and implement environmental improvements to include, 
but not limited to, the following: • Business 

Operations, a. & b. January, 2010 
a. LCD (liquid crystal display) boatd for on-going updates, Special Projects 

announcements, news 
b. Preparation area from which to set-up and serve food, beverages, and 

and Technology 

other activities related to workshops 
Director 

• Treasurer 
c. Increase the number and visibility of interior signage to guide/direct c. Match, 20 I 0 

visitors to workshops and other locations in the building • Other selected 
personnel 

3. Enhance the communication we offer visitors to the building, 
Curriculum & 

prior to coming and after they arrive, to include: • September, 2009 
Instruction . Directions that cover where to park, which entrance to use, and in Director 

which room their meeting or workshop is located • Other selected 
personnel 

Evaluation: 

a. - d. Procedures documented and 
conununicated via staff 
meetings (by January, 2010), 
department meetings, other 
methods as determined 

e. Procedures written, 
communicated and process 
implemented 

a. Installed and operational 

b. Room completed 

c. Signs in place 

When asked, 80% of visitors will 
report satisfaction with the 
directions they received and ease of 
finding their way in the building 

Goal 3 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Goal3: STEWARDSIDP 
Serve as responsible stewards of the human and fiscal capital of the organization. 

Strategy: 
3c. Develop ·a shared understanding of the importance of fiscal responsibility. 

What (Task): Who: When: 

I. Create procedures to target the elimination of wasting the • Business Operations, January. 2010 

organization's resources, including electricity, paper, Special Projects and through the end of 

supplies, etc. Technology Director 2013 
• Treasurer 

• Other selected personnel 

2. Describe and communicate to staff members the significance • Cuniculum & Instruction 

and fiscal value of the services provided. Director January, 2011 

• Student Services Director 

• Business Operations, 
Special Projects and 
Technology Director 

• SST8 Director 
• Treasurer 

3. Focus on sharing with staff members the big picture - internal 
Administrative Team 

Starting Fall 2009 
and external factors ·- that impact the fiscal and financial • and three times· 

resources of the organization annually thereafter 

4. Consider fiscal concerns and realities when detennining how • Treasurer May, 2009 through 
much to charge for the services provided by the ESC the end of 2013 

Evaluation: 

Procedures in place and 
com1nunicated. 

Sign in sheet from mandatory 
attendance. 

"State of the ESC" reports shared 
via appropriate communication 
methods 

Once per month at Administrative 
Team meeting, fees for services 
will be discussed; annually in 
April communicated to districts. 

Goal 3 



N __, 

5. 

6. 

7. 

What (1 ask): 

Investigate the cost m the private sector for services • 
comparable to those provided by the ESC • 

Communicate conflict of interest policies clearly to all ESC • 
employees 

Share key ESC budget information with staff • 

Who: When: Evaluation: 

Treasurer Survey completed and reported to 
Other selected personnel January. 2012 Administrative Team 

Human Resources September, 2009, Email, payroll stuffer, and/or 

Coordinator through the end of newsletter communication, 
2013 Webinar. other appropriate 

communication methods 

Treasurer January, 2011 Quarterly "'Treasurer's Notes" 
through the end of section in the Insider; presentation 
2013 at Welcome Back staff meetings 

. 

Goal 3 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Action Plan: 2008-2013 

Goal 3: STEWARDSHIP 
Serve as responsible stewards of the human and fiscal capital of the organization. 

Strategy: 
3d. Facilitate inter- and intra-department collaborative initiatives. 

What !Task): Who: 

I. Create a job-shadowing program within the ESC • Human Resources 
Coordinator 

• Other selected personnel 

2. Identify opportunities for cross-training between and among • Directors 
positions and implement a program for cross-training 
opportunities 

3. Design professional development programs that include • Human Resources 
participants who represent various departments and positions Coordinator 

4. Look for and expand on existing initiatives and create new 
Administrative Team • opportunities that foster cross-department cooperation and 

collaboration 

When: 

Fall, 2010 through 
the end of 2013 

Fall, 2010 through 
the end of2013 

Fall, 2009, through 
the end of2013 

January, 2011 
through the end of 
2013 

Evaluation: 

Three individuals per quarter 
involved in job shadowing 
experiences 

Plan and schedule developed, 
process implemented 

Where· and when appropriate, sign-
in sheets will reflect crbss 
department participation in 
workshops, professional 
development 

Regular monthly agenda item at 
Administrative Team meeting 

Goal 3 
Page 6 of6 
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~ervice(:e_n_te_r~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

December 30, 2014 

420 Washington Ave. 
Suite 200 
Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio 44221 
Phone 330-945-5600 
FAX 330-945-6222 

To the Citizens. and Board of Governors of the Summit County Educational Service Center: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Summit County Educational Service 
Center (the "Service Center") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 is hereby submitted. This 
report, prepared by the Chief Fiscal Officer, includes basic financial statements, supplemental 
statements, and other financial and statistical information to provide a complete and full 

·disclosure of all material financial aspects of the Service Center for the 2013-2014 fiscal year 
end. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of data presented and the completeness/fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Service Center. To the 
best of our knowledge and belief, the CAFR and the enclosed data are accurate in all material 
respects and are reported in a mauner designed to present fairly the financial position and results 
of operations of the various funds of the Service Center. 

This CAFR, which includes an opinion from the Auditor of State of Ohio, conforms with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as set forth by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and is representative of the Service Center's 
commitment to provide meaningful information to its' stakeholders. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The Service Center's MD&A can be found immediately following the 
Independent Auditor's Report. 

BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

History 

In 1914, the Ohio Legislature created county boards of education to oversee the predominantly 
rural schools outside the cities and larger villages. From their inception, these county offices 
have performed many of the functions associated with the central office of a large city school 
system. For example, they provide supervision, psychological services, and prescribed courses of 
study. In 1995, the Ohio General Assembly adopted Am. Sub. H.B. 117, which altered the 
structure of county offices of education. Effective July 1, 1995 county offices of education would 
be known as "Educational Service Centers" governed by a Board of Governors and not a school 
board. 
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In Summit County, as the local districts grew larger and more capable of independent operation, 
the emphasis of the County Office gradually expanded to provide additional cooperative services 
which were too expensive for a single district to provide economically. Today, the Summit 
County Educational Service Center concentrates on four main areas of services: 1) curriculum 
and instructional technology; 2) pupil personnel; 3) support/supplementary services; and 4) 
administration. Experience has proven that service center organizations can provide advantages 
of economy of scale without the disadvantages of bureaucracy. 

Since the early 1990's, the Service Center has been able to contract with city school districts to 
provide services to non-local districts. This permits the city districts to have access to services 
that they currently cannot afford to provide, and until now, may not have been able to purchase at 
an affordable cost. 

Districts Served 

The Summit County Educational Service Center serves a student population of approximately 
49,574 in sixteen districts. The districts served are: 

Barberton City 
Copley-Fairlawn City 
Coventry Local 
Cuyahoga Falls City 
Green Local 
Hudson City 
Manchester Local 
Mogadore Local 

Nordonia Hills City 
Norton City 
Revere Local 
Springfield Locai 
Stow-Mumoe Falls City 
Tallmadge City 
Twinsburg City 
Woodridge Local 

These districts still maintain their local autonomy in smaller, more manageable, districts with 
emollments ranging from 912 to 5,080 students. Each of the districts has a locally elected board 
of education consisting of five members, a local superintendent and a treasurer. 

The Service Center also provides selected contractual services to districts outside of Summit 
County. These school districts affiliate on an armual basis, by contract, for a broad spectrum of 
educational services available through the Service Center. 

Organization 

The Board of Governors (the "Board") has five members elected by the voters of the seven local 
districts. The members must be residents and registered voters of one of the seven local districts. 
The term of office for each member is four years. Non-partisan elections are held biannually in 
November with two members being elected in one cycle and three in the following cycle. 
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The Board sets policies and enters into contracts and may serve in a judicial capacity to resolve 
disputes involving the organization. The Board did not have any financial policies that had a 
significant impact on the current period financial statements. The Board appoints the 
Superintendent and the Chief Fiscal Officer. All other staff members are recommended by the 
administration to the Board for approval. The Board meets monthly to conduct business. 

The Superintendent is the Chief Executive Officer of the Service Center and is responsible 
directly to the Board for all operations. The current Superintendent is Linda Fuline who has 
served in this position since August 2006. Her current contract extends until July 31, 2015. 

The Chief Fiscal Officer of the Service Center is responsible directly to the Board for all financial 
operations and serves as Secretary to the Board. The current Chief Fiscal Officer is Sondra 
Clevenger who has served in this position since July 2000. Her current contract extends to July 
31,2018. 

SERVICES 

Curriculum and Instruction 

The Curriculum and Instruction Service Team plays a major role in maintaining and improving 
the quality of education in Summit County school districts. The department's staff works with 
teachers, principals and various instructional support staff primarily through consultation and 
professional development. The main emphasis with teachers is the improvement of classroom 
instruction. The delivery vehicles include consultation, conferences and workshops. The tools 
for the delivery of said services include, but are not limited to, demonstrations of innovative 
pedagogy and related instructional topics, on-site consultation and embedded support, assistance 
in textbook selection, course of study development, implementation of state academic content 
standards, and item analysis related to the state-level achievement tests. Staff members also 
provide a range of professional development opportunities for principals. Support for principals 
focuses on leadership development, especially as it relates to classroom instruction and student 
achievement. Many of the. same delivery "vehicles" and "tools" used with teachers are also 
employed with principals. Training for instructional support staff tends to align with the 
expectations and standards expressed in the requirements for highly-qualified school personnel. 
The staff development opportunities provided by the Curriculum and Instruction Service Team 
are among the most comprehensive and highly-regarded in the State . 

. Ohio law requires school districts to maintain a Comprehensive Continuous Improvement Plan 
(CCIP). In recent years, the CCJP has become aligned with the Ohio Improvement Process 
(OJP). This process entails a rigorous, systematic, data-driven approach to school improvement. 
The Curriculum and Instruction Service Team offers services and support to districts as they work 
through all four phases of this process. Service Team members facilitate both district and 
building leadership team meetings, as well as assist the districts in analyzing their student 
achievement and related data and developing, implementing, monitoring and evaluating their 
focused improvement plans. Additionally, Service Team consultants stand ready to provide the 
professional development needed and requested by the districts to actualize their plans. 

37 



Beginning fiscal year 2009, the Curriculum and Instruction department worked on a number of 
projects which would be considered outside their traditional or regular work. Many of these 
involve significant grant opportunities accomplished in collaboration with other educational and 
educationally-related entities. In conjunction with the University of Akron, the Teaching 
American History Grant is completing the end of a multi-year initiative sponsored by the Federal 
Government and provides the opportunity for teachers to expand their content knowledge and 
collaborate on the construction of new innovative lessons for their students. The Ohio · 
Performance Assessment Grant focuses on science and serves to enrich participant expertise in 
the development of more targeted and meaningful assessment practices. The Alternative 
Education Academy (AEA) was developed in 2008 to provide a "safety net" for students in 
Summit County schools who experienced difficulty functioning in the traditional school setting. 
The AEA features on-line courses. This alternative educational opportunity has the capacity to 
house up to 15 students. Credit Recovery for students is also offered through this program. 
Curriculum and Instruction Service Team members have played pivotal roles in the creation, 
implementation and sustaining of these initiatives. Due to declining enrollment, however, this 
was the last year for the program. Declining enrollment is likely due to the increase in online 
schools and courses. 

Pupil Personnel 

The Service Center provides services to school districts to assist in their delivery of services to 
students with disabilities and at-risk populations. Services provided directly to students and 
families are: Attendance/Truancy, Psychological Testing and Individual Education Plans, Speech 
& Language Therapy, and audiology. 

Specialized staffing and other programs are available to school districts to assist them in 
providing the necessary support for special populations. These include Students with Disabilities 
Supervision, Speech and Language Supervision, and Work/Study Coordination. Specifically, in 
2014 the work-study program assisted 115 students in 8 school districts, had 157 employer 
contacts to place 37 students, arranged 22 volunteer/unpaid work experiences, hosted 5 
transitional resource group meetings and opened 52 new student files. School Psychologists 
served 1,200 students and had 434 parent meetings. Workshops and trainings provided by this 
department include: Paraprofessional trainings and study sessions, six sessions on Child and 
Family Awareness workshops and finally several end of year trainings on the new ODE 
Individualized Education Program forms and Evaluation Team Report. 

The Summit County Preschool provides an integrated, comprehensive preschool program for all 
students, age three to five, with disabilities or at-risk concerns. In addition to classroom teaching, 
some of the related services provided are occupational therapy, physical therapy, speech therapy, 
nursing and nutrition. Participating districts contract for this program. The preschool program, in 
fiscal year 2014 included 28 classrooms across Summit County that served 505 students. Half of 
those students received cognitive, behavioral and speech assessments. The preschool program 
employs 28 classroom teachers, 30 classroom assistants, 18 speech/language pathologists, 3 
psychologists and 2 school nurses. 
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Also, the Service Center is the Summit County Opportunity Preschool Education Academy 
(S.C.O.P.E.). This program is intended to be a model for all preschools. This innovative 
approach to early childhood education requires high expectations for excellence in academics, 
21" century skills, global awareness, foreign language, athletics and the arts permeate throughout 
the culture of the building. There is a sense of pride and respect for themselves and each other. 
Children are neither bored nor frustrated. Students who are having difficulty with a particular 
concept are being assisted by students who have mastered it. A sophisticated computer network 
is available to reinforce classroom instruction, to provide additional visual and audio 
demonstrations that cannot be provided in the school and to encourage the interaction with others 
from all over the world. The children are participating in the learning process. They understand 
today's world requires continuous learning to achieve professional and personal satisfaction. The 
children have an appreciation of the world around them and understand the importance of giving 
back to the community to enhance its growth. During the time they are in our care, they are safe, 
intellectually stimulated and aware that education is the key not only to their future but the future 
of society as a whole. We are very pleased with this program and believe it will be a model for 
future preschool curriculum. 

Support/Supplementary 

In order to serve their student populations, school districts must provide a complex network of 
services. Some of these services are more efficiently and cost effectively provided by a service 
agency such as the Service Center. To that end, the Service Center provides an array of services 
that some or all districts use. These include: a courier to and from all district central offices; 
license checks and safety records; substitute teacher screening; teacher certification; employee 
background screening and fingerprinting for local districts. 

Administration 

Of great benefit to the school districts, is the Service Center's cooperative and regional approach. 
Through this approach, the Service Center has the capacity to facilitate and manage projects in a 
manner that would not be otherwise possible. Some of the other vital benefits are the Service 
Center's ability to: 1) serve as a neutral convener; 2) provide consortium/partnerships formation 
and facilitation; 3) provide fiscal agency for grants, projects, and other agencies (State Support 
Team for Region Eight) and 4) provide legislative workshops. 

The Service Center is committed to leadership development in the changing world of public 
education. To this end, the Service Center provides leadership academy opportunities to teachers, 
aspiring principals, principals, school building teams, treasurers, superintendents, and aspiring 
superintendents. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The Service Center's financial condition is dependent upon the collective financial condition of 
the districts served, and their ability to contract for the Service Center's services. The districts 
served are mainly within Summit County, Ohio. 
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Legislation has passed regarding management of regional services offered by the Ohio 
Department of Education. House Bill 115 established the Educational Regional Service System 
(ERSS). This system requires a coordinated, integrated and aligned system to support state and 
school district efforts to improve school effectiveness and student achievement. The system 
consists of 16 regions. Each region has a fiscal agent. The selection of a fiscal agent was done 
through a RFP (request for proposal) process. Selected Fiscal Agents in each region have the 
responsibility of allocating resources to provide regional services and also assuring that the state­
sponsored regional improvement initiatives are deployed according to Ohio Department of 
Education guidance. The Summit County Educational Service Center is the fiscal agent for State 
Support Team Region 8 which includes Portage, Medina and Summit Counties. 

Summit County has been historically associated with the rubber industry. Although the rubber 
industry is stilJ extremely important to the economy in Summit County, the Goodyear Tire and 
Rubber Company has been replaced as the largest employer in Summit County. It should not 
come as a surprise that the largest employer in our county is associated with the healthcare 
industry. Summa Health Systems is now the largest employer in Summit County with 11,000 
employees. FirstMerit Corp. is in second place with 4,894 employees, finally followed by 
Akron General Health System with 3,843 employees. Akron Children's Hospital is in fourth 
place with 3,220 employees. Goodyear Tire and Rubber takes fifth place with 3,000 employees. 
The County of Summit is sixth with a total number of2,969 employees. Akron Public Schools is 
the seventh largest employer with 2,827 employees, the University of Akron is eighth place with 
2,622. Rounding out the top ten employers are FirstEnergy Corp. and Sterling Jewelers with 
2,500 and 2,300 employees respectively. 

Also, a recent study ranked Ohio number one in plastics and polymers. The greater Akron area is 
home to the largest number of polymer companies in Ohio. 

The County is the corporate headquarters for four corporations with annual sales or revenue of 
more than one bilJion dollars each. These are FirstEnergy Corp., the Goodyear Tire and Rubber 
Company, A. Schulman, Inc., and Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. 

Recent history shows Summit County has fared favorably in unemployment rates compared to 
National and State rates. The county imemployment rate in 2013 was at 7 .1 %. This percentage 
is up from 2012 rate that was 6.8%. As a comparison, the 2012 state rate was 7.2% and the 2013 
rate for the state was 7.4%. In both of these years, the State rate of unemployment was higher 
than the County rate of unemployment. This means, although improved, the bad economy for 
these past two years has hit Ohio and Summit County hard. The workforce is transitioning from 
manufacturing to service industries. In Akron, the largest segment of employment has shifted 
from manufacturing followed by trade to medical, information and service employers. 
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Accounting 

This is the thirteenth year the Service Center has prepared financial statements following GASB 
Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -
State and Local Governments. GASB Statement No. 34 creates basic financial statements for 
reporting on the Service Center's financial activities as follows: 

Government-wide financial statements - These statements are prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting, which is similar to the basis of accounting followed by businesses. The 
government-wide statements distinguish between those activities of the Service Center that are 
governmental and those that are considered business type activities. 

Fund financial statements - These statements present information for individual major 
funds rather than by fund type. Non-major funds are presented in total in one column. 
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and include reconciliation to 
the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis 
of accounting. 

As determined by criteria established by GASB Statement No. 34, the Service Center does not 
report any activities that qualify as proprietary or business type activities. As part of this 
repo1ting model, management is also responsible for preparing a discussion and analysis of the 
Service Center. This discussion follows the Independent Auditor's Report, providing an 
assessment of the Service Center's finances for fiscal year 2014 and the outlook for the future. 
Because that discussion focuses on major funds, the financial highlights provided in this letter 
focus on certain non-major funds of the Service Center. 

Internal Controls 

The management of the Service Center is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal 
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Service Center are protected from loss, 
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure is 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The 
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the 
benefits likely to be derived from its implementation; and (2) the valuation of cost and benefits 
requires estimates and judgments by management. 
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Single Audit Act 

As a recipient of federal financial assistance, the Service Center is responsible for ensuring that 
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic 
evaluation by management of the Service Center and annual reviews by the Service Center's 

. independent auditors. Based upon the level of federal spending for fiscal year 2014, a single 
audit was required. 

Budgetary Controls 

Although not legally required, the Service Center adopts it budget for all funds. The budget is not 
required to be filed with the county budget connnission. The budget includes the estimated 
resources and expenditures for each fund. 

In fiscal year 2014, The Service Center's requirement to file budgetary information with the Ohio 
Department of Education was eliminated. Even though the budgetary process for the Service 
Center is discretionary, the Service Center continued to have its Governing Board approve 
appropriations and estimated resources. The Service Center's Governing Board adopts an annual 
appropriation resolution, which is the Governing Board's authorization to spend resources and 
sets annual limits on expenditures plus encumbrances at the level of control selected by the 
Governing Board. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit 

Provisions of State statute require the Service Center's financial statements to be subjected to bi­
annual examination, annually if subject to the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 
related OMB Circular A-133, by the Auditor of State. The Auditor of the State of Ohio 
performed the audit for the period ended June 30, 2014. The auditor's uurnodified opinion 
rendered on the Service Center's basic financial statements, and their report on the combining 
statements, is included in the financial section of this CAFR. 

GFOA Certitlcate o[Achievement 

The Government Finance Officers' Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting (CAFR) to the 
Service Center for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 CAFR. The Certificate of Achievement is 
a prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the highest standards for the 
preparation of state and local goverurnent financial n'ports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a goverurnent unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the contents of 
which conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current 
report will conform to the high standards required by the Certificate of Achievement program. 
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Summit County Educational. Service Center 
Summit County · 
Independent Auditor's Report 
Page 3 

Other Reporting· Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 
2014, on our consideration of the Service Center's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws,· regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. That report describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial reporting and 
compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Service Center's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Dave Yost 
Auditor of State 
Columbus, Ohio 

December 30, 2014 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

(Unaudited) 

The discussion and analysis of the Summit County Educational Service Center's (the "Service Center") 
financial performance provides an overall review of the Service Center's financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Service Center's 
performance as a whole; readers should also review the transmittal letter, the notes to the basic financial 
statements and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the Service Centers financial 
performance. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for 2014 are as follows: 

• Net position increased $428,109, which represents a 5.86% increase from 2013. 

• During the year, outstanding capital leases decreased from $896,103 to $821,119 due to principal 
payments made by the Service Center. 

Using this A11nual Report 

This annual repo1t consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those· statements. The 
statements are organized so the reader can understand the Service Center as a whole entire operating 
entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial 
activities. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the 
whole Service Center, presenting both an aggregate view of the Service Center's finances and a longer­
term view of those finances. Fund financial .statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental 
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for 
future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the Service Center's most significant funds 
with all other nonmajor funds presented in total in one column. In the case of the Service Center, the 
general fund and the educational regional service system fund are the most significant funds. 

Reporting the Service Center as a Whole 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

While the basic financial statements contain the large number of funds used by the Service Center to 
provide programs and activities, the view of the Service Center as a whole looks at all financial 
transactions and asks the question, "How did we do financially during fiscal year 2014 ?" The Statement 
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities answer this question. These statements include all assets, 
deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the 
current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
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(Unaudited) 

These two statements report the Service Center's net position and changes in het position. This change in 
net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the Service Center as a whole, the financial 
position of the Service Center has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of 
many factors, some financial, some not. Non-financial factors include the mandated educational 
programs, as well as locally requested programs. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, Governmental Activities include the 
Service Center's programs and services, including instruction, support services, extracurricular activities, 
and interest and fiscal charges. 

Reporting the Service Center's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The major funds financial statements begin on page 14. Fund financial reports provide detailed 
information about the Service Center's major funds. The Service Center uses many funds to account for a 
multitude of financial transactions; however, these fund financial statements focus on the Service Center's 
most significant funds. The Service Center's major governmental funds are the general fund and 
educational regional service system fund. 

Governmental Funds 

Most of the Service Center's activities are reported in govenunental funds, which focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in future 
periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund 
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Service Center's general government operations and 
the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are 
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. 
The relationship (or differences) between govermnental activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements. 

Reporting the Service Center's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The Service Center is the trustee, or fiduciary, for some of its scholarship and foundation programs, This 
activity is presented as a private purpose trust fund. The Service Center also acts in a trustee capacity as 
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other govermnental units and/or other funds, These 
activities are reported in agency funds. The Service Center's fiduciary activities are reported in separate 
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 18 and 19. These 
activities are excluded from the Service Center's other financial statements because the assets cannot be 
utilized by the Service Center to finance its operations. 
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(Unaudited) 

The Service Center as a Whole 

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the Service Center as a whole. Table 
1 provides a summary of the Service Center's net position for 2014 compared to 2013: 

Table 1 
Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

2014 2013 {Restated) 
Assets 
Current and Other Assets $ 8,762,248 $ 8,422,945 
Capital Assets 1,846 990 1 896 401 
Total Assets 10,609,238 10,319,346 

Liabilities 

Other Liabilities 1,946,564 1,932,072 
Long-Term Liabilities 933,671 1,086,380 
Total Liabilities 2,880,235 3,018,452 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,025,871 1,000,298 
Restricted 398,572 106,979 
Unrestricted 6 304 560 6,193,617 

$ 
I 

Total Net Position $ 7,729,003 7,300,894 

Total assets increased $289,892 or 2.81% as compared to fiscal year 2013. The primary reason was an 
increase in cash resulting from fewer special instruction services offered that caused a significant decrease 
in expenses only partially offset by the decrease in revenues from those reduced services as well as from 
outstanding billings near year end. 

Total liabilities decreased $138,217 or 4.58% as compared to fiscal year 2013. This decrease can be 
attributed to a decrease in expenses for services provided to member districts near year end, as well as the 
principal payment on tbe capital lease. 

Overall net position of the Service Center has increased $428,109 or 5.86% as compared to fiscal year 
2013. 
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Table 2 shows the changes in net position for fiscal year 2014 and 2013. 

Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

2014 2013* 
Revenues 
Program Revenues: 
Charges for Services $ 12,127,919 $ 12,927,855 
Operating Grants 2,509 179 2 338 386 

Total Program Revenues 14,637 098 15,266,241 
General Revenues: 
Grants and Entitlements Not Restricted 1,588,760 2,458,618 
Other 3 836 6 269 

Total General Revenues 1,592 596 2 464,887 

Total Revenues 16,229,694 17 731 128 

Progra1n Expenses 
Instruction: 

Regular 996,270 546,062 
Special 5,026,161 6,756,094 
Vocational 89,261 68,790 

Support Services: 
Pupils 3,480,941 3,754,776 
Instructional Staff 4,130,917 4,449,228 
Board of Governors 49,984 56,629 
Administration 1,008,675 1,013,927 
Fiscal 307,756 315,483 
Business 33,365 32,837 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 526,689 561,598 
Central 67,707 123,273 

Operation of Non~Instructional Services: 
Extracurricular Activities 48,911 56,208 
Debt Service: 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 34 948 37,763 

Total Expenses 15 801,585 17 772 668 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 428,109 (41,540) 

Net Position at Beginning of Year (Restated) 7,300,894 7,342,138 

Restatement (See Note 17) 0 296 

Net Position at End of Year $ 7,729,003 $ 7,300,894 

* Excludes_the activities of funds reported in the general fund with the reclassification of a fund to private 
purpose trust. Amount was not significant and would not impact the analysis. 
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The decrease in revenues is primarily due to an overall decrease in state foundation monies and services 
provided to member districts. The decrease in expenses is due to a decrease for special instruction costs 
from purchased services by member districts. 

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants . 
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows, for governmental activities, the total cost of services and the net 
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by charges for services and 
restricted grants and entitlements. 

Table 3 
Governmental Activities 

Total Cost of Service Net Cost of Service 
2014 2013* 2014 2013* 

Instruction: 
Regular $ 996,270 $ 546,062 $ 525,052 $ 494,905 
Special 5,026,161 6,756,094 (720,377) 135,999 
Vocational 89,261 68,790 13,739 44,373 

Support Services: 
Pupils 3,480,941 3,754,776 23,950 278,413 
Instructional Staff 4,130,917 4,449,228 733,209 1,066,848 
Board of Governors 49,984 56,629 49,984 56,629 
Administration 1,008,675 1,013,927 518,582 358,524 
Fiscal 307,756 315,483 (76,809) (52,840) 
Business 33,365 32,837 19,954 17,908 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 526,689 561,598 12,546 59,781 
Central 67,707 123,273 11,970 (l,379) 

Extracurricular Activities 48,911 56,208 I 7,739 9,503 
Debt Service: 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 34 948 37 763 34 948 37,763 

Total Expenses $ 15,801,585 $ 17,772,668 $ 1,164,487 $ 2,506,427 

*Excludes the activities of funds reported in the general fund with the reclassification of a fund to private 
purpose trust. Amount was not significant and would not impact the analysis. 

For all governmental activities, program receipts support is 92.63%. The primary support of the Service 
Center is contracted fees and services provided to member districts; however,· it is the intention of the 
Board of Governors not to overcharge the districts served and to utilize the general revenues to offset the 
cost of programs to member districts. 
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Information about the Service Center's major funds starts on page 14. These funds are accounted for 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds had total .revenues of 
$15,546,263 and expenditures of $16,175,486 for fiscal year. The net change in fund balances for the 
fiscal year was a decrease of $629,223 for all governmental funds with the most significant decrease in 
the general fund. 

The general fund's net change in fund balance for fiscal year 2014 was a decrease of $586, 777. The 
decrease can be attributed to expenditures being recognized when incurred as opposed to GAAP revenue 
recognition for receivables under the modified basis of accounting. 

The educational regional service system fund's net change in fund balance for fiscal year 2014 was an 
increase of $10,386. . 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At the end of fiscal year 2014, the Service Center had $1,846,990 invested in capital assets. Table 4 
shows fiscal year 2014 balances compared with 2013. 

Table4 
Capital Assets at June 30 

(Net of Depreciation) 

Governmental Activities 

2014 2013 

Land $ 207,778 $ 207,778 
Furniture and Equipment 54,351 65,107 
Buildings and Improvements 1 584 861 1,623,516 
Totals $ 1,846,990 $ 1,896,401 

The $49,411 decrease in capital assets was attributable to depreciation and disposals exceeding current 
year additional purchases. See Note 5 for more information about the capital assets of the Servi.ce Center. 

Debt 

At year end, the Service Center had only capitalized leases as outstanding long-tenn obligations. The 
lease obligations outstanding at year end totaled $821,119. The lease balance consisted of a lease­
purchase agreement for HV AC heating and cooling project. See Note 10 to the basic financial statements 
for detail on the Service Center's long-term obligation. 
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(Unaudited) 

House Bill 115 established the Educational Regional Service System (ERSS). This system requires a 
coordinated, integrated and aligned system to support state and school district efforts to improve school 
effectiveness and student achievement. The system consists of sixteen regions. Each region has a fiscal 
agent. The selection of a fiscal agent was through a RFP (request for proposal) process. Fiscal Agents in 
each region have the responsibility of allocating resources to provide regional services and also assuring 
that the state-sponsored regional improvement initiatives are deployed according to Ohio Department of 
Education guidance. The Summit County Educational Service Center is the Region 8 fiscal agent. The 
Summit County Educational Service Center will work hard to ensure our districts are involved and benefit 
fro~ Region 8 services. 

While the Regional Service System has slightly changed the landscape of the Summit County Educational 
Service Center, we are still creating new services that assist our community and school districts. The 
organization sponsored a community conversion school. This school is located in Springfield Township, 
Ohio and serves children in grades kindergarten through fourth grade. Fiscal year 20 I 0 was its first year 
of operation, fiscal year 2014 was the fifth. We also continue an Autism Family School. This School, 
which began in 2010, is to provide educational services for an autism center located in Copley Township. 
The school is named Kids First. This school opened in Fall of 2010 and is currently in year five of 
operation. Demand for Kids First by school districts, seeking to serve autistic students, has continued to 
grow. While the goal of the school is to return students to their home school, it became necessary to open 
a school that .created continued support for students who were not ready to return to their home school. 
This new school is located in the City of Tallmadge. It serves middle and high school aged students with 
autism. 

Contacting the Service Center's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general overview 
of the Educational Service Center's finances and to show the Service Center's accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Summit County Educational Service Center Treasurer/CFO Office at 420 Washington 
Avenue, Suite 200, Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio 44221. 
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Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Intergovernmental 

Nondepreciable Capital Assets 
Depreciable Capital Assets (Net) 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Benefits 
Intergovernmental Payable 
Accrued Vacation Leave Payable 
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 
Long Term Liabilities: 

Due Within One Year 
Due In More Than One Year 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted For: 

Educational Regional Service System 
Other Purposes 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

June 30, 2014 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Govenunental 
Activities 

5,372,712 

4,069 
3,385,467 

207,778 
l,639,212 

10,609,238 

37,432 
1,427,596 

320,530 
142,083 
18,923 

106,001 
827 670 

2,880,235 

1,025,871 

367,192 
31,380 

6,304,560 
7,729,003 



Governmental Activities 
Instruction: 

Regular 
Special 
Vocational 

Support Services: 
Pupils 
Instructional Staff 
Board of Governors 
Administration 
Fiscal 
Business 
Opera~on and Maintenance of Plant 
Central 

Extracurricular A.ctivities 
Debt Service: 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 
Total 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Su1nmit County, Ohio 
Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

ProE[am Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants, 
Seivices and 

Expenses and Sales Contributions 

$ 996,270 $ 471,218 $ 0 
5,026,161 5,544,529 202,009 

89,261 75,522 0 

3,480,941 3,359,445 97,546 
4,130,917 1,566,055 1,831,653 

49,984 0 0 
1,008,675 425,693 64,400 

307,756 265,909 118,656 
33,365 13,411 0 

526,689 325,544 188,599 
67,707 49,421 6,316 
48,911 31,172 0 

34,948 0 0 
$ 15,801,585 $ 12,127,919 $ 2,509,179 

General Revenues 
Grants and Entitlements Not Restricted to Specific Programs 
Inveshnent Earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position Beginning of Year (Restated - See Note 17) 
Net Position End of Year 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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_Net {Expense) 
Revenue and 

ChanS:es in Net Position 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

(525,052) 
720,377 
(13,739) 

(23,950) 
(733,209) 

(49,984) 
(518,582) 

76,809 
(19,954) 
(12,546) 
(11,970) 
(17,739) 

p4,948) 
(1, 164,487) 

1,588,760 
3,736 

100 
1,592,596 

428,109 

7,300,894 
7,729,003 



Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2014 

Educational Other Total 
Regional Service Governmental Governmental 

General System Funds Funds 

Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and JnveStrncnts $ 5,302,686 $ 0 $ 70,026 $ 5,372,712 
Receivables: 

Accounts 4,069 0 0 4,069 
Interfund 116,953 0 0 116,953 
Intergovernmental 2,771,256 567,694 46,517 3,385,467 

Total Assets $ 8,194,964 $ 567,694 $ 116,543 $ 8,879 201 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 16,946 $ 2,195 $ 18,291 $ 37,432 
Accrued Wages and Benefits 1,281,066 101,012 45,518 1,427,596 
Intergovernmental Payable 292,545 19,506 8,479 320,530 
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 18,923 0 0 18,923 
Interfund Payable 0 63,895 53 058 116,953 

Total Liabilities 1,609 480 186,608 125,346 1,921,434 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable Revenue 2,412,846 315,085 2,235 2,730,166 

Fund Balances 
Restricted 0 66,001 31,380 97,381 
Assigned 63,090 0 0 63,090 
Unassigned 4,109 548 0 (42,418) 4,067,130 

Total Fund Balances 4,172,638 66,001 (ll,038) 4,227 601 
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balances $ 8,194,964 $ 567,694 $ 116,543 $ 8,879,201 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to 
Net Position of Governmental Activities 

June 30, 2014 

Total Governmental Fund Balances 

A1nounts reported/or gover1unental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 

Grants 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Charges for Services 

Long-term liabilities, including capital lease obligations payable, are 
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported in the funds. 

$ 317,320 
2,277,347 

135,499 

(821,119) 
(142,083) 

$ 4,227,601 

1,846,990 

2,730,166 

Capital Lease Obligation 
Vacations Payable 
Compensated Absences (112,552) (1,075, 754) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 7,729,003 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Educational Other Total 
Regional Service Governmental Govermnental 

General S;tstem Funds Funds 
Revenues 

Intergovernmental $ 1,589,361 $ 1,688,178 $ 532,913 $ 3,810,452 
Investment Income 3,736 0 0 3,736 
Tuition and Fees 3,823,612 0 0 3,823,612 
Charges for Services 7,899,088 0 855 7,899,943 
Contributions and Donations 0 0 2,600 2,600 
Miscellaneous 100 5,820 0 5,920 

Total Revenues 13,315 897 1,693,998 536 368 15,546,263 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular 998,698 0 0 998,698 
Special 4,816,028 6,531 203,256 5,025,815 
Vocational 89,148 0 0 89,148 

Support Services: 
Pupils 3,417,901 7,835 100,290 3,526,026 
Instructional Staff 2,571,250 1,417,343 201,691 4,196,284 
Board of Governors 49,984 0 0 49,984 
Administration 932,107 663 64,482 997,252 
Fiscal 314,943 90,933 12,200 418,076 
Business 33,335 0 0 33,335 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 453,202 154,920 7,281 615,403 
Central 61,235 5,387 0 66,622 

Extracurricular Activities 48,911 0 0 48,911 
Debt Service: 

Principal Retirement 74,984 0 0 74,984 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 34 948 0 0 34,948 

Total Expenditures 13,902,674 1,683,612 589,200 16,175,486 

Net Change in Fund Balance (586,717) 10,386 (52,832) (629,223) 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year (Restated·See Note 17) 4,159,415 55,615 41,794 4,856,824 

Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year $ 4,172,638 $ 66 001 $ (11,038l $ 4,227,601 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Sumn1it County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Net Change in Fund Balances -Total Governmental Funds 

A1nounts reported for governn1ental activities in the 
staten1ent·of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount 
by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period. 

Capital Asset Additions 
Current Year Depreciation 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Grants 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Charges for Services 

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but 
the repayment reduces Jong·tenn liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Some expenses reported in _the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Compensated Absences 
Vacations Payable 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

$ 5,205 
(54,616) 

283,967 
871,501 

(206,588) 

77,725 
5 154 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ (629,223) 

(49,411) 

948,880 

74,984 

82,879 

$ 428,109 



Assets 

Sumn1it County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, OJ1io 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

June 30, 2014 

Private Purpose 
Trust 

Equi1y in Pooled Cash and Investments 
Intergovernmental Receivable 

$ 107,163 
0 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Intergovernmental Payable 
Undistribuied Monies 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Held in Trust for Scholarships 

107,163 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 

$ 107,163 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Agency 

163,010 
1,010 

164,020 

7,420 
1,339 

155,261 
164,020 



Additions 
Miscellaneous 

Deductions 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Private Purpose Trust Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Payments in Accordance with Trust Agreements 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position Beginning of Year (Restated-See Note 17) 

Net Position End of Year 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Private Purpose 

Trust 

1,000 

3,504 

(2,504) 

109,667 

$ 107,163 



Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

NOTE 1- DESCRIPTION OF THE SERVICE CENTER 

The Sununit County Educational Service Center (the "Service Center") is a body politic and corporate 
established for the purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and Jaws 
of the State of Ohio. 

The Service Center is a County Educational Service Center as defined by Section 3313.01 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. The Service Center operates under an elected Board of Governors (5 members). Board 
members must be residents of th\' local school systems located in Summit County. The Service Center 
provides educational services to the local school systems in Summit County as well as nine city school 
districts, which have a contractual relationship with the Service Center. 

Reporting Entity 

The reporting entity is composed of the primary govermnent, component units and other organizations that 
are included to ensure that the financial statements of the Service Center are not misleading. The primary 
government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the 
Service Center. · 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Service Center is financially accountable. 
The Service Center is financially accountable for an organization if the Service Center appoints a voting 
majority of the organizations' governing board and(!) the Service Center is able to significantly influence 
the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the Service Center is legally 
entitled"to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the Service Center is legally obligated or has 
otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the 
organization; or the Service Center is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also 
include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Service Center in that the Service Center approves 
the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. The Service Center does not have any component 
units. 

During the fiscal year the Service Center is associated with the Metropolitan Regional Service Council 
(MRSC) also known as Northeast Ohio Network for Educational Technology (NEOnet), which is defined as 
a jointly governed organization. Representatives from each of the governments that create the organization 
govern jointly, but there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. 
Information regarding this organization is presented in Note 12. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Service Center have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to govermnental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting entity for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. 

The most significant of the Service Center's accounting policies are described below. 
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A: Basis of Presentation 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

The Service Center's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a 
statement of net position, and statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more 
detailed level offinaocial information. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the Service Center as a 
whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary 
funds. The effect of interfund activity, within governmental type activities columns has been removed from 
these statements. 

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the govermnental activities of the Service 
Center at fiscal year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and 
program revenues for each program or function of the Service Center's govermnental activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department aod therefore 
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the 
goods or services offered by the program aod grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operations of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as 
general revenues of the Service Center, with certain limitations. The comparison of direct expenses with 
program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from 
the general revenues of the Service Center. 

Fund Financial Statements 

During the fiscal year, the Service Center segregates transactions related to certain Service Center functions 
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. 
Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the Service Center at this more 
detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting 
funds bytype. The major funds are presented in a separate column. Nomnajor funds are aggregated and 
presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The Service Center uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. Fund accounting is 
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to 
certain Service Center functions or activities. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self­
balancing set of accounts. The various funds of the Service Center are grouped into the categories of 
governmental and fiduciary. 
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Governmental Funds 

Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Service Center are 
financed. Governmental funds focus on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. 
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they 
may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference 
between governmental fund assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows is reported as 
fund balance. The following are the Service Center's major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The general fund is the operating fund of the Service Center and is used to account 
for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general 
fund balance is available to the Service Center for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred 
according to the general laws of Ohio. 

Educational Regional Service System Special Revenue Fund - This fund is used to account for grant 
revenues used to support state and regional education initiatives and efforts to improve school 
effectiveness and student achievement. The state system consists of sixteen regions. The Service 
Center is the fiscal agent for the State Support Team Region 8 which includes Portage, Medina and 
Summit Counties. 

The other governmental funds of the Service Center account for grants and other resources to which the 
Service Center is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund category is 
split into four cfassifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds; private-purpose trust funds, and 
agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the Service Center under a trust agreement 
for individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to support the 
Service Center's own programs. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. The Service Center's agency funds account for employee 
benefits and programs managed by school districts served by the Service Center. The private purpose trust 
fund accounts for assets held by the Service Center in a trustee capacity. 

C. Measurement Focus 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. 
All non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows associated with the operation of 
the Service Center are included on the statement of net position. 
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All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows, current liabilities, and deferred inflows 
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances reflects on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and 
other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the 
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund 
financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the 
relationship between the government-wide statements and the fund financial statements for governrnental 
funds. 

Agency funds do not report a measurement focus as they do not report operations. 

Private purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and are excluded 
from the govermnent-wide financial statements. 

D, Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the 
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting; fiduciary funds use the 
accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the 
recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred outflows/inflows of resources and in the presentation of 
expenses versus expenditures. 

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal 
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue 
is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. "Measurable" 
means the amount of the transaction can be determined, "available" means that the resources will be 
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to 
pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the Service Center, available means expected to be received 
within sixty days of year-end. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Service Center receives value without directly giving equal value in 
return, include grants, entitlements and donations. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility 
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used 
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the Service Center must 
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided fo the Service Center on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue 
from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized, 

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and 
available at fiscal year-end: interest, tuition, fees, grants, and charges for services. 
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Deferred Inffows of Resources and Deferred Outflows o(Resources 

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of assets by the Service Center that is applicable to a future 
reporting period. A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of assets by the Service Center that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. 

On the govermnental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available 
period have also been reported as a deferred inflow of resources. 

Expenditures/Expenses 

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. 

Under the modified accrual, the measurement focus of govermnental fund accounting is on decreases in net 
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the 
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as 
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

To improve cash management, all cash received by the Service Center is pooled in a central bank account. 
Monies for all funds are maintained in this account or temporarily used to purchase short-term investments. 
Individual fund integrity is maintained through Service Center records. Each fund's interest in the pool is 
presented as "equity in pooled cash and investments." 

During the fiscal year, investments were limited to overnight repurchase agreements. Except for investment 
contracts and money market investments that had a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of 
purchase, investments are reported at fair value, which is based on quoted market price. Under existing Ohio 
statutes, all investment earnings accrue to the general fund except those specifically related to certain trust 
funds, unless the Board specifically allows the interest to be recorded in other funds. 

Investments of the cash management pool and investments with an original maturity of three months or less 
at the time they are purchased by the Service Center are presented on the financial statements as "equity in 
pooled cash and cash equivalents." Investments with an initial maturity of more than three months that are 
not purchased from the pool are reported as "investments." 

F. Capital Assets 

All of the Service Center's capital assets are general capital assets. These assets generally result from 
expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the government-wide statement of net 
position but are not reported on the fund financial statements. 
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All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and 
reductions during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date 
received. The Service Center maintains a capitalization threshold of $1,000. The Service Center does not 
possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not capitalized. 

All reported capital assets, except land are depreciated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method over the following useful lives: 

Description 

Building and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 

G. Compensated Absences 

Estimated Lives 

50 years 
3-20 years 
3-5 years 

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employee's rights to receive 
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the Service Center will 
compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The Service Center 
records a liability for accumulated unused vacation time earned for all employees with more than one year of 
service. 

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability includes the employees 
who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and those the Service Center has identified as 
probable ofreceiving payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated sick leave and employees' 
wage rates at fiscal year end, taking into consideration any limits specified in the Service Center's 
termination policy. 

H. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations 

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. 

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that once incurred are paid in a timely manner 
and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and 
judgments and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in 
the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Long­
term capital leases are recognized as a liability on the governmental fund financial statements when due. 
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Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows. Net 
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through 
the enabling legislation adopted by the Service Center or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors or laws, or regulatious of other governments. Net position restricted for other purposes primarily 
includes amounts for activities associated with assisting the instructional staff with the content and process of 
providing learning experiences for pupils. 

The Service Center applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted aud unrestricted net position is available. 

J, Fund Balance 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions", the Service Center classifies its fund balance based on the 
purpose for which the resources were received and the level of constraint placed on the resources. The 
classifications are as follows: 

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in 
spendable form" criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the 
long-term amount of loans receivable, as well as property acquired for resale, unless the use of the proceeds 
from the collection of those receivables or from the sale of those properties is restricted, committed or 
assigned. 

Restricted - Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or 
regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions. 

Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the 
specific purposes imposed by a formal action (resolution) of the Service Center Board of Governors. Those 
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Service Center Board of Governors 
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution) it employed to previously 
commit those ammmts. Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that 
existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 
requirements. 

Assigned - Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Service Center 
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental 
funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not 
restricted or committed. In the general fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by 
policies of the Service Center Board of Governors. The Board of Governors has by resolution authorized the 
treasurer to assign fund balance. 
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Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all 
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned 
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for 
which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. 

The Service Center applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which 
either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, 
within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned and then 
unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the 
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 

K. Interfund Transactions 

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures in the 
purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 
reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses for 
governmental funds. All transfers between governmental funds have been eliminated within the 
governmental activities column of the statement of net position. Repayments from funds responsible for 
particular expenditures to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements. 

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are 
classified as "interfund receivables/payables". These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities 
column of the statement of net position. 

L. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements 
and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

M. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in the nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the Board of Governors 
and that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type of transaction occurred during 
fiscal year 2014. 

N. Implementation of New Accounting Policies 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Service Center has implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) .Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, GASB 
Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-2012-an amendment of GASE Statements No. JO and No. 62, 
and GASH Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. 
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GASB Statement No. 65 properly classifies certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or recognizes certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses or expenditures) or 
inflows of resources (revenues). These changes were incorporated in the Service Center's fiscal year 2014 
financial statements; however, there was no effect on beginning net position/fund balance. 

GASB Statement No. 66 resolves conflicting accounting and financial reporting guidance that could diminish 
the consistency of financial repmting and thereby enhance the usefulness of the financial reports. The 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 66 did not have an effect on the financial statements of the Service 
Center. 

GASB Statement No. 70 improves comparability of financial statements by requiring consistent reporting 
and specifying information required to be disclosed for extending and receiving nonexchange financial 
guarantees. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 70 did not have an effect on the financial 
statements of the Service Center. 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

State statutes classify monies held by the Service Center into three categories. 

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury. Such monies must be 
maintained either as cash in the Service Center Treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable 
on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts. 

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Board of Governors has identified as not required for use within 
the current five year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by 
certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or 
by savings or deposit accollnts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts. 

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for 
immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. 
Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the 
date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts including pass book accounts. 

Protection of the Service Center's deposits may be provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC), by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety 
company bonds deposited with the Chief Fiscal Officer by the financial institution or by a single collateral 
pool established by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the 
institution. 

Interim monies may be invested in the following obligations provided they mature or are redeemable within 
five years from the date of settlement: 

l. United States Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, or any other obligations or security issued by the United 
States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States; 

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency 
or instrumentality; 
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3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above, provided that the market value of the 
securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by at 
least 2% and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty 
days; 

4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio; 

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in item (I) or 
(2) above and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in 
securities described in this division are made only through eligible institutions; 

6. The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio and STAR Plus); 

7. Certain bankers' acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period of 180 days in an amount not 
to exceed 25% of the interim monies available for investment at any one time; and 

8. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two highest rating 
classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies. 

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are 
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling 
are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched 
to a specific obligation or debt of the Service Center, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will 
be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for 
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the Treasurer 
or, qualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of 
transfer from the custodian. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the government's deposits may not be 
returned to it. Protection of Service Center cash and deposits is provided by the FDIC, as well as qualified 
securities pledged by the institution holding the assets. By law, financial institutions must collateralize all 
uninsured public deposits. The face value of the pooled collateral must equal at least 105% of uninsured 
public funds deposited. Collateral is held by trustees including the Federal Reserve Bank and designated 
third party trustees of the financial institutions. The policies of the Service Center do not address custodial 
credit risk for deposits. 

A. Deposits 

At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the Service Center's deposits was $(152,115). Based on criteria 
described in GASB 40, "Deposits and Investments Risk Disclosure", as of June 30, 2014, 100% of the bank 
balance of $6,804 was covered by FDIC. 
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Interest Rate Risk- The Ohio Revised Code generally limits security purchases to those that mature within 
five years of the settlement date. It is the Service Center's policy to evaluate market conditions, interest rate 
forecasts, and cash flow requirements to consider the term of an investment, with the goal being to buy 
where relative value exists along the maturity spectrum. 

Custodial Credit Risk - For an investment, custodial risk is that risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the Service Center will no longer be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Service Center's investment in a repurchase 
agreement is collateralized by underlying securities pledged by the investment's counterparty, not in the 
name of the Service Center. Ohio law requires the market value of the securities subject to repurchase 
agreements must exceed the principal balance of the securities subject to a repurchase agreement by 2%. 
The Service Center has no investment policy dealing with investment custodial risk beyond the requirement 
in State statute that prohibits payment for investments prior to the delivery of the securities representing such 
investments to the Treasurer or qualified trustee. 

Credit Risk- The Service Center's only investment during fiscal year 2014 was in an overnight repurchase 
account, with a year ending balance of $5, 795,000. The Service Center's investments in the federal agency 
securities that underlie the Service Center's repurchase agreement were rated Aaa by Moody's Investor 
Services. 

Concentration of Credit Risk- The Service Center investment policy is to be diversified in it's holdings of 
investments by avoiding concentrations of specific users. During the year, the Service Center's only 
investment was in an overnight repurchase account. These investments were secured with pledged collateral, 
held and in the name of the pledging institution, in which the investments are held. 

Interest is legally required to be placed in the general fund. Interest revenue credited to the general fund 
during fiscal year 2014 amounted to $3,736, which includes $41 assigned from other Service Center funds. 

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at year-end consisted of intergovermnental (grants and entitlements and charges for services 
provided to other governments), accounts and interfund. All receivables are considered collectible in full due 
to the stable condition of state programs, and the current year guarantee of federal funds. 

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows: 

Preschool excess costs 
Service provided to others 
Grants 

Total Intergovernmental Receivable 
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows: 

Balance 
June 30, 2013 Additions 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 

Land $ 207 778 $ 0 

Capital Assets, Being Depr~ciated 
Furniture and equipment 822,892 5,205 
Building and improvements 1,854,192 0 
Vehicles 31 376 0 

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 2 708 460 . 5 205 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Furniture and equipment (757, 785) (15,961) 
Building and improvements (230,676) (38,655) 
Vehicles (31,376) 0 

Total Accumulated Depreciated 0,019,837) (54,616) 

Total Capital'Assets Being Depreciated, Net 1,688,623 (49,411) 

Governmental Activities, Capital Assets, Net $ 1,896,401 $ (49,411) 

*Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Instruction: 
Regular 

Special 
Support Services: 

Instructional Staff 
Administration 
Fiscal 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 

Total Depreciation 

76 

$ 

$ 

Deletions 

$ 0 

0 
0 

(18,207) 
(18,207) 

0 
0 

18 207 
18 207 

$ 

798 
11,981 

5,777 
18,392 

1,848 
15 820 

54,616 

0 

0 

Balance 
June30, 2014 

$ 207 778 

828,097 
1,854,192 

13 169 
2,695,458 

(773,746) 
(269,331) 
(13,169) 

0,056,246) 

1,639,212 

$ 1,846,990 
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund balances consisted of the following at June 30, 2014, as reported on the fund financial statements: 

Interfund Interfund 
Receivable Parable 

General fund $ 116,953 $ 0 
Educational Regional Service System 0 63,895 
Other govermnental funds 0 53,058 

$ 116,953 $ 116,953 

As of June 30, 2014, the educational regional service system and other non-major governmental funds 
repo1ted unencumbered negative cash balances. The amount reported in other governmental funds was made 
up of $14,289 in the public school preschool grant fund, $8,548 in the EHA preschool grant fund and 
$30,221 in the miscellaneous federal grants fund, As a result, interfund loans were made by the general fund 
to eliminate the negative balances. All interfund loans will be repaid in fiscal year 2015 with monies to be 
received from reimbursable expenditures incurred during fiscal year 2014. 

NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Service Center is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. These risks are covered by 
commercial insurance purchased from independent third paities. There have been no settlements paid in 
excess of insurance coverage nor has insurance coverage been significantly reduced in the past three years. 
The Service Center is a participant in the Stark County Schools Council of Government ("Council") for the 
purpose of obtaining benefits at a reduced premium for health care. Mutual Health Seivices Company and 
the Aultcare Corporation administer the insurance program for health care. Payments are made to the 
Council for monthly premiums, monthly stop-loss premiums, and administrative charges. The fiscal agent of 
the Council is the Stark County Educational Service Center. The fiscal agent pays Mutual Health Services 
and the Aultcare Corporation monthly for all participating districts, the actual amount of claims processed, 
the stop-loss premium, and the administrative charges. 

Premium contributions are determined annually based on the claims experience of the individual member. 
Premiums can be increased or decreased by up to 20% of the prior year's contribution. Members may become 
liable for additional contributions to fund the liability of the pool. In the event of termination, all 
participating members' claims would be paid without regard to their individual account balances. The 
Consortium's Board of Directors has authority to return monies to an exiting member subsequent to the 
settlement of all claims and expenses. 

The Service Center pays the State Workers' Compensation System a premium based on a rate per $100 of 
salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs. 
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NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

A, School Employees Retirement System 

Plan Description - The Service Center contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio 
("SERS"), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS provides retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 3309 of the 
Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. That report can be obtained by contacting SERS, 300 
East Broad Street, Suite JOO, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3746 or by calling toll free (800) 878-5853. It is also 
posted on SERS' website at www.ohsers.org under Employers/Audit Resources. 

Funding Policy · Plan members are required to contribute 10% of their annual covered salary and the Service 
Center is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 14% of annual covered 
payroll. A portion of the Service Center's contribution is used to fund pension obligations with the 
remainder being used to fund health care benefits. For fiscal year 2014, 13.05% and .05% of annual covered 
salary was the portion used to fund pension obligations and death benefits, respectively. The contribution 
requirements of plan members and employers are established and may be amended by the SERS' Retirement 
Board up to statutory maximum amount of 10% for plan members and 14% for employers. Chapter 3309 of 
the Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions. The Service 
Center's required contributions for pension obligations and death benefits to SERS for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $410,226, $455,433 and $380,846, respectively; 92% has been 
contributed for fiscal year 2014 and 100% for the fiscal years 2013 and 2012. 

B. State Teachers Retirement System 

Plan Description - The Service Center participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio ("STRS 
Ohio"), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement plan. STRS Ohio provides retirement 
and disability benefits to members and death and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. STRS Ohio issues a 
publicly-available, stand-alone financial report that may be obtained by writing to STRS Ohio, 275 East 
Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371, by calling (888) 227-7877, or by visiting the STRS Ohio website 
at www.strsoh.org. 

New members have a choice of three retirement plans, a Defined Benefit (DB) Plan, a Defined Contribution 
(DC) Plan and a Combined Plan. The DB Plan offers an annual retirement allowance based on final average 
salary iimes a percentage that varies based on years of service, or an allowance based on a member's lifetime 
contributions and earned interest matched by STRS Ohio funds divided hy an actuarially determined annuity 
factor. The DC Plan allows members to place all their member contributions and employer contributions 
equal to 10.5% of earned compensation into an investment account. Investment decisions are made by the 
member. A member is. eligible to receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and termination of employment. The 
member may elect to receive a lifetime monthly annuity or a lump sum withdrawal. The Combined Plan 
offers features of both the DC Plan and the DB Plan. In the Combined Plan, member contributions are 
invested by the member, and employer contributions are used to fund the defined benefit payment at a 
reduced level from the regular DB Plan. The DB portion of the Combined Plan payment is payable to a 
member on or after age 60; the DC portion of the account may be taken as a lump sum or converted to a 
lifetime monthly annuity at age 50. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more years of credited service who becomes disabled may. 
qualify for a disability benefit. Eligible spouses and dependents of these active members who die before 
retirement may qualify for survivor benefits. Members in the DC plan who become disabled are entitled 
only to their account balance. If a member dies before retirement benefits begin, the member's designated 
beneficiary is entitled to receive the member's account balance. 

Funding Policy - For fiscal year 2014, plan members were required to contribute 11 % of their annual covered 
salaries. The Service Center was required to contribute 14%;.13% was the portion used to fund pension 
obligations. Contribution· rates are established by the State Teachers Retirement Board, upon 
recommendations of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 11 % for members and 
14% for employer contributions. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for 
member aud employer contributions. 

The Service Center's required contributions for pension obligations to STRS Ohio for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $1,044,568, $1,142,723 and $1,051,143, respectively; 90% has been 
contributed for fiscal year 2014 and 100% for the fiscal years 2013 and 2012. Contributions to the DC and 
Combined Plans for fiscal year 2014 were $60,260 made by the Service Center and $47,347 made by the 
plan members. 

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

A. School Employees Retirement System 

Plan Description - The Service Center participates in two cost-sharing, multiple employer defined benefit 
OPEB plans administered by the School Employees Retirement System for non-certificated retirees and their 
beneficiaries, a Health Care Plan and a Medicare Part B Plan. The Health Care Plan includes hospitalization 
and physicians' fees through several types of plans including HMO's, PPO's, Medicare Advantage and 
traditional indemnity plans. A prescription drug plan is also available to those who elect health coverage. 
SERS employs two third-party administrators and a pharmacy benefit manager to manage the self-insurance 
and prescription drug plans, respectively. The Medicare Part B Plan reimburses Medicare Part B premiums 
paid by eligible retirees and beneficiaries as set forth in Ohio Revised Code Section 3309.69. Qualified 
benefit recipients who pay Medicare Part B premiums may apply for and receive a monthly reimbursement 
from SERS. The reimbursement amount is limited by statute to the lessor of the January I, 1999 Medicare 
Part B premium or the current premium. The Medicare Part B monthly premium for calendar year 2014 was 
$104.90 for most participants, but could be as high as $335.70 per month depending on their income. SERS' 
reimbursement to retirees was $45.50. Benefit provisions and the obligations to contribute are established by 
the System based on authority granted by State statut.e. The financial reports of both Plans are included in 
the SERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which is available by contacting SERS at 300 East Broad 
St., Suite 100, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3746. It is also posted on SERS' website at www.ohsers.org under 
Employers/ Audit Resources. 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Funding Policy - State statute permits SERS to fund the health care benefits through employer contributions. 
Each year, after the allocation for statutorily required benefits, the Retirement Board allocates the remainder 
of the employer contribution of 14% of covered payroll to the Health Care Fund. The Health Care Fund was 
established and is administered in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 105(e). For fiscal year 
2014, 0.14% of covered payroll was allocated to health care. An additional health care surcharge on 
employers is collected for employees earning less than an actuarially determined minimum compensation 
amount, pro-rated according to service credit earned. Statutes provide that no employer shall pay a health 
care surcharge greater than 2% of that employer's SERS-covered payroll; nor may SERS collect in aggregate 
more than 1.5% of the statewide SERS-covered payroll for the health care surcharge. For fiscal year 2014, 
the actuarially determined amount was $20,250. · 

Active members do not contribute to the postemployment benefit plans, The SERS Retirement Board 
establishes the rules for the premiums paid by the retirees for health care coverage for themselves and their 
dependents or for their surviving beneficiaries. Retirees and their beneficiaries are required to pay a health 
care premium that varies depending on the plan selected, the number of qualified years of service, Medicare 
eligibility and retirement status. 

The Service Center's contributions for health care (including surcharge) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2014, 2013, and 2012 were $48,225, $42,347, and $16,559, respectively; 92% has been contributed for fiscal 
year 2014 and 100% for fiscal years 2013 and 2012. 

The Retirement Board, acting with advice of the actuary, allocates a portion of the current employer 
contribution to the Medicare B Fund. For fiscal year 2014, the actuarially required allocation was 0.76% of 
covered payroll. The Service Center's contributions for Medicare Part B for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2014, 2013, and 2012 were $23,799, $25,727, and $22,580, respectively; 92% has been contributed for fiscal 
year 2014 and 100% for fiscal years 2013 and 2012. 

B. State Teachers Retirement System 

Plan Description - The Service Center contributes to the cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit 
Health Plan (the "Plan") administered by the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio) for 
eligible retirees who participated in the defined benefit or combined pension plans offered by STRS Ohio. 
Benefits include hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of monthly 
Medicare Part B premiums. The Plan is included in the financial report of STRS. Interested parties can view 
the most recent Comprehensive Annual Financial Report by visiting www.strsoh.org or by requesting a copy 
by calling toll-free (888) 227-7877. 

Funding Policy - Ohio law authorizes STRS Ohio to offer the Plan and gives the Retirement Board authority 
over how much, if any, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS Ohio. Active employee members 
do not contribute to the Plan. All benefit recipients pay a monthly premium. Under Ohio law, funding for 
post-employment health care may be deducted from employer contributions. For fiscal year 2014, STRS 
Ohio allocated employer contributions equal to 1 % of covered payroll to the Health Care Stabilization Fund. 
The Service Center's contributions for health care for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 
were $80,351, $87,902, and $80,857, respectively; 90% has been contributed for fiscal year 2014 and 100% 
for fiscal years 2013 and 2012. 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

NOTE 10 - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Changes in long-term obligations of the Service Center during the current fiscal year were as follows: 

Amount Due 
Balance Balance Within 

June 30, 2013 Additions Deductions June 30, 2014 One Year 
Governmental Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 190,277 $ 14,588 $ (92,313) $ 112,552 $ 28,093 
Capital L~ase 896 103 0 [74,984) 821 119 77,908 

Total longterm obligations $ 1,086,380 $ 14,588 $ ~167,297) $ 933 671 $ 106 001 

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund in which the employee is paid. In prior years, this fund 
has primarily been the general fund. Capital leases will be paid from the general fund. 

NOTE 11 - CAPITALIZED LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE 

In fiscal year 2008, the Service Center entered into a lease-purchase agreement for HVAC improvements for 
heating and cooling. This lease meets the criteria of a capital lease as it transfers benefits and risks of 
ownership to the lessee. Capital lease payments have been reclassified and are reflected as debt service in the 
basic financial statements for the governmental funds. Capital assets acquired by lease have been capitalized 
in the amount of $1,230,858; this amount is equal to the present value of the future minimum lease payments 
at the time of acquisition in the government-wide financial statements. 

Principal payments in the current fiscal year totaled $74,984. The following is a schedule of the future 
minimum lease payments required under the capital leases and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments as of June 30, 2014: 

Year Amount 

2015 $ 109,932 
2016 109,932 
2017 109,932 
2018 109,932 
2019 109,932 

2020-2023 439,729 
Total lease payments 989,389 

Less amount representing interest {168,270) 

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 821 119 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

NOTE 12 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 

Metropolitan Regional Service Council (MRSC) 

MRSC is also known as Northeast Ohio Network for Educational Technology (NEOnet), which is the name 
used exclusively prior to their reorganization from a consortium to a council of governments, MRSC is the 
computer service organization or Data Acquisition Site (DAS) used by the Service Center. MRSC is an 
association of public districts in a geographic area determined by the Ohio Department of Education. The 
purpose of MRSC is to develop and employ a computer system efficiently and effectively for the needs of 
the member Boards of Education. All districts in MRSC are required to pay fees, charges, and assessments as 
charged. A board made up of superintendents from all of the participating Service Centers governs MRSC. 
An elected Executive Board consisting of nine members of the governing board is the managerial body of the 
MRSC and meets on a monthly basis. 

The Service Center does not maintain an ongoing financial interest or an ongoing financial responsibility. 
Payments to MRSC are made from the general fund. During the current fiscal year the Service Center made 
$31,704 in contributions to MRSC. 

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES 

A. Grants 

The Service Center received financial assistance from federal and State agencies in the form of grants. The 
expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions 
specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the granter agencies. Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, 
the effect of any such disallowed claims on the overall financial position of the Service Center at June 30, 
2014, if applicable, cannot be determined at.this time. 

B. Litigation 

The Service Center is not party to any claims or lawsuits that would, in the Service Center's opinion, have a 
material effect of the basic financial statements. 

NOTE 14 - FUND DEFICITS 

Fund balances at June 30, 2014 included the following individual fund deficits: 

Public School Preschool 
EHA Preschool Grant 
Miscellaneous Federal Grants 

Fund Balance 

$ 9,554 
2,643 

30,221 

The deficits in these funds resulted from adjustments for accrued liabilities. The general fund is liable for 
any deficit in the non-major governmental funds and will provide transfers when cash is required, not when 
accruals occur. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Fund balance can be classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based 
primarily on the extent to which the Service Center is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of 
the resources in governmental funds. 

The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental funds and all other funds are presented as 
follows: 

Educational Other 

Restricted for: 
Other Purposes 

Assigned for: 
Encumbrances: 

Instructional 
Support Services 

Other Purposes: 
Public School Support 

Total Assigned 

Unassigned 

General 
Regional Service 

System 

--'$:;__ __ _::0_ --'$"'----'6""6"'0"'-0 l,__ 

18,387 
38,625 

6,078 
63,090 

4,109,548 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

Total Fund Balance (Deficit) $ 4, 172,638 ..;;;.$ __ 6;;;6"°0""0;.;l_ 

NOTE 16 - ENCUMBRANCE COMMITMENTS 

Goverrunental 
Funds Total 

$ 3 1,3 80 _$:;__-'-9""7 "'-3 8'-'l'-

0 
0 

0 
0 

(42,418) 

18,387 
38,625 

6,078 
63,090 

4,067 130 

$ (11,038) $ 4,227,601 

The Service Center utilizes encumbrance accounting as part of its budgetary controls. Encumbrances 
outstanding at year-end may be reported as part of restricted, committed or assigned classifications of fund 
balance. At year-end, the Service Center commitments for encumbrances in the governmental funds were as 
follows: 

Fund 

General 
Educational Regional Service System 
Other Governmental Funds 
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Amount 

$ 57,012 
20,674 
57,461 

$ 135 147 



Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

NOTE 17 -RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION 

A. Modified Accrual Fund Balances 

Ftmd balances have been restated at July l, 2013, to account for reclassification of a fund that should have 
been a private purpose trust fund. The adjustments had the following effect on governmental modified fund 
balances as previously reported: 

General 
Fund 

Educational Other 
Regional Service 

Center 
Governmental 

Funds 
Beginning fund balances, July 1, 2013 
Adjustments: 

$ 4,759,415 $ 55,615 $ 41,498 

Fund reclassifications (Private Purpose Trust) 0 0 296 

Beginning fund balances, July l, 2013 $ 4 759415 $ 55 615 $ 41,794 

B. Net Position 

Net position has been restated at July l, 2013, to account for the reclassification of governmental activities to 
activities reported in fiduciary funds. The adjustments had the following effect on governmental activities net 
position as previously reported: 

Governmental activities net position, July I, 2013 
Adjustments: 

Fund reclassifications 

Beginning net asset position, July 1, 2013 
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Governmental 
Activities 

$ 7,300,598 

296 

$ 7,300,894 

Private 
Purpose Trust 
$ 109,963 

(296) 

$ 109 667 



Combining Statements for 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
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Combining Statements - Nonmajor Funds 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are established to account for revenues from specific sources, which legally, or 
otherwise, are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. A description of the Service Center's 
special revenue funds follows: 

Miscellaneous Local Grants 

To account for funds received from private organizations that are restricted for specific purposes. 

Public School Preschool 

To account for state monies used to assist the Service Center in paying the cost of preschool programs for 
children ages three through five year. 

Dual Credit Grant 

To account for activities established under House Bill 119, ALI 200-536 for the purpose of increasing the 
number of high school students earning or dual credit in the high school setting and to build statewide 
capacity to deliver high _quality coursework and instruction in mathematics, science, and foreign language. 

Teach Ohio Grant 

To provide for either a new program or expansion of an existing program to support initiatives in the 
following areas: Standards and Assessments; Using Data to improve Instruction; Great Teachers and 
Leaders; and Turning Around the Lowest Achieving Schools. 

EHA Preschool Grant 

To account for federal funds used for the improvement and expansion of services for handicapped 
children ages three through five years. 

Miscellaneous Federal Grants 

To account for Federal monies received to encourage and help fund smaller classroom size and additional 
staffing needs. 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Sun1mit County, Ohio 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

June 30, 2014 

Miscellaneous Public Dual 
Local School Credit 
Grants Preschool Grant 

Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Invest1nents $ 8,093 $ 0 $ 21,995 
Receivables: 

Intergovernmental 0 29,397 0 
Total Assets $ 8,093 $ 29,397 $ 21,995 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
Accrued Wages and Benefits 0 20,772 0 
Intergovernmental Payable 0 3,890 0 
Interfund Payable 0 14,289 0 

Total Liabilities 0 38,951 0 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable Revenue 0 0 0 

Fund Balances 
Restricted 8,093 0 21,995 
Unassigned 0 (9,554) 0 

Total Fund Balances 8,093 (9,554) 21,995 
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balances $ 8,093 $ 29,397 $ 21,995 
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Total 
Teach EHA Miscellaneous Nonmajor 
Ohio Preschool Federal Special Revenue 
Grant Grant Grants Funds 

$ 39,93 8 $ 0 $ 0 $ 70,026 

0 17,120 0 46,517 

$ 39,93 8 $ 17,120 $ 0 $ 116,543 

$ 18,291 $ 0 $ 0 $ 18,291 
17,322 7,424 0 45,518 
3,033 1,556 0 8,479 

0 8,548 30,221 53,058 
38,646 17,528 30,221 125,346 

0 2,235 0 2,235 

1,292 0 0 31,380 
0 (2,643) (30,221) (42,418) 

1,292 (2,643) (30,221) (11,038) 

$ 39,938 $ 17,120 $ 0 $ 116,543 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Combining Staternent Of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Miscellaneous Public 
Local School 
Grants Preschool 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ 0 $ 166,669 
Charges for Services 855 0 
Contributions and Donations 2,600 0 
Total Revenues 3,455 166,669 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Special 2,254 109,283 

Support Services: 
Pupils 0 57,900 
Instructional Staff 3,806 0 
Administration 0 0 
Fiscal 0 0 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 0 7,281 

Total Expenditures 6,060 174,464 

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,605) (7,795) 

Fund Balances (Deficit) Beginning of Year, 
Restated - See Note 17 10,698 (l,759) 

Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year $ 8,093 $ (9,554) 
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Dual 
Credit 
Grant 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

21,995 

$ 21,995 



Total 
Teach EHA Miscellaneous Nonmajor 
Ohio Preschool Federal Special Revenue 
Grant Grant Grants Funds 

$ 231,441 $ 117,138 $ 17,665 $ 532,913 
0 0 0 855 
0 0 0 2,600 

231,441 117,138 17,665 536,368 

0 91,719 0 203,256 

0 . 30,000 12,390 100,290 
157,884 0 40,001 201,691 
64,482 0 0 64,482 
12,200 0 0 12,200 

0 0 0 7,281 
234,566 121,719 52,391 589 200 

(3,125) (4,581) (34,726) (52,832) 

4,417 1,938 4,505 41,794 

$ 1,292 $ (2,643) $ (30,221) $ (11,038) 
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Combining Statements 
Agency Funds 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Service Center as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, and other governments. A description of the Service Center's agency funds follows: 

Service Center Agency 

To account for those assets held by the Service Center for school districts that participate in a variety of 
programs. Control of these funds rests solely with the members of each program. The Service Center acts 
as the fiscal agent of the funds. 

Employee Benefits 

To account for those assets held by the Service Center as an agent for individuals. Assets held include 
items related to payroll transactions. 

/ 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities 
Agency Funds 
June 30, 2014 

Service Total 
Center Employee Agency 
Agency Benefits Funds 

Assets 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 161,671 $ 1,339 $ 163,010 
Intergovernmental Receivable 1,010 0 1,010 

Total Assets $ 162,681 $ 1,339 $ 164,020 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable $ 7,420 $ 0 $ 7,420 
lntergovermnental Payable 0 1,339 1,339 
Undistributed Monies 155,261 0 155,261 

Total Liabilities $ 162,681 $ 1,339 $ 164,020 
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Sumn1it County Educational Service Center 

Summit County, Ohio 
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

All Agency Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Beginning Ending 
Balance 7/1/13 Additions Deductions Balance 6/30/14 

Service Center Agency 
Assets: 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 144,452 $ 69,004 $ 51,785 $ 161,671 
Receivables: 

Intergovernmental 7,140 1,010 7,140 1,010 
_Total Assets $ 151,592 $ 70,014 $ 58,925 $ 162,681 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $ 0 $ 7,420 $ 0 $ 7,420 
Undistributed Monies 151,592 17,219 13,550 155,261 
Total Liabilities $ 151,592 $ 24,639 $ 13,550 $ 162,681 

Employee Benefits 
Assets: 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 419 $ 920 $ 0 $ 1,339 
Total Assets $ 419 $ 920 $ 0 $ 1,339 

Liabilities: 
Intergovernmental Payable $ 419 $ 920 $ 0 $ 1,339 
Total Liabilities $ 419 $ 920 $ 0 $ 1,339 

Total - All Agency Funds 

Assets: 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 144,871 $ 69,924 $ 51,785 $ 163,010 
Receivables: 

Intergovernmental 7,140 1,010 7,140 1,010 
Total Assets $ 152,011 $ 70,934 $ 58,925 $ 164,020 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $ 0 $ 7,420 $ 0 $ 7,420 
Intergovernmental Payable 419 920 0 1,339 
Undistributed Monies 151,592 17,219 13,550 155,261 
Total Liabilities $ 152,011 $ 25,559 $ 13,550 $ 164,020 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Summit County Educational Service Center's (Service Center) comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed infonnation as a context for understanding what the infonnation in the financial statements, note disclosures, and 
required supplementary infonnation says about the Service Center's overall financial health. 

Statistical Section Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend infonnation to help the reader understand how 
the Service Center's financial perfonnance has changed over tin1e. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain infonnation to help the reader assess the affordability of 
the Service Center's most significant local revenue source, "charges for services". 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within the Seivice Center's financial activities take place. 

Operating 

These schedules contain service data to help the reader understand how the 
infonnation in the Service Center's financial report relates to the services the Service Center 
provides and the activities perfonned. 

Debt Inforn1ation 

This schedule presents infonnation to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the Seivice Center's current levels of outstanding debt 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Net Position by Co1nponents 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2014 2013 2012 2011 

Governmental Activities: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 1,025,871 $ 1,000,298 $ 956,194 $ 947,583 
Restricted 398,572 106,979 333,572 377,913 
Unrestricted 6,304,560 6,193,617 6,052,372 6,581,550 

Total Governmental Activities 
Net Position $ 7,729,003 $ 7,300,894 $ 7,342,138 $ 7,907,046 

Primarv Government: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 1,025,871 $ 1,000,298 $ 956,194 $ 947,583 
Restricted 398,572 106,979. 333,572 377,913 
Unrestricted 6,304,560 6,193617 6,052,372 6,581,550 

Total Primaiy Government 
Net Position $ 7,729,003 $ 7,300,894 $ 7,342,138 $ 7,907,046 

Source: FY2005- FY2014 Service Center Audit Reports 
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

$ 934,281 $ 957,966 $ 956,526 $ 993,685 $ 1,022,788 $ 234,052 
673,040 471,531 1,864,256 272,331 166,267 212,594 

6,797,030 6,511,875 4,873,940 4,904,129 4,051,896 4,733,283 

$ 8,404,351 $ 7,941,372 $ 7,694,722 $ 6,170,145 $ 5,240,951 $ 5,179,929 

$ 934,281 $ 957,966 $ 956,526 $ 993,685 $ 1,022,788 $ 234,052 
673,040 471,531 1,864,256 272,331 166,267 212,594 

6,797,030 6,511,875 4,873,940 4,904,129 4,051 896 4,733,283 

$ 8,404,351 $ 7,941,372 $ 7,694,722 $ 6,170,145 $ 5,240,951 $ 5,179,929 
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Su1nmit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Changes In Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Primary Government; 
Expenses: 
Governmental Activities: 
Jnstrt1ction: 

Reg11!ar 
Special 
Voc:ational 
Adult/Continuing 

Support Services: 
Pupils 
Instructional Slaff 
Board ofGovernors 
Administration 
Fiscal 
Business 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 
Pupil Transportation 
Central 

Operation ofNon-Inslluctional Services 
Extracurricular Activities 
Interesl and fiscal charges 

Total Governmental Activities - Expenses 

Program Revenues: 
Governmental Activities: 
Chargdfor Services and Sales: 
lrlstruction: 

Regular 
Speeial 
Vocational 
Adult/Continuing 

Support Services: 
Pupils 
Instructional Staff 
Board of Governors 
Administration 
Fiscal 
Business 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 
Central 

Extracurricular 
Operoling Gron ts and Contributions: 
Instruction: 

Reg11lar 
Special 
Adu!tfContin11ing· 

St1pport Services: 
Pupils 
Instructional Staff 
Administration 
Fiscal 
Operation and M_aintenance of Plant 
Central 

Ope1ation ofNon-Inslrnctional Services 

2014 

996,270 
5,026,161 

89,261 
0 

3,480,941 
4,130,917 

49,984 
1,008,675 

307,756 
33,365 

526,689 
0 

67,707 
0 

48,911 
34,948 

15,801,585 

471,218 
5,544,529 

75,522 
0 

3,359,445 
l,566,055 

0 
~25,693 

265,909 
13,411 

325,544 
49,421 
31,172 

202,009 
0 

97,546 
1,831,653 

64,400 
118,656 
188,599 

6,316 
0 

14,637,098 Total Governmental Activities Program Revem1es ---~==~ 

Net (expense)/revenue 

Ge1ieral Reve1111y and 0/her Changes in Ngt Pgs/lion 
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted 

to Specific Programs 
Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

To/a/ Governmental Acfivities 

Change in Net Posifiw· 
Governmental Activities 

Source: FY2005 - FY2014 Service Center A11dil Reports 

(1,164,487) 

1,588,760 
3,736 

100 
1,592 596 

' 428,109 

2013 (J) 

' 546,062 
6,756,094 

68,790 
0 

3,754,776 
4,449,228 

56,629 
J,OU,927 

315,483 
32,837 

561,598 
0 

123,273 
0 

56,208 
37,763 

17,772,668 

43,549 
6,395,013 

24,417 
0 

3,414,118 
1,632,620 

0 
653,681 
267,505 

14,929 
359,113 

76,205 
46,705 

7,608 
225,082 

0 

62,245 
1,749,760 

1,722 
100,818 
142,704 

48,447 
0 

15266241 

(2,506,421) 

2,458,618 
5,669 

600 
2 464 887 

' ~411540~ 

(1) Excludes the activities of fonds reported in the general fond with the reclassification of a fond to private purpose trust. 
Amount was not significant and would not impact the analysis. 

99 

2012 2011 

' 867,600 923,978 
5,771,610 4,327,833 

15,995 88,980 
0 0 

3,649,489 3,136,536 
4,622,772 4,250,972 

68,640 59,229 
647,737 706,592 
345,505 317,541 

56,890 47,809 
388,307 316,129 

0 0 
193,07? 200,088 

0 0 
57 ,482 56,002 
40,472 43 172 

16,785,576 14,474,861 

488,860 541,225 
4,926,528 3,362,495 

61,149 69,192 
0 0 

3,065,263 2,464,636 
1,636,128 1,797,166 

10,065 48,073 
331,676 539,361 
272,678 113,086 

11,154 35,863 
222,971 240,878 
133,655 132,324 
46,902 44,125 

303,486 210,085 
106,355 129,913 

0 0 

63,797 54,383 
1,862,649 1,771,441 

56 23,644 
4,831 86,332 

62,936 60,067 
33,473 6,506 

0 0 
13 750,612 11,730 795 

(3,034,9M) (2,7H,066) 

2,448,486 2,351,492 
6,361 9,617 

15,209 314 
2 470,056 2,361 423 

s ~564,908) ps2643~ 



2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2,005 

' 913,601 ' 605,811 540,996 ' 369,429 ' 349,962 ' 209,664 

3,812,318 3,373,034 2,998,717 2,904,473 2,359,153 1,923,412 

69,889 65,783 60,090 58,931 56,693 53,325 

0 1,550 1,21S 1,888 4,739 3,843 

2,993,203 2,883,336 2,964,052 2,586,241 2,413,522 1,946,972 

4,187,584 4,624,215 3,204,321 2,284,496 2,256,066 2,183,010 

87,926 60,635 69,199 SS,669 58,371 28,563 

810,933 1,226,557 1,332,565 846,333 778,517 813,310 

457,431 332,287 307,573 270,6-05 249,872 236,049 

32,585 42,141 42,678 63,513 45,152 50,286 

395,811 427,400 210,114 123,790 106,250 142,367 

0 0 226,744 0 0 0 
2l0,520 253,570 12,696 248,083 207,542 433,416 

13,000 0 0 0 0 0 
21,865 43,959 1,778 19,638 13,166 20,304 

46,230 49 229 0 2,299 1,545 1 051 

14,052,896 13,989,507 11,972,738 9,835,388 8,900,550 8,045,572 

673,409 415,158 300,784 161,796 121,485 106,586 

3,202,215 2,755,621 2,342,484 2,312,742 1,737,617 1,535,977 

66,643 60,088 50,568 145,649 109,360 95,948 

0 0 0 6,156 4,622 4,055 

2,633,798 2,501,179 2,369,294 1,736,SH 1,303,883 1,160,980 

1,641,917 1,453,927 1,463,840 J,287,488 966,602 844,990 

23,853 0 58,051 2,198 1,650 1,448 

393,634 506,014 523,350 1,088,987 817,664 717,389 

298,316 260,372 225,858 40,654 30,525 26,781 

1,699 4,128 34,815 3,078 2,31 l 2,028 

115,736 105,538 109,400 4,837 3,632 3,186 

152,931 192,978 157,361 231,928 174,141 162,237 

20,685 40,358 0 0 0 0 

145,642 218,379 219,603 94,038 459,995 0 
ll9,951 41,671 149,113 181,428 218,335 394,094 

0 0 1,222 0 0 0 

63,038 97,383 123,746 0 29,299 154,037 

2,2ll,428 2,472,629 1,134,960 384,365 121,223 210,792 

71,438 374,738 986,919 281,165 0 0 
133,739 43,367 16,810 0 0 0 
167,923 193,768 49,022 0 0 0 
38,182 3,000 0 3,000 - 482 354 
12,168 0 0 0 0 0 

12 211,545 11140,896 10917200 7 966,056 6 102 826 5 420 882 

(1,841,351) (2,248,611) (1,055,538) (I,869,332) (2,797,724) (2,624,690) 

2,290,684 2,406,256 2,302,630 2,441,160 2,487,564 2,579,711 

13,151 65,048 228,310 329,136 255,665 126,759 

489 23 957 49,115 28 230 115,517 24293 

2,304,330 2,495 261 2 580 ll5 2 198 526 2,858,146 2,730 823 

' 461,919 ' 246650 ' l 524 577 ' 929 194 ' 61,022 ' 106,133 



Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

General Fund 

Unreserved 
Reserved 
Assigned 
Unassigned 
Total fund balance 

All Other Governmental Funds 

Fund balance, reserved 
Fund balance, unreserved-reported in: 
Special revenue funds 
Capital project funds 

Restricted 
Unassigned 

Total fund balance 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June30,2014 

$ 0 
0 

63,090 
4,109,548 

$ 4,172,638 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2014 

$ 0 

0 
0 

97,381 
(42,418) 

$ 54,963 

Source: FY2005 - FY2014 Service Center Audit Report 

Restated 
Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 

$ 0 
0 

53,871 
4,705,544 

$ 4,759,415 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2013 

$ 0 

0 
0 

99,168 
(1,759) 

$ 97,409 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2012 

$ 0 
0 

50,155 
4,305,462 

$ 4,355,617 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2012 

$ 0 

0 
0 

49,934 
(188,612) 

$ (138,678) 

NOTE: Flmd Balance classifications changed with the implementation of GASB Statement# 54 in fiscal year 2011 
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Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2011 

$ 0 
0 

56, 747 
6,046,993 

$ 6,103,740 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2011 

$ 0 

0 
0 

92,808 

$ 
(195,023) 
(102,215) 



Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2010 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 

$ 0 $ 5,046,947 $ 5,300,862 $ 4,013,583 $ 3,874,349 $ 4,208,418 
0 90,147 130,629 133,345 80,720 l! 1,428 

35,566 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
5,393,947 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

$ 5,429,513 $ 5,137,094 $ 5,431,491 $ 4,146,928 $ 3,955,069 $ 4,319,846 

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2010 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 

$ 0 $ 81,920 $ 447,043 $ 111,352 $ 16,904 $ 1,141 

0 342i351 (71,835) 160,973 149,363 209,966 
0 2,243 1,231,224 0 0 0 

269,620 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
0 NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 

$ 269,620 $ 426,514 $ 1,606,432 $ 272,325 $ 166,267 $ 21!,107 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
General Governmental Revenues by Source and Expenditures by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 (1) June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 

Revenues: 
Intergovenunental $ 3,810,452 $ 5,142,393 $ 5,317,018 $ 4,798,963 
Investtnent Income 3,736 5,669 6,361 9,617 
Tuition and fees 3,823,612 5,051,826 1,608,558 2,989,405 
Gifts and donations 2,600 0 599 0 
Charges for services 7,899,943 8,491,724 8,352,304 7,412,298 
Miscellaneous 5,920 2,566 15,207 6,863 

Total revenues 15,546,263 18,694,178 15,300,047 15,217,146 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instruction: 
Regular 998,698 543,923 873,398 924,067 
Special 5,025,815 6,748,033 5,755,354 4,317,750 
Vocational 89,148 69,135 75,5iO 88,926 
Adult/continuing 0 0 0 0 

Support services: 
Pupils 3,526,026 3,754,038 3,658,288 3,171,368 
Instructional staff 4,196,284 4,502,347 4,693,692 4,337,367 
Board of Governors 49,984 56,629 68,640 59,229 
Administration 997,252 918,948 619,275 729,115 
Fiscal 418,076 432,623 467,530 460,589 
Business 33,335 32,874 56,875 45,163 
Operation and maintenance of plant 615,403 645,956 449,129 411,552 
Central 66,622 123,943 199,228 198, 113 

Operation ofNon-Instructional Services 0 0 0 0 
Extracurricular activities 48,911 56,208 57,782 55,936 

Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 74,984 72,169 69,460 72,407 
Interest and fiscal charges 34,948 37,763 40,472 43,172 

Total expenditures 16,175,486 18,054,589 17,084,633 14,914,754 

Excess of Revenues. Over (Under) 
. Expenditures (629,223) 639,589 (1,784,586) 302,392 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Inception of capital lease 0 0 0 0 
Proceeds from lease-purchase agreement 0 0 0 0 
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0 
Net change in fund balance $ (629,223) $ 639,589 $ (1,184,586) $ 302,392 

Debt SerVice as a Percentage of 
Noncapital Expenditures 0.7% 0.6% 0.6% 0.8o/o 

Source: FY2005 · FY2014 Service Center Audit Reports 
(1) Excludes the activities of funds reported in the general fund with the reclassifjcation of a fund to private purpose trust. 

Amount was not significant and would not impact the analysis. 
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Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 201 0 June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 

$ 5,043,267 $ 6,064,539 $ 5,292,136 $ 3,383,717 $ 3,318,493 $ 3,355,470 
13,151 65,048 228,370 329,136 255,665 126,759 

1,621,441 1,021,296 1,633,981 622,444 1,046,086 883,945 
13,330 0 9,200 804 1,598 3,150 

7,559,568 6,596,537 6,057,338 5,806,717 4,595,247 3,824,549 
2,651 22,235 94,670 29,670 115,515 21,143 

14,253,420 13,769,655 13,315,695 10,172,488 9,332,604 8,215,016 

912,216 605,374 540,400 368,142 336,401 207,839 
3,790,998 3,356,855 2,988,392 2,897,878 2,349,568 2,020,576 

69, 782 65,496 59,943 58,788 56,434 52,865 
0 1,550 1,215 1,888 4,139 3,843 

2,995, 724 2,912,098 2,949,490 2,573,179 2,439,096 1,945,466 
4,158,601 4,622,372 3,194,039 2,301,966 2,243,598 2,215,781 

81,926 60,635 69,199 55,669 58,311 47,806 
793,852 1,215,504 1,329,878 868,685 799,131 805,641 
452, 161 329,721 306,580 307,i81 271,289 238,834 

31,755 39,721 38,642 60,158 44,615 51,649 
345,834 382,724 118,173 97,064 951,316 121),368 
208,469 256,179 247,015 245,841 209,720 419,619 

13,000 0 0 0 0 0 
21,631 43,959 12,725 19,628 13,156 20,295 

0 1,230,858 0 0 0 0 

74,994 71,995 9,514 8,993 12,203 11,665 
46,230 49,229 1,118 2,299 1,545 1,051 

14,003,233 15,244,270 11,927,583 9,874,571 9,191,308 8,163,298 

250,181 (1,414,615) 1,388,112 297,911 (458,104) 51,718 

0 0 0 0 49,081 0 
0 0 1,230,858 0 0 0 
0 0 1,230,858 0 49,087 0 

$ 250,181 $ (1,414,615) $ 2,618,970 $ 297,917 $ (409,617) $ 51,718 

0.9% 0.9% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Sumff1it County, Ohio 
Largest Own Revenue Source· Charges for Services 
Current Year and Nine Years Prior 

o/o OfThe 
Fiscal Year Total Largest 

2014 {I) Own Revenue 
Source Amount Source 

Preschool Excess Costs $ 2,743,659 23o/o 
School Foundation Basic Allowance 1,525,165 13o/o 
Kids First Autism 735,145 6% 
Copley-Fairlawn School District 661,306 5% 
Greater Summit County Early Leaming 601,771 5% 
Preschool State Units 539,884 4% 
Barberton School District 500,806 4% 
Nordonia Hills School District 412,965 3% 
Green Local School District 403,368 3% 
Cuyahoga Falls School District 374,744 3% 

Total Top Payers/Users of Services 8,498,813 70% 

Total Charges for Services (2) $ 12,127,919 

Most significant services provided to member districts (3}· 

Source 

School Foundation Basic Allowance 
Preschool Excess Costs 
Psychological Services 
Foundation Preschool Units 
Copley-Fairlawn School District 
Cuyahoga Falls School District 
Revere School District 
C & I Contracted Services 
Green School District 
Cuyahoga Valley Christian Academy 

Total Charges for Services (2) · 

Services provided by the Service Center to member districts interested in our assistance include: 
*staffing services 
•curriculum imd instruction consultation 
*psychological services 
•special education consultation 
*speech and language supervision/consultation 
*work study supervisor 

(I) Cash collections for the fiscal year. 
(2) 2005 - 2014 is reported for governmental activities using the accrual basis of accounting. 

Fiscal Year 
2005 (1) 
Amount 

$ 1,568,712 
580,674 
494,482 
481,604 
447,623 
408,786 
336,334 
297,667 
252,135 
179,540 

5,047,557 

$ 6,668 670 

(3) There is no direct rate applied to this revenue source. The fees for these revenues vary from service to seivice provided 
and vary by member districts who request the seivices. 

Source: Service Center's financial records. 

11i15 

0/o OfThe 
Total Largest 
Own Revenue 

Source 

22% 
9% 
7% 
7% 
7% 
6% 
5% 
4% 
4% 
3% 

75% 



Sum111it County Educatio11al Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Demographic and Economic Indicators 
Most Recent Year Available and Nine Year's Prior 

2004 
Civilian labor force in county 286,800 
Unemployed in county 17,400 
Unemployment rate in county 6.1% 
Unemployment rate - Ohio 6.2% 

Ten Largest Employers in Summit County as of December 31, 2013 

Nature of Activity 
Employer or Business 

Summa Health System Medical 
FirstMerit Corporation Banking 
Akron General Health .System Medical 
Akron Children's Hospital Medical 
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company Rubber Products 
Summit County Government 
Akron Public School Education 
University of Akron High Education 
First Energy Corporation Utilities 
Sterling Jewelers Inc. Corporate Headquarters 

Ten Largest Employers in Summit County as·ofDecember 31, 2004 

Nature of Activity 
Employer or Business 

Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company Rubber Products 
Akron General Medical Center Medical 
Akron Public Schools Education 
City of Akron Government 
First 'Energy Corporation Utilities 
Akron Children's H.ospital Medical 
Infocision Management Corporation Management 
Georgia Pacific Corporation Manufacturing 
FW Albrecht Grocery Corporation Grocery Store 
Babcock & Wilcox Company Engineering 

Source: County of Summit/Ohio CAFR 

llil6 

2013 
280,300 
20,000 

7.1% 
7.4% 

Approximate 
Number of Percent of 
Employees Total Employed 

11,000 4.23% 
4,894 1.88% 
3,843 1.48% 
3,220 1.24% 
3,000 1.15% 
2,969 1.14% 
2,827 l.09% 
2,622 LO l o/o 
2,500 0.96% 
2,300 0.88% 

Approximate 
Number of Percent of 
Employees Total Employed 

4,700 1.76% 
3,670 1.38% 
3,500 1.31% 
2,581 0.97% 
2,300 0.86°/o 
2,081 0.78% 
1,864 0.70% 
1,800 0.67% 
1,500 0.56%' 
1,100 0.41% 



. Summit County Educational Service Center 
Sufftmit County, Ohio 

Demographic and Economic Indicators (Continued) 
Most J;lecent Year Available and Nine Year's Prior 

2013 2004 Personal Tax Returns 

Total District Per Capita Total District Per Capita 
School District (1) Personal Income Personal Income Personal Income Personal Income 

Barberton CSD $ 409,528,174 $ 36,225 $ 381,544,420 $ 31,782 
Copley~Fairlawn CSD 901,183,425 81,570 674,670,734 
Coventry LSD 319,086,640 49,113 281,671,068 
Cuyahoga Falls CSD 1,016,348,748 47,407 871,758,583 
Green LSD 881,054,208 69,665 617,620,317 
Hudson CSD 1,679,763,222 147,102 1,336,509,915 
Manchester LSD 227,092,800 51,800 198,956,445 
Mogadore LSD 89,613,702 44,015 80,560,281 
Nordonia Hills CSD 1,080,295,127 63,547 835,263,861 
Norton CSD 339,337,594 50,183 296,584,443 
Revere LSD 1,534,065,332 157,163 1,246,960,160 
Springficild LSD 385,976,406 44,396 323,609,070 
Stow-Munroe Falls CSD 1,266,942,169 62,479 1,060,177,070 
Tallmadge CSD 493,184,763 56,773 409,924,849 
Twinsburg CSD 872,746,012 69,664 636,086,035 
Woodridge LSD 650,014,847 73,274 460,266,316 

Average personal income $ 759,139,573 

Source: Ohio Department of Taxation 

(1) Member district income was deemed relevant information. Employer and En1ployee income does not directly effect 
the Service Cente_r's largest own revenue source. However, it is deemed to indirectly effect ii. The financial stability of the 
member district's tias a direct effect on the services ttiey request from the Service Center, thus effecting the Service Center's 
largest own revenue source. 
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66,431 
42,211 

40,587 
53,363 

119,438 
43,746 
40,080 
53,310 
43,481 

138,305 
36,703 
52,911 
49,418 
57,668 
59,183 



Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 

Expenditures Per Average Daily Membership (ADM) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(1) FY2005-FY2014 accrual basis expenses are provided. All provided by Service Center Audit Reports. 
(2) Source: Annual Financial Report of the Board of Governors (ADU/ODE 4502 reports) 
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Summit County Educational Service .Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Average Daily Membership (ADM) of All School Districts Served 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Ended.June 30 2014 2013 2012 

ADM 49,574 48,826 50,710 

Percent Change 1.53% -3.72% -1.72% 

2011 2010 2009 

51,600 52,345 52,912 

-1.42% -1.07% 0.00% 

Average Daily Membership (ADM) of All School Districts Served 

53,500 
53,000 
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52,912 52,483 
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2006 

52,681 

-0.42% 
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2005 

52,902 

-0.47% 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Miscellaneous Statistics · School Districts Served 
Last Three Fiscal Years (1) 

Barberton City School District CoEley·Fairlawn Cit~ School District 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 

Fall Enrollment 3,739 3,739 3,676 3,069 3,062 3,156 

Demographic Data: 
Average Income $25,674 $24,583 $24,583 $45,348 $45,348 $43,434 
Revenue/Pupil $11,742 $11,252 $11,396 $11,605 $11,173 $10,548 
Local% 31.3% 29.3o/o 25.7% 79.0% 77.1% 74.4% 
State% 54.2% 55.7% 54.9% 17.3% 19.6% 20.9% 

Federal% 14.So/o 15.0% 19.4% 3.7% 3.3% 4.7o/o 

Fiscal Data: 

Effective Mills 52.66 59.74 58.57 61.67 64.52 57.67 
Average Teacher Salary $58,219 $57,603 $57,857 $61,337 $61,843 $63,489 

Staff Data: 
Staff Attendance Rate 94.50 95.90 95.20 95.50 95.40 94.60 
Number of Teachers 237.00 267.00 273.50 156.83 198.00 194.60 
Studenttreacher Ratio 17.19 14.01 1344 20.94 15.47 16.22 

Output: 
Pupil Attendance Rate 93.30 92.60 93.30 96.30 95.00 95.00 
Graduation Rate 83.00 86.40 91.90 93.80 95.30 98.50 

Nordonia Hills City School District Norton Ci!}:: School District 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 

Fall Enrolhnent 3,720 3,626 3,979 2,467 2,427 2,543 

Demographic Data: 
Average Income $43,329 $45,329 $41,631 $35,812 $35,812 $33,898 
Revenue/Pupil $12,008 $11,034 $9,405 $8,996 $8,534 $8,155 
Local% 72.2o/o 64.1% 64.9% 58.0% 54.6% 54.0% 
State% 23.3% 30.9% 30.9% 37.2% 38.9% 40.6% 
Federal% 4.5% 5.0% 4.2% 4.8% 6.4% 5.4% 

Fiscal Data: 
Effective Mills 67.30 63.26 60.86 58.80 61.80 54.85 
Average Teacher Salary $62,764 $63,557 $58,962 $53,183 $53,914 $55,434 

Staff Data: 
Staff Attendance Rate 95.40 95.60 94.10 95.70 95.60 95.70 
Number of Teachers 200.62 206.00 235.60 128.63 147.00 149.70 
Studentffeacher Ratio 19.20 17.61 16.89 19.17 16.51 16.99 

Output: 
Pupil Attendance Rate 96.20 95.00 95.00 95.00 94.70 95.00 
Graduation Rate 96.40 94.60 96.20 93.30 96.86 96.10 

NOTE: It has been determined 10 years of data would be too cumbersome for CAFR reporting. 
Information can be obtained from the Educational Service Center TreaSurer's office as needed. 

Source: Ohio Department of Education, Summit County Fiscal Officer, Ohio Department of Taxation 

(I) Information is not available for fiscal year 2014 due to this year still being under audit for some schools. 
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Coventry Local School District Cuyahoga Falls City School District Green Local School District 
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 20ll 2013 2012 20ll 

2,274 2,131 2,239 4,840 4,871 4,721 4,026 3,928 4,167 

$32,752 $32,752 $31,383 $32,361 $32,361 $31,599 $38,891 $38,891 $37,360 
$9,375 $9,622 $9,270 $10,650 $10,012 $9,496 $9,616 $8,538 $7,784 

70.8% 70.0% 65.5% 62.8% 62.0% 60.1% 60.8% 56.9% 52.9% 
22.4% 22.6% 25.7% 30.8% 33.7o/o 35.2% 34.7% 38.0% 40.lo/o 
6 .. 8% 7.3% 8.7% 6.4% 4.4% 4.8% 4.5% 5.1% 1.0o/o 

77.87 59.74 70.56 69.08 69.92 68.09 43.62 46.54 63.84 

$52,573 $50,080 $50,463 $52,654 $53,694 $54,663 $57,507 $56,463 $56,761 

94.70 94.10 94.60 95.50 93.70 94.20 93.40 94.00 94.10 
ll3.24 141.00 142.30 276.26 324.00 315.10 220.54 23 l.OO 238.00 
20.08 15.12 15.73 17.86 15.Q4 14.98 19.07 17.01 17.51 

94.40 94.20 94.70 95.10 94.80 95.00 95.80 95.00 95.00 
96.60 95.50 95.00 89.50 91.70 96.40 95.60 93.80 96.60 

Revere Local School District Springfield Local School District Stow-Munroe Falls City School District 
2013 2012 20ll 2013 2012 20ll 2013 2012 20[[ 

2,573 2,539 2,708 2,334 2,219 2,364 5,080 5,016 5,345 

$59,ll4 $59,114 $55,664 $30,373 $30,373 $29,306 $39,792 $39,792 $38,705 

$13,775 $12,778 $11,485 $12,069 $12,046 $ll,33 l $11,662 $10,479 $9,715 
80.4% 75.9% 75.2% 50.9% 51.4% 49.4% 64.5% 61.2% 58.9% 
16.9% 20.9% 21.1% 40.5% 40.0% 40.4% 3 L5o/o 35.3% 35.6% 
2.7% 3.2% 3.7% 8.6% 8.5% 10.1% 4.0% 3.4% 5.5% 

61.92 63.26 68.05 51.46 56.84 73.09 52.89 53.55 69.21 
$67,891 $67,940 $69,030 $60,935 $62,321 $61,842 $62,515 $62,683 $63,502 

95.20 95.10 95.70 93.60 94.40 94.60 95.20 94.80 94.90 

150.91 175.00 173.70 149.19 137.00 134.40 244.53 299.00 319.00 
17.94 14.51 B.59 16.79 16.20 17.59 21.48 16.78 17.l 7 

96.60 95.00 95.00 93.50 94.00 93.90 95.70 95.00 95.00 
99.10 97.80 99.60 94.60 93.40 92.70 95.10 96.20 98.50 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Miscellaneous Statistics -School Districts Served 
Last Three Fiscal Years (1) 

Hudson City School District Manchester Local School District 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 

Fall Enrollment 4,490 4,489 4,622 1,393 1,321 1,480 

DemograQhic Data: 
Average Income $69,030 $69,030 $64,018 $35,326 $35,326 $33,877 
Revenue/Pupil $14,357 $13,196 $12,580 $10,321 $8,918 $8,429 

Local% 69.1% 65.0% 63.5% 49.5°/o 47.5% 45.0% 
State% 27.3% 32A% 32.3% 45.8% 47.6% 47.9% 
Federal% 3.6% 2.6% 4.2% 5.0% 4.9% 7.1% 

Fiscal Data: 
Effective Mills 86.93 91.24 74.66 67.28 63.93 68.35 
Average Teacher Salary $73,313 $74,987 $72,901 $52,639 $52,438 $52,190 

St<iffData: 
Staff Attendance Rate 95.40 95.20 95.40 96.40 96.10 . 95.40 

Number of Teachers 258.91 291.00 321.40 60.78 81.00 81.40 
Studentffeacher Ratio 17.88 15.43 14.38 22.91 16.31 18.18 

Output 
Pupil Attendance-Rate 96.30 95.00 95.00 95.70 95.00 95.00 
Graduation Rate 96.10 97.90 99.10 97.60 94.70 92.20 

Tallmadge City School District Twinsburg City School District 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 

Fall Enrollment 2,450 2,440 2,581 4,232 4,179 4,237 

DemograJ;!hic Data: 
Average Income $35,896 $35,896 $34,851 $45,487 $45,487 $44,966 
Revenue/Pupil $10,881 $10,288 $10,181 $10,055 $9,680 $9,619 
Local% 57.2% 55.3% 55.4% 65.2% 60.5% 60.0% 
State% 38.7% 39.5% 39.9% 30.7% 35.5% '34.7% 
Federal o/o 4.1% 5.2o/o 4.7% 4.1% 4.0% 5.3% 

Fiscal Data: 
Effective Mills 66.26 72.99 68.41 63.00 66.31 64.09 
Average Teacher Salary $57,676 $59,565 $62,673 $71,162 $67,755 $65,612 

Staff Data: 
Staff Attendance Rate 96.20 95.50 96.80 94.00 94.40 94.00 
Number of Teachers 155.05 153.00 162.90 202.63 233.00 239.20 
Student/Teacher Ratio 16.83 15.95 15.84 21.40 17.94 17.71 

Output: 
Pupil Attendance Rate 95.90 95.00 95.00 96.60 95.00 95.00 
Graduation Rate 96.00 94.40 93.80 96.80 94.80 98.60 

NOTE: It has been determined 10 years of data would be too cumbersome for CAFR reporting. 
Information can be obtail).ed from the Educational Service Center Treasurer's office as needed. 

Source: Ohio Department of Education, Summit County Fiscal Officer, Ohio Department of Taxation 

(I) Information is not available for fiscal year 2014 due to this year still being under audit for some schools. 
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Mogadore Local School District 
2013 2012 20ll 

912 869 907 

$32,204 $32,204 $31,984 
$10,125 $8,907 $8,989 

53.0% 50.2o/o 45.5% 
43.3% 45.1% 48.9% 

3.7% 4.7% 5.6% 

76.99 81.72 66.40 
$64,028 $64,750 $61,414 

95.00 90.00 93.30 
51.06 56.00 58.50 
17.84 15.52 15.50 

95.50 95.00 95.00 
94.70 90.60 96.10 

Woodridge Local School District Tota\JHi~hest/Lowest All Districts Served 
2013 2012 20ll 2013 2012 2011 

1,975 l,970 l,985 49,574 48,826 50,710 

!l.igh Low High Low High Low 
$33,394 $33,394 $32,630 $69,030 $25,674 $69,030 $24,583 $ 64,018 $ 24,583 
$!1,955 $ll,379 $11,068 $14,357 $8,996 $13,196 $8,534 $ 12,580 $ 7,784 

72.8% 67.8% 69.7% 80.4% 31.3% 77.1% 29.3% 75.2% 25.7% 
2.1% 26.3% 23.6% 54.2o/o 2.1% 55.7% 19.6% 54.9% 20.9% 
5.8%1 5.9% 6.7% 14.5% 2.7%) 15.0% 2.6% 19.4% 3.7% 

57.64 61.81 69.81 86.93 43.62 91.24 46.54 74.66 54.85 
$62,405 $59,650 $59,0ll $73,313 $52,573 $74,987 $50,080 $ 72,901 $ 50,463 

94.80 93.50 94.30 96.40 93.40 96.10 90.00 96.80 93.30 
115.62 125.00 129.40 276.26 51.06 324.00 56.00 321.40 58.50 

17.73 15.76 15.34 22.91 16.79 17.94 14.01 18.18 13.44 

95.60 95.00 95.00 96.60 93.30 95.00 92.60 95.00 93.30 
95.50 96.10 97.00 99.10 83.00 97.90 86.40 99.60 91.90 
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Summit County Educational Service Center 
Summit County, Ohio 
Number of Employees by Function/Program 
Last Nine Fiscal Years 

Governmental Employees by Function/Program (1) 

2014 2013 2012 2011 

Instruction: 
Regular 44 19 14 8 

Special 91 91 71 101 

Vocational 1 1 1 
Support Services: 

Pupils 75 75 69 58 

Instructional Staff 47 65 61 38 

Administration 40 30 29 12 

Fiscal 3 3 3 3 

Business 1 1 1 

Operation aud Maintenance of Plant 2 1 1 1 

Central 16 16 16 16 

Extracurricular 1 1 1 1 
Total employees 321 303 267 240 

(1) Represent total employees, whether full-time or part-time. 

NOTE: Information prior to 2006 was not available 

Source: Service Center payroll records 
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 

8 8 8 6 7 
101 96 96 104 95 

1 1 1 

58 55 55 56 42 
38 36 35 38 37 
12 12 12 JO 7 
3 3 3 3 3 
1 1 1 1 
I 1 2 1 1 

16 15 15 16 2 
1 I 1 1 

240 229 229 237 197 
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 337 $ 673 $ 1,009 

306,031 312,987 319,944 105,468 107,712 109,956 0 
361 3,235 7,771 12,411 17,464 22,518 27,891 

76,795 78,540 80,286 82,031 83,776 85,522 0 
26,179 30,390 39,529 26,657 32,687 30,339 25,969 

782,381 800,161 817,943 269,530 275,265 280,999 0 
6,665 10,729 14,790 18,853 9,938 11,406 17,728 

9,969 6,988 8,237 9,600 11,038 5,391 6,121 

0 2,634 7,901 7,901 10,535 0 0 

207,778 207,778 207,778 207,778 207,778 207,777 0 
535,618 547,790 559,965 128,905 131,648 134,390 0 
33,538 43,188 78,955 113,662 141,187 178,339 162,822 

0 0 0 0 104 255 405 

$ 1,985,315 $ 2,044,420 $ 2,143,099 $ 982,796 $ 1,029,469 $ 1,067,565 $ 241,945 
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Summit County Educational Service Center . 
Summit County, Ohio 

Ratio of Outstanding Debt to Personal Income and Debt per Member District 

Last Nine Fiscal Years 

Average 
Personal Percentage of Outstanding 

Income Per Total Debt Debt Per 
Capital Total Member to Personal Member 

Year Lease Debt District Income District 

2014 $ 821,119 $ 821,119 $ 759,139,573 0.11% $ 51,320 

2013 896,103 896,103 671,312,708 0.13% 56,006 

2012 968,272 968,272 643,929,184 0.15% 60,517 

2011 1,037,732 1,037,732 637,606,812 0.16% 64,858 

2010 1,110,139 1,110,139 654,388,941 0.17% 69,384 

2009 1,185,133 1,185,133 639,958,892 0.19% 74,071 

2008 1,257,128 1,257,128 639,958,892 0.20% 78,571 

2007 35,784 35,784 606,079,400 0.01% 2,237 

2006 44,777 44,777 607,010,035 0.01% 2,799 

Source: Ohio Department of Taxation 

Note: Information prior to 2006 was not available. 
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FIVE YEAR FORECAST 

FY15 -October, 2014 submission 
IRN No. 011381 

County: Summit 
Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 

Statement of Receipt, Disbursements, and Changes in Fund Cash Balances 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 through 2014, Actual and. 

the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 through 2019, Forecasted 

Actual Forecasted 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Ooerating Receipts 
State Foundation Payments (3110, 3211) $354,331.00 $595,418.00 $778,155.63 $846,642.45 $846,642.45 $846,642.45 $846,642.45 $846,642.45 
Charges for Services (1500) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Fees (1600, 1700) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Other(1830, 1840, 1850, 1860, 1870, 1890) $0.00 $6,136.00 $8,263.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 
Total Operating Receipts $354,331.00 $601,554.00 $786,418.63 $850,542.45 $850,642.45 $850,642.45 $850,642.45 $850,642.45 

O~erating Disbursements 
1 00 Salaries and Wages $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
200 Employee Retirement and Insurance Benefits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
400 Purchas Services $335, 192.00 $450,695.00 $711,879.08 $761, 736.94 $784,589.05 $808, 126.72 $832,370.52 $857,341.64 
500 Supplies and Materials $27,201.00 $8,193.00 $20,558.55 $8,000.00 $8,240.00 $8,487.20 $8.741.82 $9,004.07 
600 Capital Outlay -New $3, 120.00 $0.00 $675.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 
700 Capital Outlay - Replacement $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 cr> 
800 Other $818.00 $7,066.00 $1,450.00 $6,740.00 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 rl 

rl 

Total Operating Disbursements $366,331.00 $465,954.00 $734,562.63 $776,476.94 $800,829.05 $830,613.92 $849,112.34 $874,345.71 

Excess of Operating· Receipts Over (Under) 
Operating Disbursements -$12,000.00 $135,600.00 $51,856.00 $74, 165.51 $49,813.40 $20,028.53 $1,530.11 -$23,703.26 

Nono(!erating Receig:ts/(Disbursements} 
Federal Grants (all 4000 except fund 532) $27,871.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Federal Fiscal Stabilization Funds (SFSF) 0 0 0 )()()()()()( )()()()()()( )()()()()()( )()()()()()( )()()()()()( 

Ed Jobs xxxxxx 0 0 xxxxxx xxxxxx xxxxxx )()()()()()( )()()()()()( 

State Grants (3200, except 3211) 
Donations (1820) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Interest Income (1400) $150.00 $0.00 $296.08 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 
Debt Proceeds (1900) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Debt Principal Retirement $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Interest and Fiscal Charges $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Transfers - In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Transfers - Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Total Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses) $28,021.00 $0.00 $296.08 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 

Excess of Operating and Nonoperating Receipts 
Over/(Under) Operating and Nonoperating 
Disbursements $16,021.00 $135,600.00 $52,152.08 $74,465.51 $50,113.40 $20,328.53 $1,830.11 -$23,403.26 

Fund Cash Balance Beginning of Fiscal Year $57,260.00 $73,281.00 $208,885.00 $380,053.19 $454,518.70 $504,632.10 $524,960.63 $526,790.74 



FIVE YEAR FORECAST 

Actual 
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Fund Cash Balance End of Fiscal Year $73,281.00 $208,881.00 $261,037.08 $454,518.70 $504,632.10 

Disclosure Items for State Fiscal Stabilization Funds 

Personal ServiCes SFSF )()()()()()()() xxxxxxxxxx 
Employees Retirement/Insurance Benefits SFSF )()()()()()()()()()( )()()()()()()() 

Purchased Services SFSF )()()()()()()() xxxxxxxxxx 
Supplies and Materials SFSF xxxxxxxxxx )()()()()()()() 

Capital Outlay SFSF xxxxxxxxxx )()()()()()()() 

Total Expenditures - SDFSF $0 $0 $0 )()()()()()()() )()()()()()()() 

Assumptions: 

Forecasted 
Fiscal Year · Fiscal Year 

2017 2018 

$524,960.63 $526,790.74 

xxxxxxxxxx )()()()()()()() 

)()()()()()()() )()()()()()()() 

xxxxxxxxxx )()()()()()()() 

xxxxxxxxxx )()()()()()()() 

)()()()()()()() )()()()()()()() 

)()()()()()()() xxxxxxxxxx 

Fiscal Year 

2019 

$503,387.49 

)()()()()()()() 

xxxxxxxxxx 
xxxxxxxxxx 
)()()()()()()() 

)()()()()()()() 

)()()()()()()() 
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Date: 10/16/15 
Time: 9:40 am 

Account Number 
FUND FUNC OBJ sec 

FYTD 

SUBJ 

Appropriated 

001 2120 432 0000 000000 
o.oo 

001 2213 432 0000 000000 
o.oo 

OU IL JOB 
Prior FY 
Carryover 

Encumbrances 

835 00 000 
0 .oo 

835 00 000 
5,000.00 

Summit County ESC 
, Budget Account Summary 

SORTED BY FUND·SCC/OPU 

Description 

FYTD 
FYTO Actual 

Expendable Expenditures 

ALT, SCHOOL MILEAGE 
0. 00 0. 00 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
5,000.00 1,864.00 

*"***TOTAL FOR OPU 835 (PROPERTY SERVIC:ES) ! 
0. 00 5,000.00 5' 000. 00 1,864,00 

MTO 
Actual current 

Expenditures Encumbrances 

0.00 o. 00 

0.00 0. 00 

0. 00 0. 00 

Page: 
(BUDSUM) 

FYTO FYTD 
unencumbered Percent 

Balance Exp/Enc 

0. 00 o.oo 

3, 136.00 37. 28 

3, 136.00 37.28 
"""""""""''"=========================··""'"'"""""""""'""""""=============================================================="======="======= 

***"*TOTAL FOR FUNO·SCC 001 0000 (GENERAL FUND): 
Ex Tr/Ad o.oo 5,000.00 5,ooo.oo 
In Tr/Ad o.oo 5,ooo.oo 5,ooo.oo 

1,864.00 
1,864.00 

o.oo 
0. 00 

0. 00 
0. 00 

3, 136.00 
3, 136.00 

37.28 
37.28 

""'"'""""""""""""""'"""""'""''"'"""'"'"""""""""""""""""""""""""'""""""""""""""""""""'""""'"""""c::::::::=:=======:=="'""""=""""'"c::::z:c::::<=:::=:"""'"'"'" 

**"**GRANO TOTALS: 
Ex Tr/Ad 0.00 
Jn Tr/Ad o.oo 

5, 000. 00 
5,ooo.oo 

s,000.00 
5,000.00 

1,864.00 
1,864.00 

0,00 
0.00 

0. 00 
o. 00 

3, 136.00 
3, 136.00 

37.28 
37.28 

======================================""""'"'""""""""'"""'"""""""""""""""""'""'"""""""""""===:========,,==:::=================:======:==== 
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Section II 
Sponsor Application Process & Decision-Making 

Note: If vour ESC has not recently opened or planned to open a new school, and has not 
taken on or has no plans to take sponsorship of existing schools anvtime within the next 
two vears, skip this section 

7. Describe the application process that developers follow in seeking sponsorship from your 
organization. Include a timeline. n/a 

8. Describe all elements of the application, including documents that your organization 
requests from developers (please include all supporting documents, such as the 
application, rubric and interview guide and any links to the organization's website, if 
available). n/a 

9. Describe the criteria that your organization considers in reviewing applications for the 
replication of an existing school; for consideration of a currently operating school from 
another sponsor. n/a 

10. Describe the level of expertise of those who review applications, including existing staff 
and external sources. n/a 

11. Provide details of applications that were both approved and denied by your organization 
over the past five years, including reasons for both approvals and denials. [This question 
is for informational purposes only; it will not be scored.] n/a 

Section Ill 
Sponsor Performance Contracting 

ODE will review the performance contracting/accountability sections of each currently 
operating conversion community school under contract with your organization, comparing 
them to the expectations of quality sponsor practice as found in the Quality Rubric, 
Performance Contracting Section, items A through D. 

12. Describe your organization's process and the frequency for reviewing school performance 
against measures included in the contract on an annual basis. 
The Summit County Educational Service Center stays informed of the school's 
performance by regularly reviewing student data. For example, All SLO's and baseline 
data are compiled each year by September 3dh and then shared with the sponsor to 
ensure that instructional strategies are data driven per learner. All Third Grade Guarantee 
students that are reported to ODE as being "not on track" by September 3dh are reported 
to the sponsor and a letter that is sent home to parents is made available to the sponsor. 
The sponsor reviews the staff's HQT status and specifically as it applies to Third Grade 
Guarantee Legislation to ensure that the extended reading plans and monitoring of 
students not on track are being served by teachers that have reading endorsements and 
are highly qualified to deliver an intense reading plan that meets the learner at risk's 
developmental needs. The sponsor requests twice a year the classroom walkthrough 
data and the OTES evaluations of each credentialed teacher to ensure that at the 
educator level we are cultivatinq hi.oh performinq teachers and suooortinq each teacher 
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according to their current performance rating. The sponsor also connects intentionally 
with the governing board at monthly board meetings to stay updated as well as provide a 
sponsor's report to the governing authority, all of which supports continuous improvement 
as an organization. All meeting dates are given to the Sponsor, names, addresses, and 
phone numbers of the school's directors and officers and the meeting schedule of the 
schools Board of Directors are provided to the sponsor. In addition, the sponsor also 
reviews data from the school's annual parent survey results as a way to monitor 
satisfaction and goal setting. All standardized test data results are reviewed when they 
become available at the state level, and the Local Report Card performance data is 
shared among all staff and stakeholders in the oversight and monitoring process. The 
sponsor also monitors per contract that the school instructional learning formats and staff 
are preparing students as they leave for fifth grade by adhering to the goals, standards, 
and measurements as listed in the contract. The assurance are met by the sponsor 
reviewing data that progress toward targeted math and literacy skills and concepts as 
defined by the New National Standards are being met. We believe that the established 
practices and systemic support/structured participation of the sponsor, has supported the 
school in being awarded recognition based on performance data. The school has been 
recognized as Charter School of Ohio in 2013 and Honorary in 2014 based on their 
performance index of 111 and meeting 100% of all indicators receiving a Grade of A for 
two years now based on Ohio's new report card. The contract dictates that the sponsor 
review at a minimum on a semi-annual basis an evaluation of the academic and fiscal 
performance. Because of the participation in District Leadership Meetings and Board 
Meeting participation, the sponsor goes well beyond the contract requirement. (see 
attached school report card and student growth measures) 

13. Describe the breadth and scope of the performance measures set forth in the school(s)' 
contracts. Are these measures differentiated among contracts? If so, how and why? 
[Note: if your organization has revised its performance framework and the revised 
framework is not yet in use, please provide a copy.] 
One community school sponsorship contract exists with the Summit County Educational 
Service Center and its sole community school; the Greater Summit County Early Learning 
Center K-4. Exhibit 4 in the contract under Governance and Administrative Plan. The 
contract describes that a comprehensive plan that the school uses daily formative 
instructional practices and assessments to deliver a matched curriculum appropriate for 
each /earner's relevant data. It explains the timelines and framework in place that 
baseline data is collected prior to September 3(Jh and is used to determine achievement 
levels, inform all stakeholders (which includes the sponsor) of all students "not on track" 
and reported under the Third grade Reading Guarantee legislation requiring an extended 
reading plan be implemented. 
Also, the sponsor requires that a plan of improvement be submitted should the school fail 
to meet these minimum standards in attendance, academics, and finance. Baseline data , 
standardized data, Third Grade Guarantee data, attendance data, auditor reports, periodic 
cash flow statements and other relevant reports are reviewed by the sponsor at board 
meetings and ongoing monitoring monthly meetings, communication or visits by the 
sponsor representative, director and school's fiscal agent. Proficiency rates on state 
assessment is our strongest measure of evidence in place to ensure that the school is 
high performing and meeting what it set out to do. SLO's are in place and available to the 
sponsor by September 3dh when baseline data has been collected and then again 
reviewed on May 151

• All data related to student growth measures are 50% of each 
teacher's evaluation oerformance ratina. An attachment is orovided to show the timetines 
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listed within the sponsorship contract for performance measures/accountability in areas 
of: proficiency, student academic growth, attendance, and targets. 

14. Describe the performance standards and criteria a school must achieve in order for its 
contract to be renewed. 
The contract states that the Sponsor may non-renew if the school tails to meet student 
performance requirement stated in the contract, or if the school fails to meet generally 
accepted standards of fiscal management, or the school violates any of the provisions 
OHHIS contract or applicable state or federal law, or other good and just cause. Exhibit 1 
of the contract lists 15 goals that directly link to the demands of maintaining a school 
environment where learning is at the forefront. Goals 10-15 state the relationships that 
must exist between family and community, assessment of progress, new learning 
standards report card, student achievement, exemplary educational environment to serve 
as a clinical model for university pre-service teachers to learn from, and a model early 
childhood program that can be replicated across our county, state, nation, and world. The 
educational philosophy states that we are to deliver an innovative learning environment 
that has very high academic standards and offers a rigorous curriculum. In Exhibit 4 of 
the contract under Governance and Administrative Plan under Goals/Outcome regarding 
the Ohio Testing Programs, it states that the contract has set and overall attendance rate 
for the school of 93% or above and a student grade level passage rate of 90% or above. 
Also, if the school fails to meet the minimum standards prescribed by the state, it will 

. endeavor to achieve the annual yearly progress (A YP) specified in Ohio's State 
Accountability Plan. In the event the school fails to meet these requirements placed by 
the sponsor over a period of two consecutive years, the sponsor shall take steps to 
intervene in the school's operation to correct problems in overall performance, declare the 
school to be on a probationary status pursuant to section 3314.073 of the ORC, or 
TERMINATE the contract of the school pursuant to sections 3314.07 of the Ohio Revised 
Code as determined by the sponsor. Student assessment data is assessed continuously 
throughout the academic year in order to determine progress and next steps. Each of the 
last seven years, academic performance has been at the heart of school/sponsor 
accountability where a strong communication, monitoring, and transparency, have driven 
the success. This has served as a prevention model in making sure all decisions are data 
driven and all instructional delivery, curriculum, and assessments are a true match and 
timely per learner to immediately serve each learner's goals. Because of this strength in 
practices of participating in the Educational Plan as a model school, both the sponsor and 
the school have evidenced outcomes to be very desirable each of the seven years. No 
subgroups of any learners have been found to be in a limited or basic category by the end 
of each academic year. All standardized outcome data and local data has been proficient, 
advanced, or accelerated with the higher percentages of students being in advanced and 
accelerated. Since Ohio has implemented its new rigorous local report card grading 
system based on the new learning standards that are national in reading and math, the 
school has been able to evidence to the Sponsor and community stakeholders, that all 
performance indicators have been met and exceeded 100% earning an '~"-The sponsor 
takes seriously the Educational Plan and charge of overseeing that this Community 
School continues to be the educational model that it set out to be in its inception in 2009. 
The sponsor is pleased to report the data results have been consistent and well above the 
targets set forth. 

15. Are there consequences for failing to meet the standards and metrics in the contract? If 
so, how are these communicated to the school? 
As stated above, if the school fails to meet the standards and metrics in the contract, the 
sponsor will intervene and could possibly terminate the contract. Because of the sponsor 
and communitv school transnarencv and close monitorina of the contract's aoals as it 
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relates to academic and fiscal goals, each of the seven years of operation have required 
NO such action, but only continued best practices that result in successful ratings and 
strong academic performance as a Charter School in Ohio. The sponsor regularly 
participates in school data, school best practices and seeks evidence of instructional 
formats that are transcending into such strong data results per learner and the overall 
community school rating. To this date, the sponsor continues to include in the contract 
that they shall take steps to intervene should the school's operation of overall 
performance need corrected and place the school on a probationary status pursuant to 
Section 3314.073 of the Ohio Revised Code, suspend the operation of the School 
pursuant to Section 3314.0702, or terminate the contract of the school pursuant to 
Section 3314.07 of the Ohio Revised Code as determined bv the soonsor. 

Please include any supporting documentation. 
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2141 Pic1<1e·f\oai,i,:Akron! OH 44312."Phone;330-945-5600, l":xt 511281 

M.rs._.l'eresa M. Graves, PrincipaJ 
School Board Members: Dr. Dale Cook, Jeff Hostetler, Michele Urdiales 
Sondra..C~leveliger, Treasurer 
J'eru1ifer.Huffinan, .Adn1i11istrative Assistant 

Mr. )oseph P. Masich, Board President 
Summit County Educational Service Center 
420 Wa~hlngton Ave. 
cuyahtJgaFalls, OH 44221 

March 31, 2015 

Hello Mr. Maslch, 

-. ...... ·--·· --·---·-·-·-------

http://cybersummitorg/SCOPE 

As you rnay know, the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center (GSCELC) and the SummitCounty 
Educational Service Center(SCESC) have been working collaboratively to discern the impact of HB 2; 
particularly as It pertains to the ESC's role as Sponsor of the GSCELC. Early in this process, the SCESC 
sent a letter to the GSCELC Board to inform us that the ·scESC'sSponsorship of GSCELC would terminate 
on June 30,2015. I bellevethe letter was a proactive attempt to provide time for the GSCELC. to Identify 
a not.her sponsor. The ·general consensus at the time was that the SCESC woul.d not be able to continue In 
that cap~city due to langl1a9e In HB 2. The understanding we now have, based on HB 2's current lan­
guage and advice received from SCESC, GSCELC .and State leg.;;il sources, is th.at the SCESC Will indeed 
be permitted to Sponsor the GSCELC. · 

TheSCESC and the GSCELC haye enjoyed a mutually benefi.claJ relatlonship over the past Si)( years and 
the GSCELC Board Would like tb see t.hat relationship continue. During today's meeting of the GSCELC 
Board, a r;,solUtion was approved tb request a new sponsorship contract from the Summit County ESC 
for the period of two years beginning July 11 2015. We are hopeful that the SCESC Board will agree th.at 
a new tWo year contract is ·in our mutual best interest and approve our request. 

Again, thank you for the past support as Sponsor of the GSCELC. Please feel free to contact me if you 
have questions. 

Dale L. Cook, President 
GSCELC eoard 
2:141 Pickle Rd. 
Akron, OH 44312 
(.330)860-4021 



COMMUNITY SCHOOL SPONSORSHIP CONTRACT 
FOR 

SUMMIT COUNTY EDUCATIONAL SERVICE CENTER 
GREATER SUMMIT COUNTY EARLY LEARNING CENTER 

A CONVERSION COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

Pursuantto the provisions of Chapter 3314 of the Ohio Revised Code, the Community School Sponsorship 
Contract ("Contract") is entered into on the 1st of July, 2015, by and between Summit County Educational 
Service Center (hereinafter the "SPONSOR"), and the Governing Authority of the Greater Summit County 
Early Learning Center (hereinafter the ("SCHOOL"). ' ·· 

The Governing Authority of the SCHOOL shall be the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 
Board·ofDirectors ("Board of Directors"). The names and addresses of the initial voting members of the 
Board of Directors are as follows: 

I. Dale Cook, Ph.D. 
Teaching Leadership & Cuniculum Studies 
Kent StateUnivcrsity 
Kent, Ohio 44242 

2. Jeff Hostetler, Treasurer Tallmadge City Schools 
486 East Avenue 
Tallmadge, Ohio 44278 

3. Michele Urdiales 
989 Archmere Drive 
Akron, Ohio 44319 

ARTICLE I. 
Purpose .\ .... 

This, Contract is established pursuant to Chapter 3314 of the Ohio Revised Code and specifically 
Section 3314.03 of the Ohio Revised Code for establishing the SCHOOL as a cominunity school. The 
SCHOOL shall be· created as a conversion-type community school, utilizing certain resources 
converted to the SCHOOL'S use by the SPONSOR, including but not limited to portion of the 
SPONSOR's existing physical· facilities. Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code section 3314.08, SPONSOR 
reserves the right to provide such additional local resources as are necessary to reasonable ensure the 
operational viability of the .. SCHOOL, including but not limited to: staff, equipment, instructional 
materials, curriculum, and educational strategies as determined to be appropriate by the SPONSOR, in 
~he SPONSOR's sole discretion. Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 3314.01, the SCHOOL may sue 
and be sued, ·acquire facilities as needed, and contract for services necessary for the operation of the 
SCHOOL. The SCHOOL may cany oµt any act and ensure the performance of any function that complies 
with the Ohio Constitution, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 3314, other statutes applicable to community 
schools, and the terms of the Contract as set forth below. The initial site for the SCHOOL shall be at the 
Sponsor's kindergarten facility,'2141 Pickle Road, Akron, Ohio. 

I~.,_:_ .... ·- ··- . 
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ARTICLE II. 
Term 

This Contract shall be binding upon execution by both parties. The Term of this Contract shall be for two 
(2) years commencing on July !. 2015, as set fo1th in the Educational Plan, which is attached at 
Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference herein. Contract renewal will be subject to the provisions of 
Sections 3314.07, 3314.072, and 3314.073 of the Ohio Revised Code, under the express terms of this 
C,ontract. 

ARTICLE III. 
Responsibilities of the SCHOOL 

The SCHOOL shall be established as a public benefit corporation pursuant to Chapter 1702 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 

By mutual agreement of the parties, the SCHOOL will begin operations at the SPONSOR'S educational 
facility (a.k.a The Boyer Kindergarten Building). The location and address of all instructors and all 
students served by the SCHOOL will be available to the SPONSOR and the Ohio Department of Education 
at all times. The Board of Directors shall purchase liability insurance or otherwise provide for the potential 
liability of the SCHOOL. 

The SCHOOL shall provide learning opportunities to a minimum of twenty-five students for a minimum 
of nine hundred twenty hours (920) per school year. Learning oppmiunities are described in detail in the 
Educational Plan, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

The SCHOOL shall be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all 
other operational respects. 

As r.equired by C~apter ~314 of the Oh~o Revised Cod~, the SCHOOL.s~all comply wit~ t~e following 
port10ns of the Ohio Revised Code: Sect10ns 9.90, 9.91 (msurance, annmlies]; 1109.65 [m1ssmg children 
fingerprinting]; 121.22 [open meetings]; 149 .43 [public records]; 2151.3 57 [limited inspection of sealed 
records]; 2151.358 [records of adjudicated delinquents]; 2151.421 (2151.35.8, 2151.42.1) [child abuse 
reporting]; 2313. 18 (employee jury duty]; 3301.0710, 3301.07 11, 3301.0712, 3301.0714, 3301.0715 
(3301.07, 3301.07. 11, 3301.07.12, 3301.07. 15) [achievement and diagnostic testing]; 
3313.50 [student hearing and vision records]; 3313.472 [parental and foster caregiver involvement in 
schools]; 3313.536 [school safety plan]; 3313.6012 [academic prevention/intervention]; 3313.6013 [dual 
enrollment for college credit]; 3313.6014 [notice of cqre curriculum requirements and.Compliance]; 
3313.643 (eye protective devices]; 313.648) 3313.60.8, 3313.60.12, 3313 .64.3, 3313.64.8) 
[prohibition of payment of incentive to enroll]; 3313.66, 3313.661, 3313..662, 3313.666 [policy 
prohibiting harassment, intimidation or bullying; immunity for reporting]; (3313.66.1, 3313.66.21 
[suspension, expulsion, removal, exclusion]; 3313.667 [bullying prevention task forces, programs and 
initiatives]; 3313.67, 3313.671 [immunizations]; 3313.672 [new student school records, custody orders, 
birth certificate]; 3313.673 (3313.67.1, 3313 .67.2, 3313.67.3) [K-1 health and other screening); 3313.69 
(hearing and vision screening]; 3313.71 [health screening, tuberculosis]; 3313.716 (3313.71.5) [asthma 
inhalers]; 3313. 718 [possession of auto-injectors by students, immunities]; 3313.80 (display of flag]; 

Descriptors of statutory provisions provided in brackets herein are provided as shorthand references only and arc not intended as 
comprehensive descriptors of the topics encompassed by the cited portions Of the Ohio Revised Code, with each. of which the SCHOOL shall 
fully oomply. 
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As required by Section 33 l 4.03(A)(24) of the Ohio Revised Code, the SCHOOL shall comply with 
Section 3302.04 of the Ohio Revised Code (adequate yearly progress , continuing improvement plans 
intervention) including division (E) of that Section to the extent possible, except that any action required 
to be taken by a school district shall be taken by the SPONSOR (except that the SPONSOR shall not be 
required to take any action described in division (F) of that Section regarding districts that fail to make 
adequate yearly progress.) 

A. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

The SCHOOL shall operate in substantial compliance with Exhibit I (Educational Plan) including 
provisions concerning the SCHOOL's mission, educational philosophy, the ages and grades of students , 
the characteristics of the students the SCHOOL is expected to attract, the SCHOOL calendar, the academic 
goals and the method of measurement that will be used to determine progress toward those. g~als, 
behavioral expectations and the focus of the curriculum. Classroom instruction shall be the SCHOOL's 
method of teaching. 

The SCHOOL shall comply with Sections 3313.61, 3313.611 and 3313.614 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

The SCHOOL shall seek to achieve racial and ethnic balance reflective of the community it serves by 
publicizing and marketing the SCHOOL in, and recruiting students from, all segments of the community. 
The SCHOOL shall provide notices to students, parents, Employees and the general public that all 
educational programs are available without regard to race, creed, color, handicapping condition or· sex. 
Fmther, the SCHOOL shall provide a nondiscrimination notice in such media as newsletters, annual 
reports, administrative reports, program information, handbooks, application forms and related 
promotional materials. 

The SCHOO L's Board of Directors will submit within four (4) months after the end of each.school year a 
report of its activities and progress. Such report shall include an assessment of progress toward meeting 
the goals and State standards set forth in Section 
3 314.03 of the Ohio Revised Code. A report of financial status and any other relevant performance 
information to the SPONSOR shall also occur. Copies shall be provided to the parents/guardians of all 
students enrolled in the school and any other parties as required by layv. Subject to capacity limitations, 
the SCHOOL shall admit students who are entitled to attend school in a school district in Ohio and who 
reside in the SPONSOR's county. The Board of Directors shall adopt a policy concerning open enrollment 
of students who reside outside the SPONSOR's county as enumerated ill Section 3314.03(A)(l 9) of the 
Ohio Revised Code (said procedures shall comply with Section 3314.06 and 3314.061.) The SCHOOL 
shall not discriminate in the admission of students on the basis of race, creed, handicapping condition or 
sex. The SCHOOL shall not limit admission to students on the basis of intellectual ability, measures of 
achievement or aptitude or athletic ability. Upon the admission of any handicapped student, the SCHOOL 
will comply with all Federal and State laws regarding the education of handicapped students. 

The SCHOOL shall comply with the dismissal procedures set forth in the Educational Plan, Exhibit l. 

The SCHOOL recognized the authority of the Ohio Department of Education in accordance with the 
provisions of division (C) of Section 3314.015 (3314.01.5} of the Ohio Revised Code, as well as the 
authority of the sponsor school under the conditions speCified in division (B) of Section 3314.073 
{3314.07.3} of the Ohio Revised Code. 

The SCHOOL will allow public health and safety officials to inspect the facilities of the SCHOOL. If the 

- .:- .. '-~ 
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3313.801 [display of national and Ohio mottos]; 3313.96 [missing children]; 3319.073 [child abuse. 
prevention training]; 3319.301 [non-lice~sed teachers]; 33.19.313 [i~formati?n re: improper conduct by 
licensed employee]; 3319.314 [report oftmproper conduct mvesttgat10n kept m personnel file]; 3319.315 
[R.C. 331 ~.3 .13 and R.C. 331,9.314 pr~vail over contrac~ua~ provisions]; 3319.321 (3319.07 .3, 3319.32.1) 
[confidentiality of student mformat10n]; 3319.39 [cnmmal records check]; 3321.01 [admittance to 
kindergarten, first grade]; 3321.1 3, 3321.14, 3321.17, 3321. l 8, 3321.19, 3321.l 91 (3321.19. I) [habitual 
absence, tardy]; 3327.l 0 [qualifications of drivers]; 41 11.17 [wage discrimination]; 41 13.52 
[whistleblower protection); and 5705.391 (5705.39.1) [spending plan]; and Chapters 117. [fiscal audits]' 
1347 [privacy]; 2744 (tort liability); 3365 [post-secondary enrollment]; 3742 [lead abatement]; 4112 [civii 
rights); 4123 [workers' compensation]; 4141 [unemployment compensation]; and 4167 [occupational 
safety] of the Revised Code as if it were a school district and will comply with Sections 3301.07 14 
3301.07.141 [EMIS] of the Revised Code in the manner specified in section '.3314.17 of the Revised Code'. 

The SCHOOL shall comply with Chapter 102 of the Ohio Revised Code and Section of the Ohio Revised 
Code, except as otherwise ,permitted by law. No part of the earnings of the SCHOOL shall inure to the 

·benefit of or be distributable to the SCHOO L's directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the 
SCHOOL may provide reasonable compensation for services rendered and make payments and 
distributions in furtherance of the SCHOOL's purposes. 

The SCHOOL shall request the Superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check with respect to each newly appointed member of the 
SCHOOL's Board of Directors. The appointment of any member who fails to pass the criminal records 
check shall be void. 

The SCHOOL shall request the Superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation 
(BCII) to conduct a criminal records check with respect to any applicant who has applied to the SCHOOL 
for employment in any position as a person responsible for the care, custody or control of a child pursuant 
to Section 3319.39 of the Ohio Revised Code. FBI background checks shall also be provided for all 
employees and Board members. 

The SCHOOL shall not hire a person for any position responsible for the care, custody or control of a 
child until it receives a favorable criminal records check for that person from the Bureau of Criminal 
Identification and Investigation (BCil). At the SCHOOL'S discretion, such background check and related 
employment screening may be provided under a service contract. 

Upon request of the SPONSOR, the SCHOOL shall provide proof of liability insurance, Bureau of 
Criminal Identification and Investigation (BCII) records check of all staff and valid teaching 
certification/Jicensure of the staff. Proof of teacher certification/licensure shall be satisfied by the · 
SCHOOL'S providing to the SPONSOR any valid temporary, interim or permanent teaching 
certificates/licenses issued by the Ohio Department of Education. 

To the extent applicable, the SCHOOL shall comply with The Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act 
(!DEJA), and Ohio Administrative Code, Chapter 3301-51, except that nothing contained herein is, or 
shall be construed to be, a waiver of any exceptions, exclusions or other rights that the SClIOOL, may 
have or may avail itself of under the foregoing or any other applicable State or Federal law. To the extent 
permitted by law, the SCHOOL shall not be required to fundamentally alter its program or incur and undue 
financial or other hardship in the operation of its program. · 
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physical conditions so require, such officials may need to order the facilities temporarily closed for repair 
and remediation if those officials find that the facilities do not comply with health and safety laws and 
regulations. Provided the SPONSOR refused to take action after receipt of notice of any health or safety 
condition posing a threat to students or staff, the SCHOOL recognizes the authority of the Ohio 
Department of Education as the State community school oversight body to seek a temporary suspension . 
ofthe·school's operations. Such action shall be done under Section 3314.072 of the Revised Code. A 
temporary operational suspension action requires the Ohio Department of Education to assert objective 
evidence of conditions or violations of law at the school which pose an imminent danger to the health and 
safety of the SCHOOL's students and employees and the SPONSOR's refusal to take such action:: 

The SCHOOL will comply with Section 3302.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, including division (E) of that 
Section to the extent possible, except that any action required to be taken by a school district pursuant to 
that.Section shall be taken by the SPONSOR of the SCHOOL. 

The SCHOOL will comply with Section 3302.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, including division (E) of that 
Section to the extent possible, except that any action required to be taken by a school district pursuant to 
that Section shall be taken by the SPONSOR of the SCHOOL. However, the SPONSOR shall not be 
required to take any action described in division (F) of this Section. 

B. FINANCIAL PLAN 

Except as otherwise provided herein or by separate agreement with the SPONSOR, the SCHOOL; shall 
operate in substantial compliance with Exhibit 2 (Financial Plan) which is attached and incorporated by 
reference herein, which establishes an estimated school budget for each year of the period of this Contract 
and a total estimated per pupil expenditure amount for each such year. 

The SCHOOL shall maintain the financial records of the SCHOOL in the same manner as are financial 
records of school .districts pursuant to rules of the Auditor of the State and audits shall be conducted in 
accordance with Section 117. I 0 ofthe Ohio Revised Code. 

The SCHOOL shall comply with the policies and procedures regarding internal financial controls of the 
SCHOOL and shall comply with the requirements and procedures for financial audits by the Auditor of 
the State as set forth in the Financial Plan. 

The SCHOOL shall allow the SPONSOR to monitor the SCHOO L's operations periodically at the request 
of the SPONSOR provided; however, that the frequency and scope of such monitoring does not 
unreasonably interfere with or inte1Tupt the operations of the SCHOOL. 

1. Payments from the SCHOOL to the SPONSOR 
a. Pursuant to the authority of Section 3314.03(C) of the Ohio Revised Code, the 

SCHOOL shall pay to the SPONSOR all of the following amounts: 
i. The SCHOOL shall annually pay to the SPONSOR from the funding provided to 

the SCHOOL by the Ohio Department of Education pursuant to Section 3314.08 
of the Ohio Revised Code, a reasonable service fee per student per year. The 
schedule for such payments shall be as is mutually agreed to by the parties and the 
amount of such payments may be varied by mutual agreement of the parties. 

ii. In the event that the SPONSOR, as permitted herein, provides substantially all of 
the specially education and related services required by an IBP, the SCHOOL, 
shall pay to the SPONSOR the funds received by the SCHOOL from the Ohio 



Department of Education on account of such student, except that the SCHOOL 
may retain sufficient funds to cover its actual costs related to such student, if any. 

b. The SCHOOL shall pay to th~. SPONSOR such other amounts as arc mutually agreed 
including fees for any and all services provided to the SCHOOL by the SPONSOR. ' 

c. In addition to the payments described above, payments to the SPONSOR shall not exceed 
3% for oversight and monitoring of the SCHOOL. . 

Upon the dissolution of the SCHOOL, any assets remaining shall be dealt with according to rules and 
regulations established by Federal and/or State statue. The failure to make payments to the SPONSOR 
as described herein and in the Exhibits attached shall be a basis for the SPONSOR to consider action to 
suspend or terminate this contract in accordance with termination procedures for community school 
contracts as described in the Ohio Revised Code. 

C. GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

The SCHOOL shall comply with the procedures by which members of the SCHOOL's Board of Directors 
shall be determined in the future as set forth in Exhibit 3 (Governance and Administrative Plan) which 
Exhibit is attached and incorporated by reference herein. 

The SCHOOL shall secure the services of the Director who shall be the chief operating officer of the 
SCHOOL and who will serve as a liaison between the SCHOOL and the SPONSOR as described in the 
Governance and Administrative Plan. 

The administration and management .of the SCHOOL shall be as set forth m the Governance and 
Administrative Plan and in the Educational Plan. 

The SCHOOL shall take reasonable steps to ensure that classroom teachers are certified/licensed in 
accordance with Sections 3 319 .22 to 3319 .31 of the Ohio Revised Code, except that noncertified/licensed 
persons may teach up to twelve hours per week pursuant to Section 3319.301 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
The requirement of ce1tification or licensure may be fulfilled by either a teaching certificateflicensure or 
temporary or interim teaching certificate/license as issued by the Ohio Department of Education. Other 
persons may be engaged pursuant to Section of 3314.0l (B) of the Ohio Revised Code to carry out and 
fulfill the SCHOOL's mission. 

The SCHOOL shall comply with the provisions regarding health care and other benefits to be provided to 
SCHOOL employees as set forth in the GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN. 

In the event this Contract is terminated or non-renewed, the SCHOOL shall comply with the requirements 
and procedures regarding the disposition of employees of the SCHOOL as set forth in the 
GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN. 

The SCHOOL shall contract for instructional services as necessary. The SCHOOL shall comply with the 
procedures for resolving disputes or differences of opinion between it and the SPONSOR as set forth in 
the GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN. 

The SCHOOL shall animally report to the SPONSOR the names, addresses, and phone numbers of the 
SCHOOL'S Directors and Officers and the meeting schedule of the SCHOOL's Board of Directors. 
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D. ASSESSMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 

The SCHOOL agrees to assess student achievement as required by law and the SCHOOL's own success 
shall be evaluated. Such evaluation shall occur in relation to academic goals established in, an([ using the 
methods of measurement identified in, Exhibit 4 (Assessment and Accountability Plan) which is attached 
and unincorporated by reference herein. 

The SCHOO L's Board of Directors shall submit an annual report of its activities and progress in meeting 
academid goals and performance standards as contained in the EDUCATI ONAL PLAN and the 

··ASSESSMENT and ACCOUNT AB ILITY PLAN and 
of the SCHOOL's financial status to the SPONSOR and the parents/guardians of all students enrolled .in 
the SCHOOL 

The SCHOOL may perform any of its obligations hereunder directly or through subcontractors. Jn 
particular, it is anticipated that the SCHOOL may purchase educational, administrative, fiscal and/or other 
services from the SPONSOR on such terms as are agreed by the SCHOOL and the SPONSOR.. 

If agreed to by the parties, the SCHOO L's Board of Directors may reimburse the SPONSOR for costs 
incurred by the SPONSOR in connection with the SPONSOR's oversight and monitoring of the SCHOOL. 
The total amount of such payments shall not exceed THREE or SEVEN percent of the total amount of 
payments for operating expenses that the SCHOOL receives from the State. 

The SCHOOL shall operate in conformance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including 
applicable Rules promulgated by the Ohio Department of Education. ·. 

ARTICLE IV. 
RESPONSIBILITIES of the SPONSOR 

Pursuant to the SPONSOR's authority under Section 3 314.08(0) of the Ohio Revised Code to provide the 
SCHOOL with services, the SPONSOR shall be the fiscal agent of the SCHOOL. The SPONSOR shall 
request the SPONSOR's Treasurer to serve as the SCHOOL's fiscal officer. 

The SPONSOR shall monitor !)nd evaluate the academic and fiscal performance and the organization 
and.operation of the SCHOOL on at least a semi-annual basis. 

The SPONSOR shall report on an annual basis the results of the evaluation conducted to the Ohio 
Department of Education and to the parents/guardians of students enrolled in the SCHOOL. 

The SPONSOR shall provide technical assistance and monitor the community school's compliance with 
all laws applicable to the SCHOOL and with the terms of this Contract. 

The SPONSOR shall evaluate the performance of the SCHOOL according to the standards set forth in the 
AS.SESSMENT and ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN, Exhibit 4. 

The SPONSOR shall take steps to intervene in the SCHOOL's operation to correct problems in the 
SCHOO L's overall performance, declare the SCHOOL to be on probationary status pursuant to Section 
3314.073 of the Ohio Revised Code, suspend the operation of the SCHOOL pursuant to Section 3314.072 
of the Ohio Revised Code or terminate the contract of the SCHOOL pursuant to Section 3314.07 of the 
Ohio Revised Code as determined necessary by the SPONSOR. 

..,._,-·, 
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The SPONSOR shall develop a plan of action to be unde1taken in the event the SCHOOL experiences 
financial difficulties or closes prior to the end of the year. 

Throughout the Term of the SPONSOR Contract, the SPONSOR shall support the SCHOOL's 
establishment and operation as determined to be appropriate by the SPONSOR at the SPONSOR's sole 
discretion. 

The SPONSOR shall comply with the requirements and procedures regarding the disposition of employees 
of the SCHOOL set forth in the GOVERNANCE and ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN. 

The SPONSOR shall comply with the procedures for resolving disputes or differences of opinion between 
it and the SCHOOL as set forth in the GOVERNANCE and ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN. 

A. TRANSPORTATION 

If a student is entitled to transportation under any applicable law, such transportation shall be provided by 
school district ofresidence according to Ohio Revised Code. This provision solely allocates responsibility 
among the parties for providing transportation where an entitlement to transportation already exists, it 
does not create any transportation expectation that a student does not already have. 

B. FISCAL SERVICES 

The SPONSOR shall be the fiscal agent of the SCHOOL and shall provide the services of a qualified· 
individual who shall, as an employee or contractor of the SPONSOR, serve as the SCHOOL's fiscal 
officer. In the event that the person designated by the SPONSOR to provide such services is also the 
SPONSOR's Treasurer (or other employee), such individual shall serve the SCHOOL in his/her official 
capacity as SPONSOR's Treasurer (or other employee.) In exchange for the foregoing fiscal services the _______ , ___ --------

SCHOOL shall pay the SPONSOR a reasonable amount not to exceed $300 per day. 

ARTICLEV. 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, SECTION 504 OF 
THE R)l;HABILITATION ACT OF 1973 AND THE INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES 

EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT 

The SCHOOL shall comply with all the provisions set forth in The Americans with Disabilities Act and 
shall not exclude a qualified individual with a disability, by reason of such disability, from participation 
in any programs or activities of the SCHOOL, or subject such qualified individual to discrimination by 
the SCHOOL. 

The SCHOOL shall ensure that all facilities and programs meet the requirements of The Americans with. 
Disabilities Act and are accessible to individuals with a disability. 
The SCHOOL shall comply with all the provisions set forth in Section 504 of The Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 and shall not exclude a qualified handicapped person on the basis of such handicap from participation 
in any programs or activities of the SCHOOL. 

The SCHOOL shall comply with all the provisions set forth in The Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Improvement Act (JDEIA.) 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Article is, or shall be construed to be, a waiver, of any 
exceptions, exclusions, or other rights that the SCHOOL may have or may avail itself of under The 
America.us with Disabilities Act, The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or any other applicable state or federal 
law. To the extent permitted by law, the SCHOOL shall not be required to fundamentally alter its program 
or incur an undue financial or other hardship in the operation of this program. · 

ARTICLE VI . 
. Governing Law 

This Contract shall be governed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Ohio. The SCHOOL 
shall operate in conformance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including Rules promulgated 
by the Ohio Department of Education. 

The SCHOOL shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race 
. ' color, religion, national origin, sex, age or disability/handicap in employment. · 

The SCHOOL shall comply with all provisions of the Ohio Revised Code Section 3314.06. 

ARTICLE VII. 
Assignment 

Neither this contract, nor any rights, duties nor obligations described herein shall be assigned by any party 
hereto without prior written consent of the SPONSOR and the SCHOOL, except that the parties may, by 
agreement, reallocate among them such rights, duties and obligations. The parties may subcontract any of 
their respective duties or obligations hereunder. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement among the 
parties and any modifications of this Contract shall be made and agreed to in writing. 

ARTICLE VIII. 
Changes or Modification 

This Contract constitutes the entire agreement among the parties and any changes or modifications of this 
Contract shall be made and agreed to in writing. 

ARTICLE IX. 
Suspension 

If at any time the SPONSOR determines that conditions at the SCHOOL do not comply with health and 
safety standards established by law for school facilities, the SPONSOR shall immediately suspend the 
operation of the SCHOOL pursuant to procedures, timelines and other requirements set forth in Section 
33 l~.072(D) of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Additionally, the SPONSOR may suspend the. SCHOOL's operations for any of the following reasons, 
except that the SPONSOR must first comply with the procedures and timelines set forth in Section 
3314.072(C) of the Ohio Revised Code concerning notice and an opportunity for remediation, and the 
SPONSOR must then additionally comply with the procedures and timelines set forth in Section 
3314.072(0) ofthe Ohio Revised Code: 

I. The SCHOO L's failure to meet student performance requirements stated in this Contract; or, 
2. The SCHOOL 's failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management; or, 

:i . . ':':.:. :~.:T' - ·."-.. ,,...: .. ----·.-···•' ·-····---,;.,_., .. 
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3. The SCHOO L's violation of any provisions of this Contract or applicable state or federal law; or, 
4. Other good and just cause shown. . 

Upon receipt of a notice of suspension pursuant to Section 3314.072(0)(1) of the Ohio Revised Code, The 
Board of Directors of the SCHOOL shall immediately notify the employees of the SCHOOL and the 
parents/guardians of the students emolled in the SCHOOL of the intended suspension of operations and 
the reason for the suspension. The SCHOOL shall cease all school operations on the next business day. 
The Board of Directors shall not operate the SCHOOL while the suspension is in effect. Any such 
suspension shall remain in effect until the SPONSOR notifies the Board of Directors that it is no longer 
in effect. This Contract, if suspended, also may be subject to determination or non-renewal under Section 
3314.07 of the Revised Code and as provided hereunder. 

ARTICLEX. 
Termination and Renewal 

The parties may enter into a successor contract unless this Contract is terminated or not renewed by the 
SPONSOR pursuant to Section 3314.07 of the Ohio Revised Code for any of the following reasons: 

1. The SCHOO L's failµre to meet student performance requirements stated in.this Contract; or, 
2. The SCHOOL's failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management; 

or, 
3. The SCHOOL's violation of any provisions OHHIS Contract or applicable state or federal law; or 

. ' ·' 4. Other good and just cause shown. 

A decision to terminate may be appealed as provided in Section 3314.07 of the Ohio Revised Code and 
the effective date of a termination of this Contract shall be as provided in such section. Such request must 
be in writing. The informal hearing shall be held within seventy (70) days of receipt of a request for the 
hearing. Promptly following the informal hearing, the SPONSOR shall issue a written decision either 
affirming or rescinding the decision to terminate or not renew this Contract. A decision to terminate may 
be appealed as provided in Section 3314.07 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the effective date of a 
termination of this contract shall be as provided in such section. 

In lieu of terminating this Contract or suspending the operation of the SCHOOL, the SPONSOR may, 
after consultation with the Board of Directors, and after making the determinations and receiving the 
assurances required by Section 3314.073 of the Ohio Revised Code, declare the SCHOOL to be in 
probationary status in accordance with the procedures of that Region. In such event, the SPONSOR may 
take over. the operation of the SCHOOL (by undertaking the SCHOOL's obligations hereunder) or take 
steps to terminate this Contract if the SPONSOR at any time finds that the SCHOO L's Board of Directors 
is no longer able or willing to remedy the offending conditions to the satisfaction of the SPONSOR. 

Providing this Contract has not been terminated or non-renewed by the SPONSOR as provided herein, 
and further provided that the SPONSOR has determined that the SCHOO L's compliance with applicable 
laws and terms of this Contract and the SCHOO L's progress in meeting the academic goals prescribed 
in this Contract have been satisfactory, this. Contract shall automatically renew for successive one-year 
terms, except that this Contract shall not renew if either party gives written notice to the other of its 
intention not to renew by March 15 of the then CUITent renewal year . 

. ,, ... · ·.:.· .. :. 
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ARTICLE XI. 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

The SPONSOR and the SCHOOL shall, at all times, collaborate in their mutual performance of their 
respective obligations hereunder and may periodically modify, by mutual agreement and in writing the 

· allocation of r.esponsibilities and funding as between them. The SPONSOR and the SCHOOL shall 
additionally collaborate to develop and modify as mutually agreed by them and in writing, the SCHOOL's 
educationai program, financial protocols, governance and administrative structures, and assessment and 
accountability criteria and procedures, as well as any other aspect of the SCHOOL's operations. Such 
changes are expressly contemplated by this Contract, shall require written modification of this Contract 
and, once agre.ed to by the parties, may thereafter be included in any description of the SCHOOL.. 

Pursuant to Section 3314.04 (A) (20) of the Ohio Revised Code, the parties recognize the authority of the 
Ohio Department of Education to take over the sponsorship of the SCHOOL in accordance with the 
provisions of division (C) of Section 3314.015 of the Ohio Revised Code in the event that the Ohio State 
Board of Education finds that the SPONSOR is not in compliance or is no longer willing to comply with 
this Contract or with applicable Department Rules. Pursuant to Section 33 l.03(A) (21) of the Ohio 
Revised Code, the parties recognize the authority of the SPONSOR to assume the operation of the 
SCHOOL under the conditions specified in division (8) of Section 
3314.073 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

ON BEHALF OF: 
Summit County Educational Service Center 

~,d~1 PF!srM '///7-'lt' 

?$6~~ 

ON BEHALF OF: 
Greater Summit cez:::ffOenter , 

CfJL e I~ 

.... ·,., ...... . -·'··· . .. . .... -,,----~,_-,. . __ ., ··.-·· -.---
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I 
EXHIBIT! 

Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 
A Conversion Community School 

I·· ~ISION 
i ·.· . ··:· .. 

i ·Eh·~~lids1h;on adschk~oldbuilding thaht strivhesfto sehrve a dqualityddemonsTtrhation ~ode! for early 
I· . ·c 1 .oo , m ergarten t roug ourt gra e stu ents. e env1ronment will 
I · promote children who are eager to learn and teachers who are confident in serving as facilitators 
i ·.as· children construct knowledge. Children and teachers focus on process learning 
' thttiugh a project-based approach where they work together in solution based 
I thinking, collaboration with peers, and multiple communication modes. A 
1 .. gemihie . respect and caring for the individual is reflected in the process. Formative 
I ·· instructional practices and formative assessments drive the appropriately matched 
! curriculum for each individual learner. High expectations for excellence in academics, 21st 
! . .century skills, global awareness, foreign language, athletics and the arts penneate throughout the 
: ·. culture of the building. Children are able to demonstrate what they have learned through 
: .· mt1!tiple representations through their work. There is a sense of pride and respect for themselves 
I .. ·and tor ¢ach other. Children are neither bored nor frustrated. Students who are having difficulty 
ii······.· with a particular concept are being assisted by students who have mastered it. A variety of21" 

. eentl\iY technology is available to reinforce classroom instruction, to provide additional visual and 

I 
. audio demonstrations that cannot be provided in the school and to encourage the interaction with 

, others from all over the world. The children are participating in the process through intentional 
':•'ponim'unication collaboration creativity in an environment that produces wonder and curiosity. 
: . they understand that today's world requires continuous learning to achieve professional and 
I personal satisfaction. The children have an appreciation of the world around them and IUlderstand 
I · the importance of giving back to the community to enhance its growth. During the time they 
; at(), ill our care, they are safe, intellectually stimulated and aware that education is the key not 
j.: •ortlyto their future but the future of society as a whole. 

'' G()ALS 

1 .. 1. Create. a learning environment that allows all children to be active engaged learners. 
i · · 2. Provide all children with multi-faceted and multi-cultural learning experiences. 
I ·. . : 3 .. Develop a consistent daily schedule that promotes positive child outcomes such as: order, 
; · predictability, responsibility, security, a sense of time and appropriate ate social interaction with 

I 
i. 
1· .. 

I 
I 

peers and adults . 
. 4. Utilize multi-aged grouping for promoting cooperative and enhanced learning and positive peer 

modeling. 
5. Utilize a team approach for working the multi-aged groups. 
6. Create a positive social environment where teachers support children's intrinsic motivation to 

learn. 
1

1 

•. ,.. · 7. Foster cooperation and collaboration among students by supporting them in understanding and 
working through individual diversities 

1 
· · . 8. · Provide learning experiences that extend each child's knowledge base in all content areas including 

1 · . · foreign language (Mandarin and Spanish) and multiple foreign cultures. 
· · 9. Provide children with the opportunity to relate school experiences to everyday life through the use I ' of an integrated curriculum which incorporates thematic units. 

I."""'· c •: '.'; ,.: j..,,,..,"."'''''' •· 
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I 0. Encourage family and community involvement in the learning process. 
11. Instill ongoing cooperation and support among the children, parents, school and other community 

·.members. · . 
· 12. Rea·ssess each child's learning through individual portfolio assessments and nanative progress 

·reports, and a 2013-2014 new learning standards report card that has been developed. 
13. Provide long term student/teacher· relationships to improve student achievement and job 

satisfaction for teachers. . . 
14. Provide an exemplary educational environment for students from Kent State University and the 

University of Akron to learn and practice their skills. (See letter of support -Appendix X) 
15. Provide a model early childhood program that can· be replicated across our county, state, nation 

and world. 

MISSJON 

We at the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center provide children with a quali1y learning 
environment that is responsive to their individual groWth and development. Fostering · learning 
opportunities that emphasize high academic e1Cperiences, while also nurturing children's social and 
emotional growth is our priority. We strive to ensure that all students reach their fullest potential by 
using· developmentally appropriate and research based practices. · · 

SETTING 

The school's physical location is immediately to the southeast of the City of Akron. Situated in a 
. quiet residential neighborhood, the building is surrounded by trees and park land which provides 
children with the opportunity to explore the outdoors. · 

·EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY 

The Greater Summit County Early Learning Center is a high performance school in a focused· setting 
where children become self-motivated learners through investigative practices based on student interests 
and 21st century skills at early levels. Curriculum content is designed with intellectual integrity that 
respects children's intelligence and values their time. The Greater Summit County Early Leaming Center 
offers educational opportunities that enable a child to develop a sustained interest in learning duting and 
after the completion of the early childhood experience. We provide rigorous academic content that helps 
children develop critical thinking skills, the ability to problem solve in a collaborative and cooperative 
learning environment, build a strong work ethic and respect and value the world around them. 

This developmentally appropriate rich learning environment is needed for kindergarten stµdents and wilJ 
carry through all grades (K-4) of our educational system empowering them to realize their talents and 
strengths and share them in our interdependent world. It is our educational vision to provide such a 
program made possible through becoming a conversion school that easily transitions children from our 
current innovative multiage pre-school program into an educational setting that continues to enhance the 
opportunities of our children in our all day, every day kindergarten through fdurth grade. 'The learning 
environment will allow all children to develop and exercise self-discipline, identify perso~aj goals and 
pursue and complete personally selected tasks and projects. The children attend in the Greater Summit 
County Early Leaming Center will be provided with instructional delivery and rigorous· curriculum 
content that is designed to achieve long range goals for all children in all domains - social, cognitive and 
physical - and to prepare them to function as fully contributing members of our democratic society. 

. - ··---·- ._, .,~-,- -- - _. -:.- - . ·-· ... ,, ... ··-·· -- ·- ·- -·-·· ... , . 
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The student's transformation to a higher system requires serious commitment by the staff and critical 
. organizational development. Our staff is highly qualified and highly effective as we have developed the 
expertise to guide the learning through the prescribed course(s) of study in an effective manner by focusing 
on the outcomes and thought processes rather than obtaining a general prescribed answer to questions. 
_Our academic team shares a vision to create an innovative learning environment that has. very high· 
academic standards and offers a rigorous curriculum that discovers and nurtures the talents of each student. 
Our S.C.O.P.E. Promises are defined in Appendix I. 

With the suppmt of the Ohio Depaitment of Education, Summit County Educational Service Center 
Region 8 State Support Team, and Kent State University the SPONSOR is anxious to establish a high 
quality conversion school designed to meet the truly unique needs of early learners. The SCHOOL will 
be a model early childhood program that will have the opportunity to enrich the lives of children and staff 
from across the state, nation, and globe. 

CHARACTERISTICS OF EXPECTED STUDENTS 

The SCHOOL is designed to specifically serve as a school of choice for any student in Ohio enrolling in 
. kindergarten through fourth grade. The only requirement for a student enrolling in kindergarten is age 
eligible (turning age five by August) and as referenced in the Enrollment Process section of Exhibit r. 
In some cases, the students will have been exposed to educational programs prior to entering kindergarten, 

· but in other cases, the SCHOOL will be their first experience students have with formal educational 
programs. 

RATIONALE for TARGETED POPULATION 

Currently the Governing Authority is unaware of all day every day kindergarten_prograins that have the 
focus of moving beyond a concentration of basic competency in core subjects to promoting understanding 
of academic content at much higher level by weaving 21st century interdisciplinary themes into core 
subjects at entry level. The Greater Summit County Early Learning Center will offer instruction in the 
following academic disciplines for across all grade levels: 

' 
• English 
• Reading 
• Language ruts 
• World languages 
• Arts 

• Mathematics 

• Economics 

• Science 

• Geography 

• History 

• Entrepreneurial literacy 

• Civic literacy 

• Health literacy 

• Social Skills 
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ENROLLMENT PROCESS .. 
The SCHOOL shall not discriminate in the admission of stud~nts on the basis of race, creed;· color, 
handicapping condition,. sex; and iritellectual. ability, .measures·'-0f achievement Or' aptitude ()f athletic 
ability, The' facility meet$ the needs of students withdi~abilities. 

In thf) ~11se ~f oversubscription, a lottery system will be utilized that includes .iill eligible applicant~• 
Exemptions will only be allowe.d in accordance with guidelines established by the Ohio Department of 
Education, As openings %Cur, stud~nts \\liH be admitted. 

I 

PROCESS FOR ADMISSION'.·· .... ·· 

• · Ad~~rtise open house for prospective students 
• Review and identification of prospective students . . 
• Pupil enrollment applfoation . ··.<· ·. · . . · • .. ·•. · · · · · · 
• Initial enrollment meeting .· ... ·· . · · ··. • < · · · 
• Development of individual educational plan (non-handicapped), ·student goals and timeline 
•; . Assessment of studt:nt educational, social and emQtional needs · 

P.ARENTINVOLWMENT .. 

Parents will play a critical role in their children's education. Strong evidence supports a positive 
relationship between parent involvement in education and student academic .achievement, attitudes, and 
aspirations · · · · 

. . . . .. 

· Our teachers will actively endmse a hom.e ;1iJ schoo\partnerships to show parents that their Participation 
matters.·Our educational team viewstheir role.as artiinportantone in helping parents educate children 
through guiding parental involvement. Parents will be true extensions of the teacher's curriculum at school 
and by the integrated home activities proposed. Continuity will be the ·goal in helping match the child's 
current educational needs· and connect it to home practices and parent schedules . .It will be our role to 
enable parents to do their job well by promoting: shared responsibility and direction between our 
professionals and parentsi · i ·, , 

.Inviting and training p~ents and other educators to be involved at our site and in the school day working 
closely with us is another important factor of our visionary leadership. Parents and community members 
will always be important resources. We will reach out to parents and community members in and outside 
of our district who would like to participate or:lrnow wiire about our· educational program by offering site 
visitations. ·, · · · · · ·· · ;. · · 

A pai;ent blog will exist on our school website for parents to talk and post questions to our staff and each 
other about school. Each child will have an electronic portfolio that parents can access to be informed 
about daily progress and. Ji:eep current on daily experiences in the classroom so that they can celebrate 
them and reinforct: them at home: ·. · · .· , , . ·.. · 

A lending library will he operi ~d ~vailable to serve p~nts and children during the day and after school 
to prnvide parents and children with resources and to offer a quiet area to use our computers and resource 
materials. Parents wHI contribute to building up resources as well as requesting certain topics that they are 
seeking information about 

; .· . 

. ·"·. i···· """"'; ---·~-- . -.. ~..--' ~. ·.·. . ..,-~ 
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Parents and Grandparents will be welcome to serve daily as volunteers in the classroom or at home to 
support school and child initiatives. Parents who have an interest in providing academic support to chHdren 
will be trained by the educational team in place with developed materials and guidelines. . 

Our staff will meet daily and once a week for several hours ·to dfsc~ss our student's progress, promote 
group unity, preserve our collaborative atl)'losphere, and to allow needec\.time tcireach a team consensus. 
Parent volunteers are encouraged to participate at weekly meetings. This helps us to personally learn to 
self-evaluate our program and continuously refine and contribute to the improvement process. Inviti~g 
and traini~g pare~ts and oth~r educators to be. involve~ _at mir site and. in the school day working 
closely wit~ us 1s anoth~r important factor of our. v1s10nary :leadership. tarents. and community 
members will always be important resources. We will reach.out to other teachers m and outside of 
our district who would like to know more about ·our educational program offering site visitations. 

ENROLLMENT PRC)JECTIONS (REVISED) 

Four Year Enrollment History and Two Year Enrollment ProjectliJris · 

SCHOOL YEAR 2011-2012 

K Students 30 
1" graders 3 0 

2nd graders 26 
3rd graders -0-

4th graders 

86 

2012-2013 

36 
27 
16 
17 

100 

2013-2014 

37 
32 
24 
11 

16 

120 

TOTAL ESTIMATED PER PUPIL EXPENDITURES 

2014-2015 

36 
30 
25 
17 

22 

130' 

2015-2016 2016-2017 

25 ' 25 
36 25 
34 35 
26 34 
14 26 

135 145 

The SCHOOL estimates a total per pupil expenditure amount averaging $5, 700 based on the revenue 
and expense projections referenced above and. on the .SCHOOL 's. ability to a:ttract public and private 
foundation grants. 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 

As required, the admission policies of the SCHOOL will not d discriminate on the basis of race, creed, 
color, handicapping condition, sex, intellectual abi!i~ies, achieveme.nt or. aptitude or athletic ability. 

RACIAL AND ETHNIC BALANCE 

The SCHOOL will market the SCHOOL to an segments of the community in an effort to achieve a· 
racial and ethnic balance that is reflective·ofthe area the SPONSOR wishes·to serve. 

DEMOGRAPHICS 

As a school of choice, the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center will welcome students from 
the greater summit county area and all school-aged children of Ohio. 

. .. ·. 
~'l'K~Jt.i::.:;i;;;!i;r.;,;&;J,;.)f.;i;i:'.c;:", : . '·' .. ~,,:;--' .. - ,,.-,c, ,: »· ·'"·'''' ... ·. · · ''. '·t\ : .. :,:.c-"·-~: :~:·. ,:.,: , ,_- .. ,-;~s-"1,:;.<'·. ·•f_;: ;·;;;,:.o;;,_:;;,;·-,.<;o'·.; •J,i,,·~<-::; ':'.';.:fr •• -;,::;..v,:,/.• -!":;~_,,·;.; -,_,·:,;:~.,¥,1\>il'·.-,,~: 'i.C,;-:.;._<·:,':Wi--',, :-;~,_.;,;·. -:• . .•.. : , · 1 .. ;. 
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FOCUS ON THE CURRICULUM 

The SCHOOL'S adopted curriculum will be aligned to the new learning standards and the Ohio 
Department of Education's newly revised Academic Content Standards implemented by highly'qualified 
teachers with sound pedagogy. The curriculum will be rigorous content carried out using rese~ch based 
practices that focus on achieving Jong range goals, outcomes and thought processes wrapped around 
particular topics of interest that can be integrated across traditional subject matter division. Intentiohal 
plaruiing and application of effective pedagogy will be rooted in student interests and learning 
experiences that provide opportunities for rich conceptual development. Children in the program will 
engage activeiy in the cutTiculurn that supports and emphasizes the value of social interaction- t6 · 
learning in all areas and provide opportunities to learn from peers so they may see themselves and others 
as valuable contributors to the learning process. Our first priority of our school is to serve the crudal 
individual learner and improve the learning process at the highest level of stimulation where children 
learn to become self-motivated critical thinkers, 

ASSESSMENT 

Fortnative and summative assessment procedures will be completed for each child in the program to 
ensure optimlim development and learning. A formal assessment aligned with the adopted curriculum 
will be completed three times a year to monitor children's progress. Instructional staff will collect daily 
information on children based on the outcomes that have been targeted within the opportunities provided 
to children. The data and documentation collected on children will be complied into traditional and 
electronic portfolios. Our staff will meet once a week to discuss children's progress by reviewing data 
and ongoing informal assessments to shape the delivery of instruction and opportunities for individual 
studentS. Our meetings will aim to promote group unity, preserve our collaborative atmosphere iind to 
allowneeded time to reach a team consensus. Parent volunteers are·encouraged to participate at weekly 
meetings. This helps us to personally learn to self-evaluate our program and continuously refine and 
contribute to the improvement process. 

SPECIAL NEEDS AND SUPPORT 

Pursuant to State and Federal law, students identified with special needs who are admitted to the program 
will' be served in educationally appropriate ways without discrimination. Furthermore, an experienped 
special education coordinator will coord.inate and oversee appropriate instructional services. 
Certified/licensed intervention specialists will instruct identified students with disabilities as outlined in 
their Individual Education Plans. 

The SCHOOL maintains student-teacher ratios established by the Ohio Revised Code and federal special 
education rules commensurate with sound educational practice. The program will allow students to 
become immersed not only yin classroom activities but also in the applied activities tied to the community. 
A gifted education coordinator will oversee the gifted curriculum. A licensed school psychologist will 
provide necessary testing and evaluation services for students suspected of or having a disability. Special 
education supervision, instruction and related services will. be contracted with the Summit County 
Education Service Center, the SPONSOR. . · · ' · 
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SCHOOL CALENDAR 

The SCHOOL will provide students more than the required minimum of 920 hours of learning 
opportunities during the academic school year. The instructional calendar may extend across 11 months 
of the school year. During the traditional academic months, August through June, the SCHOOL' s calendar 
will mirror the SCOPE (pre-school) calendar. 

MANAGEMENT and ADMINISTRATION 

In addition to the personnel described in Exhibit 3 of this Contract (Governance and Administration Plan.) 
the SCHOOL staffing and administration plan includes, but is not limited to the following personn;l 
provided by service contracts to the SCHOOL. Such service contracts duties may be modified by the 
SCHOOL over time, as the SCHOOL evolves. 

Director or Designee 

The SCHOOL shall secure the services of a Director or Designee, who shall be the chief operating officer 
of the SCHOOL, with primary responsibility for day-to-day operations of the SCHOOL. The Director or 
Designee shall oversee and coordinate the daily operation and management of the SCHOOL and shall be 
responsible to the Board of Directors. 

The Director or Designee shall also serve as a liaison among the SCHOOL, the SPONSOR, and its 
contractors. Qualifications include a minimum of a Master's Degree in Education and/or Education 
Administration; or related fields. The SCHOOL's Director or Designee will demonstrate the following 
traits: management and interpersonal skills, ability to articulate the vision for the school, strong character 
and ethical standards, a commitment to continuous improvement, management concepts, and strong 
written and verbal communication skills. The Board of Directors may modify and/or add qualifications 
and traits a.s it deems appropriate. 

Coordinator of Pupil Service/Intervention Specialist 

Supervises all areas related to special needs including but not limited to instructional modifications; 
coordination of services; development and monitoring of Individual Education Plans (IEPs); Multi· 
factored Evaluations (MFE's) and 504 Plans; aJ1d, monitoring of process so that the SCHOOL is always 
in compliance with Federal and State laws and rules regarding special education and oversees gifted 
programs; provides instructfon , intervention, accommodations and modifications, as needed, directly to 
students. This service will be contracted through the Summit County Educational Service Center who 
employees appropriately certified/licensed individuals. · · · 

EMIS Coordinator 

Coordinates all areas related to the collection and analysis of student and SCHOOL data. This individual 
is responsible for coordinating and reporting of data by the SCHOOL to the Ohio Department of 
Education, including EMIS and CSADM; is responsible for student enrollment and the verification of 
residency; assists with the selection of computer-assisted software and manages the use of administrative 
and student services software packages; and, coordinates the use of IT services (NEONET) within the 
SCHOOL. Qualifications include training and experience inEMIS, CSADM, data coordination and entry; 
strong interpersonal skills; strong character and ethical standards; commitment to continuous 
improvement concepts; experience in the areas of data management and data analysis; a comprehensive 
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knowledge of the Federal and State Accountability System; and, demonstrated written and verbal 
communication skills. 

Instr11ctio1tal Staff ~ : 

Provide instruction to students via classroom instruction. The number of positions will be dependent upon 
the number of students enrolled as related to the established student- teacher ratios defined in this 
document: Qualifications include a minimum of a bachelor's degree in education or related field and 
appropriate certification/licensure; excellent classroom management and interpersonal skills; enthusiasm 
for the SCHOOL's unique mission, strong character and ethical standards; commitment to continuous 
improvement concepts; and, strong written and verbal communication skills. · 

Application Process 

Admission to the SCHOOL will be in accordance with the procedures outlined in the SPONSOR contract 
above and in accord with Section 3314.06 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Students will be required to complete an enrollment application; The application contains all required 
fields including immunization shots necessary for enrollment in to a public SCHOOL. Unless waived, 
students must also submit, at the time of application, the signed statement (described in Attendance Policy) 
concerning the availability of adult supervision and support within the student's home environment. 

The SCHOOL will review each application. Should documentation be missing, the parent/guardian will 
be notified of said missing items. The application will not be considered complete until an required 
documentation is submitted and on file. 

Enrollment Process 

The number of students accepted for enrollment by the SCHOOL shall not exceed the capacity of the 
SCHOOL's programs, classes, grade levels or facilities. During the first year, a maximum of 30 students 
will be served, except that in consultation with the SPONSOR, the SCHOOL may raise or lower this cap 
based upon the SCHOOL's and SPONSOR's joint assessment of the SCHOOL's actual capacity. The 
deadline for receipt of applications for the SCHOO L's first year of operation shall be on going; thereafter, 
the SCHOOL shall annually establish such deadline· and publicize it through such media as the SCHOO L's 
web site, informational meetings, newspaper articles and other generally accepted practices. For any 
academic year, if the number of applications received by the. deadline. exceeds the capacity of the 
SCHOOL, qualified students shall be admitted by lottery, except that preference shall be given first to 
applicants who attended the SCHOOL in the preceding year; and, second to applicants who have siblings 
that attended the SCHOOL in the preceding year. Parents/guardians wifl be notified of acceptance via 
U.S. mail and/or email within three weeks of the application deadline. Applicants whose applications are 
received after the deadline, including midtei:rn applicants, may be admitted as long as their admission does 
not cause the SCHOOL to exceed the capacity of its prograµl, classes, grade levels or facilities. 

Records Transfer 

Once a child is accepted as a student of the SCHOOL, the parents will be asked to notify the home school 
district of the transfer and formal notification will be sent to the student's previous school informing it of 
the enrollment in the SCHOOL and requesting the student's school records. 
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Fees 

There is no tuition required for full-time attendance. However, reasonable fees may be assessed by the 
SCHOOL for specific course materials and supplies and extra-curricular activities as authorized by state 
law. The SCHOOL may assess fees for a student's failure to return equipment or supplies as required by 
the SCHOOL or for the Joss or destruction of - or damage to - the SCHOOL's equipment or supplies. The 
payment of fees may be enforced by the withholding of a student's grades and credits as provided in R.C. 
3313.42. 

Fees will not be charged for filtering devices or software that protects against internet access to materials 
that are obscene or hannful to juveniles. Fees will not be charged for the use of computers. 

The SCHOOL will determine fees based upon the approval of the Board of Directors. 

Student Discipline 

Student Roles and Responsibilities: Each student will have an online and/or hard copy of the Student 
Handbook that outlines and defines the rules and regulations for student behavior. It also defines the rights 
and responsibilities of the students, the parents/guardians, the staff and the SCHOOL. Students and 
custodial parents/guardians will be required to acknowledge that they have read the Handbook and are 
aware of its content. Questions regarding the content will be addressed by the SCHOO L's administrative 
staff. Failure to abide by the SCHOOL's policies and procedures may result i n dismissal from the 
alternative school program. 

Dismissal Policies/Procedures: Dismissal policies for the SCHOOL will comply with Sections 3313.66, 
331 3.661 and 3313.662 of the Ohio Revised Code and related policies and procedures as approved by the 
Governing Authority. These policies and procedures will be delineated in the Student Handbook. They 
will clearly protect the student's right of due process, outline suspension and expulsion processes and 
rationale for their use and define notification procedures of the home school district. 

The primary goal of the SCHOOL is to ensure that all children will be ready for fifth grade. To achieve 
the standard of success, the following goals have been established: 

Goal: 

Standard: 

Measurement: 

Goal: 

·standard: 

All students will make progress towards targeted math and literacy skills and 
concepts as defined by The Newly Standards, the newly revised · Ohio's 
Academic Content Standards, and identified Student Leaming Objectives. 

All enrolled students will demonstrate or make progress towards each grade's 
math and literacy skills and competencies needed to succeeded in subsequent 
grades. 

Formal and daily assessments will be completed to determine each child's 
proficiency levels. Student growth measures will be implemented and 
monitored from entry to exit within each year. 

The social, emotional, and educational needs of all children will be identified 
and addressed 

All students will be carefully monitored to ensure social skills development· 
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Measureinent: 

Goal: 

Standard: 

Measurement: 

Facility and Location 

occurs and children are making progress in all key areas of the curriculum. 

Staff will monitor children's social emotional and academic needs to ensure . 
progress and regularly discuss the infonnation collected with families 

All students will develop higher level thinking skills that included problem 
solving, inquiry, and analysis to support generalization of skills to real. life use 
of the concepts and skills 

All students will demonstrate problem solving skills, inquiry, and analysis 

lnstructionalstaffevaluations using the Ohio Teacher Evaluation 
System ( 0 TES) will occur two times per year ensuring that learning 
opportunities provided to children meet the quality reflected in the teaching . 
professional standards. A strong data collection process will drive the . 
monitoring of children's development of the skill set to reach desired 
outcomes. 

Since.2009 in the inception of our public conversion school known as: The Greater Summit County Early 
. Learning Center kindergarten through fourth grade has been and remains housed at 2141 Pickle Road, 
Akron Ohio 44312. · 

Special Education 

TheSCHOOL is committed to serving students with IEP's and 504 plans in a mainstreamed educational 
environment that meets each student's unique educational needs. Our kindergarten through fourth grade 
public conversion school serves as a least restrictive and quality educational setting to best serve the needs 
of all children. 

.("· 

·······.··-···' ., .... _.. ., .. _ ... : .. -,-_ ... 
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EXHIBIT2 
Financial Plan 

Greater Summit County Early Leaming Center 
A Conversion Community School 

The financial plan complies with Section 33l4.03(A)1 5 of the Ohio Revised Code, which requires an 
estimated school budget for each year of this Contract and a total estimated per pupil expenditure amount 
for each year. · 

SCHOOL BUDGET 

Attached is a five year forecast detailing sources of revenues and expenditures following the 2 (two) 
Uniform Accounting System (USAS) methods of coding and account number structures. · 

Funding 

Funding for the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center is supported by state minimum foundation 
funds and any poverty based, special education and federal funds associated with that student flows from 
the resident district when the student transfers to the SCHOOL. 

Regular Review of SCHOOL Budget: 

Regular review of the budget is critical. The SCHOOL follows operating procedures recommended by the 
State Auditor, including those related to the presentation, review, discussion and approval or rejection of 
a line item budget and regular reports of cunent and encumbered expenses as well as facility costs, Regular 
audits occur by the State Auditor. SCHOOL financial records will conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles as required by the State Auditor. All allowable revenues and expenses will conforin 
to appropriate guidelines in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial 
Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations." 

GREATER SUMMIT COUNTY EARLY LEARNING CENTER BUDGET NARRATIVE 

OVERVIEW: The Greater Summit County Early Learning Center has developed a five year forecast that 
will provide the children in the SCHOOL with an outstanding educational experience. The SCHOOL will 
become a model 21st Century early learning center utilizing age appropriate instruction, innovative 
programming and high academic expectations. 

REVENUE: The SCHOOL is projecting State Revenue based on the current method of funding (ADM) 
as the new structure as approved by Governor Kasich. The budget assumes approval of all plans and grant 
applications submitted through the CCIP. The grant also assumes Title I and Block Grant monies. 

EXPENDITURES: The SCHOOL will purchase the services of a Director; teaching staff (7 FTE); 
educational aides (2 FTE); and a secretary (.25 FTE.); and special services encompassing speech services . . , 
nurse services, school psychologist, and music teacher (.25 FTE). Staff will be a purchased service through 
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the Sl'ONSOR. Foreign.language and music will be introduced through speakers, association with the 
local Asia, Inc., and in collabor(itioh with the Cont;u~h1s Institu.te with the University of Akron. These 
programs will be supported through-technology, software programs, and teacher directed experiences. 

Costs for.fiscal services; audit costs, rent and sponsor fee have been projected in the budget. 
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FIVE YEAR FORECAST 

GreatietSummitCounty&lly Leaming Cenler ~ 
~ StaleniemOf Receipi, -DistiUrseirients. ·am·ChangeSin Fi:n:f ~ Bal&nces. 

·t· 

+ ·t 
' ·y. 

~R!C!!lpls 
lf,Staie F..-. Paymeflls(3110, 3211) 
~ !« Servi<e>(1500) 
!Fees (1SOO, 1700) 

~~~;:9~~~.1sro.~l 
~· . . 
]Op aliiN Die' unents 
·~100 Salaries and Wages 
~Employee RetRroent 3nd tn'SUrance 8enelits 

.···.j:=~:.... . .. 
~600 Gapilal Outl:a~ -New 
)700 cap;lal Qutlay-Replacement 
jOOOO!her . 

f.;-ota1 Opemlil\g DisbuiselnenlS 

Ie=or~-°""cuncieii · . 
~~ . 

For the Ftscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 through 2014, Actual ancl 
1he F~ YeaisEnding.June 30, 2015 through 2019, Forecasled -Fiscal Year F1SC81Year F"r:scal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

_1212 2013: 2014 2015- 20'\6 

$354,331.00 $595.418.00 $778,155.63 $846,642.45 $846,642.45 
$(lo00 $0.00 S0.00 S0.00 so.co 
$0.00 $0.CO $0.00 so .. oo . so.co 
W-90 . $:6.1as.oo ~~-tJO $4,0QO.OO. . ~000.CO 

$354,331.0Q $60_1,554.00 $786".4.:ta.$3 $850,642;~ ~Pt:2.45 

so.oo $(J.C0 $0.00 $0.CO $0.00 
$0.00 $0.CO $0.00 $0.IJO $000 

$335. 1920!) . ~.695.00 $711,m.cii!. $761,7'36.94 ~;589:05 
$27,201JXl $8.193.CO $20,ssg55 $8.000.00 . . •. $8;240.00 

$3., 120.00 $0.00 $675.00 so.co $6,000.00 
so.co so:oo $0.00 so.co $0.00 

$818.00 . . $7,066..00 $1-.45!1-00. $6.740.00 $2.000.00 

$366,331.00 $465.954.00 $734,562c.63 $776,476.94 $800.829.05 

-$12,000.00. $135.600.00 S51.8!;6,oo S74,16S.S1 . $49.813.40 

$27,871.QO $0.00 SQ.00 ~-~ . ~-00 

o. 0 1) """""" lOCOOCX 

'°""""' 0 O· = '°""""' 
$0.oo- $0.00 ·$0.00 $0.00 . $0.QO 

$15o..QO $0.00 $296,0s $306.00 $300,oo· 
$0.-00 $0.CO ~:~ 

$0c00 SO.oo 
$<>.00. $0.CO $0.00 . lJl>.00 

. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0:00 $0.00 . $0.00 si>.oo 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $(1.00 

$28Jl21.00 $0.00 $296.08 $300.00 $300.00 

County:Sumrna 

Foe 1ed 
Fiscal Year -Fiscal vear · Fs:alYear 

2017 2018 2019 

$846,64245 $846,642.45 $846,642.45 
$0.00 S0.00 $0.oo 
$0.00 $0.CO $0.CO 

. $4,IJQ().OO ~.000.00 ~.000.00 
$850.642.~ $S50.642.45 $8$?,642.45 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
SO.Cio $0.00 $0.00 

$808.125.12. $832.370.52 
SS:481.20·. . $8,741.82 

$85i','*1.6• 
SQ,004.07 

$6.000.CO $6,000.00 $6,000.00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

$8.000.00 . $2.000.00 $2.000.00 
$830.613.92 $849,11234·. $674,345.71 

I 

i 
$20,02!'£3 . $1,530.11 -S23:703.26 

I 
i 

·' . ~-00. $000 $0.i;JO 

"""""' """""' -- """""" """""" 
$0,0C) $0.00 . $0.00 

$300.00 . $300.CO $300.Q() 
·s0.oo $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 so.co· $0.-00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $o:OO $0.00 

. $300:00 $300.CIC $300.00 



EXHIBIT 3 
Governance and Administrative Plan 

Greau;r $ull1~it Countyl}arly Learning Center 
·A Conv.erslon Community School 

•. 

Not-for-Profit Corporation .. 

As required by Section3314.03 of the OhioR~visect'Code, the SCHOOL is organized as a public benefit 
corporation established under Chapter 1702 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Governing Body 
; . .,· 

The Governing Authority of the SCHOOL shrul be the Great¢r Summit County Early Leaming Center 
Board Of Directors (Board of Directors.) The Board of Directors shall be responsible for: 

• Helping create, approve and monitor the SCHOO L's annual budget; 
• Developing poiicies t() g'uidethe operation oft)le SCHOOL; . 
• Securing funding for the school; and, .· ' : . . 
• Maintaining a commitment to the vision, mission and goals of the SCHOOL and the children it 

serves. 

As vacancies arise on . the Board, the. r.emaining B()ard members will appoint a new member within 
thirty (30) days of the· t;late the positioll bec()mes :qpen. The Board of Directors. shall adopt By-L~ws 
to govern their configuration and operations. . ' . 

Conflicts of Interest 

The Board of Directors and the SCHOOL's officials .shall comply with Chapter I 02 of the Ohio Revised 
Code (the Ohio Ethics Law). and ·section '2921.42 pf'the Ohio Revised Code (relating to an unlawful 
interest in a public contract} and, except as otherwise' permitted by Jaw, no pat1 of the earnings of the 
SCHOOL shall inure to.the benefit of, or be distributable to the SCHOOL's members, trustees, officers . . . ' ' 
or other private persons except that the SCHOOL may provide reasonable compensation for services 
rendered and make payments and distribµtions in furtherance of the SCHOOL's purposes. 

. . ·-:: ·;:'·· '· _,_. .. 

Fiscal Officer 

SPONSOR shall be the fiscal agent for the SCHOOL and shall have its Treasurer be the designated fiscal 
officer of the SCHOOL on such terms as may be agreed by the SPONSOR and SCHOOL. 

School Management 

The SCHOOL shall secure ihe services of a Director who shall be the chief operating officer of the 
SCHOOL with primary responsibility for day-to-day operations of the SCHOOL. The Director shall 
oversee and coordinate thedajlyoperatiOn,and man!{gement of the-SCHOOL and shall be responsible to 
the Board of Directors; . · · _ , · · 

.: .... ._· .. · ..... -,._ ....... ~.- --·- ..... , . .,._ . , .. , ,,_. ____ ..•. , .•.... .;.,. .. _ .. 
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The Director shall also serve as a liaison among the SCHOOL, the SPONSOR and its contractors. 
Qualifications include a minimum of a Master's Degree in Education and/or Education Administration or 
related fields. The SCHOOL's Director will demonstrate the following person traits: management and 
interpersonal skills; ability to articulate the vision for the ~chool, strong character and ethical standards a 
commitment to continuous improvement, maiu1gement concepts·. and, strong written and verbal 
communication skills. · · · 

Employees 

The SCHOOL intends to use service contracts to obtain necessary personnel services. 
. . . 

· Disposition of Employees if Contract Not Renewed 

In the event the SPONSOR elects, pursuant to Section 3314.07 of the Ohio Revised Code to non-renew 
or terminate the Sponsor Contract for any of the reasons set forth therein, apd the SCHOOL is unable or 
unwilling to continue operations with another sponsor, the SCHOOL shall have no further contractual 
obligation to employees except as may be otherwise;provided by contract. 

Resolution of Disputes between the SCHOOL and the SPONSOR. 

If the SCHOO L's Board of Directors and the SPONSOR are unaple to resolve differences arising from the 
op~ration of the SCHOOL or the interpretation of the Contrac.t,,eithet'party may i·equest the services of a 
mediator appointed by the Federal Mediation and Conciliati6n Service .(FMCS) in accordance with its 
regular procedures. Participation in such formal or infonnal mediation.· is completely voluntary. If the 
parties, after the failure of the mediation process described above, are unable to resolve a material 
difference over governance, the SPONSOR may take such action(s) as SPONSOR determines are 
necessary in accordance with the Contract·Articles IX and X. The SCHOOL acknowledges SPONSOR's 
right to implement such remedies as SPONSOR determines serves the best-interest of all pruties . 

. •"' 

31 



Assessment System 

EXHIBIT4 
Governance and Administrative Plan 

Greater Summit County Early Leaming Center 
A Conversion Community School 

ACHIEVEMENT OF ACADEMIC GOALS 

Accurate assessment is critical to dete1mine whether learning is occurring. Consequently, built into the 
SCHOOL is a comprehensive plan that uses daily formative instructional practices and assessments to 
appropriately deliver a matched curriculum for each learner that will lead to success in summative data. 
Our district adopted the state's diagnostic screeners in grades K-3 along with the state identified DRA 
assessments. Baseline data is collected on each student prior to September 301h·across the K-4 system. 
Baseline data is used to determine achievement levels, inform all stakeholders of students who are "liot 
oil track" and "not on track" as well as students that fall under the 3rd grade guarantee legislation requiring 
an extended plan. This fall baseline data is directly linked to the Student Learning Objectives (SLOs) to 
implement and monitor student growth measures. The goal is to advance each individual student to higher 
levels of perfonnance according to their linked student growth measures. 

Goals/Outcomes Regarding the Ohio Statewide Testing Programs 

The SCHOOL will endeavor to achieve an overall attendance rate for the SCHOOL of93% or above and · 
a student grade level passage rate of 90% or above. Should the SCHOOL fail to meet the minimum 
standards prescribed by the State, it will endeavor to achieve the annual yearly progress specified in Ohio's 
State Accountability Plan. 

In the event the SCHOOL fails to meet minimum standards for perfo1mance in year one, it will be required 
to develop a Plan of Improvement that will be submitted to the SPONSOR for approval. Should the 
SCHOOL fail to meet these minimum standards for performance over a period of two consecutive years, 
the SPONSOR shall take steps to intervene in the SCHOOL's operation to correct problems in the 
SCHOOL's overall performance, declare the SCHOOL to be on a probationary status pursuant to Section 
3314.073 of the Ohio Revised Code, suspend the operation of the SCHOOL pursuant to Section 3314.072 
of the Ohio Revised Code, or terminate the contract of the SCHOOL pursuant to Section 3314.07 of the 
Ohio Revised Code as determined by the SPONSOR. 

Administration Schedule 

State mandated assessments will be administered according to dates established by the Ohio Department 
of Education. Off year testing may occur during the year according to the dates established by the 
SCHOOL. 

Other Academic Indicators 

Baseline data will be obtained on entering students' academic achievement and the SCHOOL will 
chart the growth and progress. This data will be critical to monitoring and making recommendations 
for necessary curricular changes. As described in the Educational Plan, students' perfonnances will 
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be assessed continuously throughout the academic year in order to determine progress gained and the 
need for intervention and/or extension activities. 

FISCAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Auditor reports, periodic cash flow statements and other relevant reports are deemed public records and 
therefore are available for review. The SCHOOL's annual report describes progress in these key areas. 
As the Governing Authority of the SCHOOL, the Board of Directors shall meet bi-monthly to review 
the financial records of the SCHOOL as required by Section 3314.023 of the Ohio Revised Code. The 
Governing Authority will provide ongoing monitoring in cooperation with the SCHOOL's Fiscal Agent 
and Director. 

MANDATORY STUDENT ATTENDANCE POLICY 
Requirement· 3314.0J(A) (6) 

The Governing Authority will adopt an attendance policy that includes a procedure for automatically 
withdrawing a student from the SCHOOL if the student, without a legitimate excuse (i.e., "excused" 
absences set forth above), fails to participate in one hundred five (I 05) consecutive hours of the learning 
opportunities offered to the student. . . . 
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The'Greater Summit County Early Learning Center is built on the following promises: 
'. 

• . PROlJl!;CTS THAT ENGAGE- Our program allows children to guide their own learning through 
· · ' · · · ' · . . · · .. · .. opportunities that encompass their interest and leads to engagement 

I and 'in~depth '.learning, Staff and parents observe student's 
approaches to foaming, ·paying close attention to what motivates 
each child to be enthusiastic and engaged in their learning. Ongoing 
documentation and case studies of each child are recorded by all that 
observe children in the .learning environment to record signs of 

.. .; . ' ··•. ¢ngagement in, order to en$Ui:e children are benefiting from the 
. . . . . . . . . ·· ~{?.h · opportunities. ~ · >children's engagement is measured by the 

• appiQlicheS'of leariJjrig that has been defined by· current research and includes levels of attention, 
p¢isistenoe, tlexibiiity, self-regulation, and learning behaviors (Hyson, ;200i). Documentation 
coliected helps the instructional team to continually make revisions that shape the enviroillnent and 
materials available to nieet children's need s and interest. . 

• MOTIVA 'flON to LEARN- Motivation to learn is fostered by 
erisutirig children are able to engage in self-directed exploration 
where. we serve as · facilitators instead of directly teach\ng. · 
Ctiildreri taking charge of their own learning activates their · 
positive emotions, motivation, and engaged actions. It is our role .• 
to kilow each chikl qnd to Understahd ineit appro&ches to learning 
and individual needs. in order to adapt the cutriculutn in a way that . 
Will\iptimize each individual's motivation and engagement in · 
theif oWil learning: . Appreciating motivation for learning 

· · ehjppwers children to be leaders inthe learning process where · • • .· . . . . 
they' are able to generalize skiils an& id.eas anitutilize wh,at they have leamed. Our. educational 
practices preserve and nurtlire each child'$ enthusiasm foi· learriirtg 'because they ate intrinsically 
niotivated fo learn through engagement in learning opportunities that are meaningful and· r.elevant to 
their everyday life. Our. high interest setting ensures that every child is safe to show enthusiasm and 
confidence in learning in a way that allows them to take risks that lead ·to discovery, exploration, and 
suqcessful understanding and developm,ent. Children who leave our educational setting will take with 
theni a sµstained desire fo continue their own· foaming bl')cause they were engaged actively, not 
passiv~ly, in the leiii.ning,process. ·· ·· ' · .. ··· . 

. . ·. .. . ·-. . 

':~-.·- __ ·_;):;.~:~-':,._:·. ; . . ._ . . ·/ 

• l\JULTl"LANGUAGE EMERSION AND GLOBAL AWARENESS-Meaningful connection s to 
Iait~uag~•ilhd cultures al'()\IO<ithe ~\obe are a natural part ofthe core curriculum. We recognize that 
res\1~ri:Jl.tells .. us •t)J,at preparing .children with 21st century skills must include instilling a sense of 
globallz.iit~Q!J: in our children and exposing them to many languages. Research continues to 

· · ... . . · · ·· ' demonstrate that Spanish and Mandarinare vital to 21st century skills 
and early exposure to multi language 6xperiences provide children 
with a foundation for later educational success by promoting 21st 
Century skillsto,uriderstand and address global issues; Learning from 
arid working coliaboratively with individuals representing diverse 
cultures, religions and lifestyles in a spirit of mutual respect and open 
dialogue in personal , work and community context, promoting the 
study of non-English language as a tool for understanding other 
nations and cultilres, applying appropriate 21st century skills to 

· .. - ___ ,, ... ,,,-,. .,.:,, . . -.-, .. 
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function as a productive contributor within an organizational setting (A Report and Mile Guide for 
21st Century Skills: www.21 51 centuryskills.org . We are building on community resources to do what 
we can to make language learning real-life and meanini\ful and incorporated into everyday experiences 
in our program. Daily us~ of the languages of Mandarin and Spanish aree?1bedded into each learning 
day naturally where staff mterchanges the languages and.students respond m the same manner. Parents 
and extended families are encouraged to suppo1t the languages at home by being provided handouts 
of all new words and phonetic pronunciations and meanings, audio references are available on our 
website for families to reference as they listen to pronunciations as well as see their clips of their 
children using the language during the scho6J. day. It is .our goal to start children on their path as 
lifelong learners and 21st century global citizens. Through9ut. the school year, there will be many 
opportunities with languages and cultures to help us relate to people globally and give children access 
to our new interrelated world. Through the use of technology, children in our program will have the 
opportunity to connect with children in Guatemala, Singapore, Taiwan; Brazil, Pue1to Rico, and 
Honduras. We want to support our children to .become.helping participants in their community and the 
world around them. We are working on meaningful projects and activities fot them to befriend others 
around the globe with opportunities to share work, exchange storfos and experiences and support one 
another. · 

• SOCIAL EMOTIONAL GROWTH- Our lei\fning environment .is based around chHdren's' interest 
.. and brings children together in a w~y that builds confidence, self-esteem and 

social- interaction that fosters relationships ·and soda! awareness. It is our 
focus to help children gain a foundation that builds social skills for lift;. We 
lmow from current research and we believe that social emotional growth is an 
indicator for school ,readiness and educational success and is the key to 
building pro-social be!J:11;viors ·. (Pianta; Cox 8l Snow, 20073

). We want our 
program to provide children with 'overa!T gro:Wth .and development that will 
support their lifelong learning efforts. · . 

• CURIOSITY · The classroom is children's canvas· fo1' ., 
developing their capacity to explore, discover, empower 
and imagine. We are careful that our focus is never 
narrowed to channel children's curfosity but to offer a 
learning environment that invites curiosity without limits. · . 

:.···' 

'.··· 
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• CELEBR.ATION OF SUCCESS • Our program takes every opportunity to celebrate the success of 
eii<;h child. ElecironiC portfolios are organized and kept throughout the year for students and families 
to review and spotlightprigjjial workand ongoing progress; \l,le .believe every child should be honored ' 
' . •' ' ', ' ,, ' iJorthe wot~ they do ~nd their leadership and uniqtie work 

. '• .. 
·.•.·, 

··should be celebrated and shared. Each student has a gallery area 
in the school where they make personal selections o( their 

. original work to be placed in their gallery where gallery walks 
occur among peer, ,(eaqhers, community, and families with 

'o)iportunitj¢s.for studeµisto talk about their work as they share 
' it with othe(s,.'We take every opportunity to highlight children's 
accomplishments thfough community events into' our monthly 
program newsletters . 

. . . . . ·,_ : . :, . ·. -. ·- ·-·=,:;. i : .'-. ~ :- -~. ,"'-: -.. : :·. : • 

• TRUST CIJILDREN TO'SUC~EED• .·.·. , 
. ., .. 

Otir · phi!()so~Iiy df teachirtg is· biiiltupon our thist 
tliat :.Pliildren . wilf ·sulilleeiL .The environment' is · 
always 9otisiderate of providing opportunities where 

· chiJd~et)'.are ,a~le to 11uide .. thelr own learning, as we · 
demoiist~ate our beliefin them and their capabiliH.es. 
the,r~ ,i,s a bal~f;)~ of ''.Etduit. supp'oh alid cht'14 ' 
· directip/1thr,oughoi,it ti).e day that supports and builds . 
trust t6" ·$\icceed, we< con~ciously provide the 

I ·o • ... •.; 
opportunities; means, and the resources to trust 
children will succeed by focusing on. their interests 
andellthusiasm, 011re,llphii!iiid$onvilluing the c~ildren's cbl,l#ibutiori to each' other's learning through 
teach<,1rf!j6i!itation of child chofoe'anq child direded learning; making them aware of the trust which 
leads Jo mc\re risk faking on .each child's part. · · · · · 

·'·' .'· 

• · · NUTJ,UTIQNFO.R LlF:E• Our curriculum focuses on strengthening childre1,1's mil.ld, 
' body and spirit ~nil .byfcicusing oh good nutrition skills, 
we ar¢'~uilding':c)\ildren's capacity for life long healthy 
practices. Exposing .. children to healthy foods through 
involving them.in cooking with nutritional ingredients as 
they prepare their .own daily snack's and experiment with 

. foods in the c60kiiig center is a powerful avenue to 
instill,ing nutritional awareness in our children and 21st 

' century.:content Children will be provided opportunities to 
create their own recipes, cookbooks, and other culinary 

, . · · · : · . · creations which help them find the power in a nutritious 
lifestyle. Daily opportm1ities.for gross motor activities inside and out of the school building are offered 
dally to support nutrition and health ®d wellness in our children. . . . . . . . ' . ' . 

. ·, . . , .·· 

, .. ·. 

, . ..,. ·- ·-'-,-· . \: . . . . 
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• EXPANDING OPPORTUNITIES· Meaningful life experiences both in.the classroom and off site 
are offered to each student. Our program has a commitment to work with community resources to 

ensure what children are learning in the. classroom has real life 
context .. · . Ongoing projects. aµd working beyond the obvious 

: promotes each student's creativity and . innovation, problem 
solving, critical thinking, communication and collaboration, and 

· is what will separate students who are prepared for increasingly 
. complex life and work environmen.ts in the 21st century and 
th.ose who are not. Alternative. ways to engage. children is our 
focus to' .extend· lea\njng. through ·many different means and 

:·avenues. 

• IUGH ACADEMIC EXPECTATIONS/EXPERIENCES· Power for lifelon 
high academic expectations and experiences.· . Vast exposure 
within the learning . environment . · promotes thinking, an& •.. 
acquiring of content and new information and skills. Students. •· 
are taught that thereis no right way .to approach something and 
they"are encouraged to build their capacity to structure relevant 
to them for meaning. Alignffient comes from the experiences 
we provide that embed the academic content standards in a. : 
meaningful learning context for children. · · · · 

·. . 
• COGNITIVE CONNECTIONS - We pride our selfon understanding how children approach 

learning in order to ensure that the oppo1tUJJities provided to children supports their learning and 
· · · development.· We focus .on a roetacogliitive approach to our 

instruction in whiCh·siuderits are taught to think deliberately 
about how they are learning can help students take control of 
their own learning, monitor their own progress and improve 
their own achievement. Cognitive connections are supported 

c through our compiehe~~ive curriculum that feeds into all the 
· acadell:lie and developm¢rital domains and supports mu! tiple 
ways to engage children in developing key concepts and 
skills. 
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• INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY - Our school is designed to empower and foster learning and 
development in young children through 21st century skills with technology applications that build new 
and· creative means of expression,:Each student has their own electronic portfolio, student page that 
keeps cl)rr~ntwiih their work for families to view.· Also oµr cwrent school website has a parent blog 
where parents canexchange ideas and stories. We also have a multi-- language page where families 
cari ·-access··. aµditory · support to learn the · · 
languages that tlieii: children . are using in 
schools. We aim to incre~se famlly!s use an4 · · 
uriders(andiitg of(~~hnology tools a~d learning'{ 
skills through our website and encouraging then.i ; 
to patticipate and contribute to the site with their . 
children. Weaving 21st century interdisciplinary 
themes into Jearning and innovation skills will 
prepare children for iire. l!nd varied epyiroiunen(~, ;' 
where they can exhiblta range Of functional anti':~ 
critical thinking .skills. Children engage each other .. 
tiµ'ough technology in. realistic and meaningful · 
oppottunities to share and collaborate on original 
work with peers from other. .early learning · .: . . 
programs, Through the use ofwir¢less webcarn te~Ji!iology and digital cameras children come together 
through these aiie11iies to engage in peer-to-peer iriteractiori. This electronic means of cooperation 
provides chil\h;li)nwith the opportunity to engage in a broad and diverse learning community as they 
collaborate and share their work. The increased exposure and varied modes of technology available 
will provide oppottunhies for. taking classrooms where ideas can be exchanged and interaction of peers 
is not limited by boundaries. Ourfocus,i:>n wchnolqgy in this way provides students with feedback and 
discussion on their work and prompts them to ref\ecit, revisit, and continually refine their experiences 
ilnd creations. · · 

• ENVIRONMENT Ai EFFORTS- An impottant day to day focus at our program is a conscious 
effort to promote higher Ievef thip](Jtig skills \hat includes "Thinking Green." Students in the 
classroo!fl lire conti11,uallY,, se()kit!B .out ':Vays to reuse and .recycle materials all around them. The 

. . . . . . . ' concept of recycling is introduced at the beginning of 
the school year when children are taught how to sort 
materials and look for symbols on plastics and other 
materials that · signal the children about recyclable 
materials. Recyclable materials are common place and 
rei,i$ed throughout all the learning centers. It is a natural 
part of the learning day for students to create, design, 
and produces unique and original art, inventions, 
architecture, and varied models from materials that 
they have recycled. We strive to make recycling and 
envfronmental awareness an unspoken and automatic 
be~avior inour students. We see them helping their 

gene~atl~n ·~6\T~aw~y 'fr~m: a dlspo~~ble · society and pr.ciblem solving new ways to think about 
. caring for the enviromrtent. . 

1. Hyson, M. (2007) Enthusiastic and Bnsas~d.L~ame,s;·:·A~pr~~~h~_ to. Leamine)~·.t.he Early C~ildhorid Classroom. New York: Teachers College Press. 
2. Partnership· for 21st Century S~ill~ (2003):. A_._i'ep_brt-and-~l~E Gµide for 21st'.Cenlury Skills. ~etrieved on May 5, 2009. 
3. http://WWW.2lstcentury~kllls .org/110V?nloads/P2- l ·_MILE_Guide_Printable.pdf . 
4. Piant~ R.C., Cox, M.J_:/and S,n9y;; ·K.L. (2_007). · Schocil Readiness & Transition to Kindergarten iii the Ern of Accountability. Baltimore: Paul H. Brookes. 

''· , . .,."-''' ., ,..~-., ··-.-. , .. .,.. ·····' .. :: .... :• ·; .. '· .. :. ~ ~-~-
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Section IV 
School History & Performance 

[This section is for informational purposes only; it will not be scored.] 

16. Provide a list of all community schools for which your organization has been a sponsor 
and indicate their current status (open; open and on probation; suspended; closed (non-
renewed); closed (voluntary); closed (terminated); or contract assumed by another 
sponsor). Greater Summit County Early Learning Center - Open 

17. Indicate which, if any, schools failed to open after payments were initiated. If any, please 
provide details of why the schools did not open. None 

18. For schools that closed prior to the end of the academic year; provide details of why the 
schools closed. NIA 

19. Indicate which, if any, schools have had findings for recovery and/or been deemed 
unauditable by the Auditor of State over the past 5 years. NIA 

20. Indicate which schools' contracts have been renewed. Greater Summit County Early 
Learning Center (GSCELC) - renewed July, 2015 

21. Does your organization sell services to any of its schools? If so, what services? How are 
the services and charges arranged? Are service agreements part of the community school 
contract? Yes; the Summit County ESC sells services to the Greater Summit County ELG. 
The Greater Summit County ELG management decides what service(s) they need to 

outsource and inquire if those services are available from the ESC. If available, a contract 
for service is sent to the ELG for their board review and approval. Example of services 
sold, include school psychological services and human resources support. Once the ELG 
board approves a contract, the ESC board then approves the contract. A purchase order 
is generated from the ELG and once services are complete, an invoice is sent from the 
ESC. This is the same process the ESC follows for all client districts. Charges are also 
consistent with what is charged to other districts. 
Service agreements are not part of the Community School Contract. The community 
school has the opportunity to seek any service desired from any qualified organization. 
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£ _;...___ 

N 

2013 - 2014 Report Card for 

Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 

SCHOOL GRADE 

Coming in 

2018 

Achievement 
This grade com~ two results for students who 
tOOk the state tests. The first result answers the 
qoestiOn - How many students passed the state test? 
The second result answers the question - How well 
did students do on the state test? 

Petf0111oauce Index 
gz..5010 ··············-························-···········-··-·-··················-·········-··A 
Indicators Met 

100.0% ·············································-···-·····-·····················-·············A 

e Gap Closing 
This grade shows how well au ~ents are doing in 
your .<fJStrict in reading, math, and graduation. It . 
answel'$ the questxin - 1s e>ferY student succeeding, 
regardless of inoome, race, ethnicity, or disability? 

NR 

. ljJ K-3 Literacy 
This grade answers the question - Are more students 

. learning to read in kinde19"rten through thiro grade? 

K-3 Literacy In1p1owunc11t 
NC ··············-········-············ ......................................................... NR 

!RN; 011381 

COMPONENT GRADE 

Coming in 

2016 

COMPONENT GRADE 

Coming in 

2016 

COMPONENT GRADE 

Coming in 

2016 

YalueAdded 

Progress 
This is your sdlool's average progress for its 
students in math and reading, grades 4-B. It looks 
at how much each sb.ldent learns in a year. Did 
the sllJdents get.a year's worth of growth? Did 
they get more? Did they get less? 

°""""····-······················································································c 
""""'···············-············································································ NR 
Students with oisab~mes. .................................................. _ ............. NR 
Lowest 20% in AchievernQnt •••••..••••••..•.•••••••.•• - ••..•.•••••••.••••••••••••••... NR 

Grad~on Rates 

Graduation Rate 
This grade answers the question - How many 
ninth graders graduate in four years or five years? 

This sdlool is not evaluated for graduation rare because there are not 
enough students in tire graduating dass. 

e Prepared for Success 
This grade answers the question - Are students 
who grad.- from your district ready for c:o!lege 
or a career? There are many ways to show that 
graduates are prepared. · 

Printed on October 21, 2.015 

COMPONENT GRADE 

Coming in 

2016 

COMPONENT GRADE 

Coming in 

2016 

"tlr.l:r•'. 

Coming in 

I 2016 I 
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2013-.2014 Report.Card-for Greater.SuinmitCountyEarly Leaming Center 

Achievement 

8 
This grade combines two resutts for students.who took the state 
tests. The first result answers the question - HoW many 
silidents passed ttte state test? The .second result answers the 
question- How we!! did students do on the state test? 

~ 
Perfonnance Index 
The Performance Index measures the ti:st results Qf e:tert sb.tdent,. not just those who 

2016 

Pa.'"..,,uaax J'hdec Trend 

~ 
score prolident or higher. There are sbc levels oo the incleX and <flSIJ'ia:s receive points 

1 for e>lf!IY student in each af t:t.ese levels. The higher the ad'liellement Jevel the more 
the points: awarded in the district's irde.x.. This rewards schools and distrlc:t5 fur 
imprOVing performance. 120,--~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Pafan&IOZ lbcfex' 

Achlevement Pctof 
Level -Advam:ed Plus o_o x 

"""'n<:ed 37.0 x 
A=lerab!d 37.0 x 

Proficient 25.9 x 
Basic 0.0 x 

LinW!d 0.0 x 
Untested o.o x 

92.6°/o 
111.1 of a poss;ble 120.0 

A= 90.0 - 100.0% 
B = 80.0 - 89.9% 
c = 70.0 - 79.9% 
D = 50.0 - 69.9% 
F = 0.0 • 49.9% 

IRN: 011381 

Points for .......... 
13 
1.2 
1.1 
1.0 
0.6 
0.3 
0.0 

Points --= 0.0 
= 44.4 

= 40.7 
= 25.9 
= o.o 
= 0.0 
= 0.0 

11CT'" 

• Mvanoed Plus ·­·­·-• limited ·­·-

Printed on October 21, 2015 

110.3 111.1 

2013 2014 

• 5 • • 
Basic Proficient Ao:ele:ratecl Advanced· 

# 
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2013 - 2014 Report Card for Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 

Indicators Met measures the percent of students who have passed state tests. 
Test results are reported for each student in a grade and subject. At least SO 
percent of students must pass to get aedit for the indicator. L;j 
Indicators Met 

1ndk:alas M:.ot: % 

100.0°/o 
4outof4 

"""""3-5 

..._ 100.0% 

3ni6'ade 
Re:lding 10ll0% 

........., 100.0% 

""'Grade 
Reacling 100.0% - NC 

5th Grade ...... NC 

""""" NC 

!RN: 011381 

.ti' 

.ti' 

"Iii' 
. v 

""""" 5" 

A = 90.0 - 100.0% 
B = 80.0 - 89.9% 
C= 70.0·79.9% 
D = 50.0 - 69.9% 
F = 0.0 - 49.9% 

This school does not have 
enough test results in 6th, 
7th, or 8th grade to display 

this table. 

Pliltted on Odx>ber 21, 2015 

/' 

Ohio Graduation Test 

This school does not have 
enough Ohio Graduation 

Test results to display this 
table . 
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Section V 
Sponsor Oversight & Evaluation 

22. Describe your organization's system for monitoring school accountability and compliance. 
What is the protocol for on-site school reviews; what information is collected during these 
reviews? If available, please provide a copy of any guidance documents about the 
oversight and monitoring process used to explain to sponsored schools. 
As the Sponsor of Greater Summit County Early Learning Center, we follow "monthly" on­
site school reviews per the data collection timelines structured across the year during 
each new school year. The first data collection review takes place in August where the 
sponsor's review entails collecting enrollment numbers and daily average attendance as 
well as following the checklist for assurances by the sponsor. The second onsite review 
includes the checklist of assurances but also adds specifically a focus on data collection 
in September where we seek evidence of what baseline data and instruments/data tools 
are being used to collect each learner's data. The third onsite review includes enrollment, 
attendance averages, and SLO data that has been submitted to ODE reporting students 
"On track" or "Not on Track" by September 30'h of each school year. The fourth onsite 
review includes all of the mentioned above along with student growth measures that have 
been identified as part of each learner and each teachers evaluation data. The fifth onsite 
review continues to be comprehensive in evidencing any changes in enrollment, 
attendance, and to monitor the student growth measures and assessments to monitor 
gains along the learning continuum to see if interventions are indicators of effectiveness. 
The sixth onsite review will remain comprehensive but include a request to look at teacher 
walkthrough data, and a parent survey. The seventh onsite review looks at teacher 
performance data as it relates to the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System rubric/ratings. The 
eighth onsite review looks at comprehensive data that has been reported to ODE through 
ETPES for each teacher rating and student growth measures. The final school review 
looks at the school's local report card and summative data with standardized tests as 
soon as it becomes available, teacher ratings and principal ratings. We examine final end 
of year local enrollment data, academic data, attendance data, and standardized data to 
stay close to the monitoring of all facets of the school's success to see if goals were met 
and to formulate next steps for planning for the following partnership into the next school 
year. The sponsor's oversight and evaluation system is proactive in its review by 
attending monthly board meetings, frequently participating in monthly District Leadership 
Team Meetings or Building Leadership Team Meetings and at times at Tuesday's 
Teacher Based Team Meetings, or Weekly Data Team meetings that are in place at the 
school site. Board Meetings occur the third Monday of each month, Teacher Based Team 
Meetings and Data Team Meetings occur each Tuesday for Literacy/Project Based 
Approach Implementation, and each Thursday for Math/Stem data and implementation. 
The Governing Board receives a report of monthly data collection, and receives a report 
from the director who shares the information with the sponsor. Also onsite reviews occur 
unannounced each month by the sponsor representative to gain an authentic assessment 
of the day to day operations of the school's instructional delivery, attendance, and request 
to seek evidence of compliance requirements. 

23. Describe the roles, responsibilities and levels of experience of the staff members who 
monitor school accountability and compliance. Please provide the names and resumes of 
those individuals. 
The staff that monitor in the "sponsor" role are clearly separate from the community 
school and have exemplary credentials for the monitoring responsibilities. The past 4 
years the monitoring was through Superintendent, Mrs. Linda Fuline (retired June 30, 
2015). Linda was Summit Countv ESC Suoerintendent for 10 vears, and has extensive 
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prior experience as a district level superintendent and treasurer for 17 years. The current 
Superintendent, Mr. Joseph lacano, will continue with the monitoring of the community 
school. Prior to being hired this July, Mr. /acano provided consultation and was appointed 
interim Superintendent for Portage County ESC. Prior to working with Portage County 
ESC, Mr. /acano was a district Superintendent for 1 O years and a district Curriculum and 
Instruction Director for 5 years. The ESC Treasurer, Mrs. Sondra Clevenger, has over 15 
years' experience as the Treasurer for the ESC, and district level Treasurer for 9 years. 
Mrs. Clevenger advises on fiscal issues related to the community school. The executive 
assistant to the Superintendent, Mrs. Patricia Maloney, has worked for the Summit County 
ESC for 14 years, with 10 years as Administrative Assistant to the Director of Student 
Services, providing support to the department with special education compliance. 
Resume's for the aforementioned are attached. 

24. How does your organization share monitoring and compliance information with the 
schools? Please include examples of feedback (e.g., site visit reports, e-mails, and 
monthly financial/enrollment reports). 
As the Sponsor, we have frequent interaction and communication about monthly data 
reflecting attendance, academics, compliance or corrections needed within EMIS or 
SOES that need timely responses as we become aware. Monthly financial reports are 
reviewed together at the Community School's Board Meetings where the sponsor, 
community school and governing board review the financial standing, enrollment reports, 
and monitor goals set forth with academia and school goals. Site reports that occur 
monthly by the sponsor representative are shared with the stakeholders at the monthly 
board meeting during the sponsor report on each board agenda. An established two way 
communication and long standing trust and business relationship exists between the 
sponsor organization and the school organization. Clear and cohesive vision and goals 
are communicated through face to face conversations, emails, participation at board 
meetings and building leadership meetings to support monitoring and compliance and 
quality. 

25. What circumstances have led or would lead your organization to intervene in a school's 
operations? Please provide any examples, if applicable and including corrective action 
plans, probation or suspension notices. 
The Summit County Educational Service Center as stated in the Sponsor's Contract will 
place the school on probation if in one year period they have not met the academic, 
attendance, or fiscal expected standards/percentages of good standing requiring a Pian of 
Improvement that would be required to be submitted to the sponsor for approval. The 
Plan of Improvement would be monitored for two years and steps to intervene if the 
school's operation to correct problems with overall performance was not met, the sponsor 
will suspend the operation of the school pursuant to Section 3314.072 of the Ohio 
Revised Code or terminate the contract of the school pursuant to Section 3314.07 of the 
Ohio Revised Code as determined by the Sponsor. All of the above course of action is 
stated in Exhibit 4 of the Sponsor's contract with Greater Summit County Early Learning 
Center. No probation or suspension notices have been issued due to the excellent high 
performance data that has been evidenced each year of operation of this community 
school. However, the mandates remain in place in the contract in order to be assessed 
continuously because we are built on a prevention model that is dedicated to sponsoring a 
school that serves as a Demonstration Model for the state. Based on Ohio's new Report 
Card rubric-The Greater Summit County Early Learning Centers' Achievement 
Performance Index for 2013-2014 was 92.6% =A and 100% of Indicators Met =A for the 
State Report Card. Data Outcomes evidenced that 37% of students enrolled were in the 
Advanced (highest ranking) level of achievement, 37% were in the Accelerated level and 
25. 9% were in the Proficient level of achievement. No enrolled students were found to be 
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basic, limited or untested. The School received 111. 1 score of a possible 120. 0. The year 
prior the school based on Ohio's new report card earned a 110.3 out of 120.0 possible 
points, with a 91.9% Performance Index earning an A and 100% of all indicators were 
met. There were 31.3% of learners enrolled who scored in the Advanced (highest 
category), 53.1% who scored in the Accelerated, 12.5% in the Proficient, and 3.1 in the 
Basic Category. 

The sponsor and the school district have not received from Pearson the results from the 
new PARCC testing. Results are said to be coming by the end of November, but are 
unconfirmed at this time. We anticipate based on our local data of student performance 
that the PARCC data shows similar data results and look forward to seeing how the 
school's instructional innovative practices reveal themselves on the deeper learning 2181 

Century New Learning Standards. 

26. Describe how your organization ensures the autonomy of its schools while providing 
appropriate levels of oversight. Please provide, if available, any communications or 
written documents that may expand upon roles and responsibilities, apart from required 
contract language. 
The Summit County Educational Service Center has had a positive relationship with 
Greater Summit County Early Learning Center. Evidence of this includes the many invites 
that the school extends to the sponsor to participate in special events with families, 
business partners and professional development providers. The sponsor participates in 
and oversees building leadership and teacher based team meetings. Our best feedback 
in measuring whether we are satisfying beyond a role of sponsorship and support comes 
from the continued open invitations that welcome us in to classrooms, in house PD, family 
events, and board meetings. Also, the transparency of goals set based on student data 
and the school's intervent(on practices based on each /earner's data, comes from the 
school's choice to include us in the goals and practices, not from a requirement from us. 
The best thing that we do is allow the school to demonstrate its research based practices, 
trust their practices, make sure that they feel our support and that they know we value 
their commitment in what they are delivering at the educator level and student level and 
the impact they seem to be making on others in the community. We as a sponsor 
recognize that they are independent, self- determined, and committed to the work. Even 
though they welcome our attendance and opportunities to demonstrate the work 
happening, they don't seem to need us to carry out the work. This is our best way of 
knowing that they feel our support, but they also feel that they are giving the ability to 
advance their work as a "School of Choice" through our sponsorship of them as a 
community school/public conversion school. We provide ample oversight, but because of 
their consistent year to year performance ratings, we have been able to enjoy a 
relationship that keeps the school at the helm but at the same time share in their vision 
and hiah expectations. 

Please include an example of a site visit report, if it currently exists, as well as any other 
supporting documentation. Provide a listing of current staff's resumes/biographies for those who 
are responsible for oversight, compliance and monitoring. 
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.Ohio I Department 
ot Education 

Office of Quality School Choice 
2015-2016 Authorizer Opening Assurances ORC 
3314.19 & OAC 3301-102-05 

Authorizers are required to submit assurances annually for each of their schools at least 1 Q business. 
days prior to any of the following occurrences (please check all that apply): 

l!!J First day of instruction in the current academic year 

. D Change of location 

D Addition of a new facility 

. Date of authorizer visit to school: 

la11112015 

Please list first date of instruction for the 2015·2016 school year: 

Name of Authorizing Organization: 

Summit Counf Educational Service Center 

School IRN 

011381 

School Name (Note: a separate form is needed for each facility associated with this school IRN): 

!Greater Summit Early Learning Center 

School's Website: 

lscopeAcademy.org I 
School Leader's Name: 

lTeresa Graves, Director/Principal I 
School Leader's Phone Number: 

.1330-945-5600 x 511281 
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School Leader's E-mail Address: 

lteresag@cybersummit.org ] 
Treasurer's Narne: 

lsondra Clevenger J Treasurer's Phone Number: 

1330-945-5600 x 511224 

. Treasurer's E-mail Address: 

lsondrac@cybersummit.org J 
OEDS-R Administrator's Name: 

hennlferh@cybersummit.org J 
OEDS-R Administrator's Phone Number: 

12141 Pickle Road 

OEDS-R Administrator's E-mail Address: 

hennlferh@cybersummlt.org 

Physical Street Address: 

12141 Pickle Road 

City, State 

lAkron, Ohio 

Zip Code 

l44221 

County 

!summit County 

School Building Phone: 

1330-945-5600 x 511281 
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School E-mail (If applicable): 

School Fax Number: 

1330-945-6222 ' 

Mailing Address, if different from above: 

City, State 

Zip Code 

County 

. ·' ·' ·. 

How many facilities/locations are associated with this school I RN? 

1 

Please list all facilities/locations associated with this school IRN .. 

12141 Pickle Road, Akron, Ohlo44312 

Grade levels permitted per contract: 

K-4 

For the facility/location listed above list the grade levels served: 

K-4 

By checking "I agree" in the box you attest to the fol/owing: 

The authorizer has conducted a pre-opening site visit prior to the school opening for the 
2015-2016 school year and any time the school opens a new facility or changes locations; 

1111 agree. 
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A copy of the community school's current contract and any subsequent modifications is on file 

with the Office of Quality School Choice; 

!111 agree. 

The .authorizer has a copy of th~ school's plan for providing special education and related 

services to students with disabilities and the school has demonstrated the capacity to provide 

those services in accordance with Chapter 3323 of the Revised Code and federal law; 

1111 agree. 

The school has a plan and procedures for administering the achievement tests and diagnostic 
assessments as prescribed by sections 3301.0710, 3301.0712 and 3301.0715 of the Revised 
Code; 

Ill 1 agree. 

The school's personnel have the necessary training, knowledge, and resources to properly use 
and submit information to all databases maintained by the department for the collection of 
education data, including the Education Management Information System (EMIS) and its 
subsystem ODDEX established under section 3301.0714 of the Revised Code in accordance 
with methods and timelines established under section 3314.17 of the Revised Code; 
Iii I agree. 

All required information about the school has been entered/updated in the Ohio Education 
Directory System (OEDS-R) or any successor system; 

llJ 1 agree. 

The school has enrolled at least 25 students for the 2015-2016 school year, the minimum 

number of students required by division (A)(11 )(a) of section 3314.03 of the Revised Code; 

Ill I agree. 

All classroom teachers are licensed in accordance with sections 3319.22 to 3319.31 of the 

Revised Code, except for non-certificated persons engaged to teach up to twelve hours per 

week pursuant to section 3319.301 of the Revised Code; 

1111 agree. 

The school's fiscal officer is in compliance with section 3314.011 of the Revised Code; 

1111 agree. 

The school has on file both BCI and FBI criminal records checks for all licensed and unlicensed 

employees including private contractors providing on and offsite student services and that the 

school has conducted a criminal records check of each of its governing authority members; 

1111 agree. 
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The school holds all of the following: 

Proof of property ownership or a lease for the facilities used by the school; 

1111 agree. . . . , ; , 

A certificate of occupancy; 

1111 agree. 

'· .: _., ~ 

Liability insurance for the school, as required by division (A)(11)(b) of section 3314.03 of the 
Revised Code, that the authorizer considers sufficient to indemnify the school's. facilities,· staff, 
and governing authority against risk; 

lil I agree. 

A satisfactory health and safety inspection (or school environmental health and 

safety inspection forin ); 

1111 agree. 

A satisfactory fire inspection; and, 

1111 agree. 

A valid. food permit, if applicable. 

0 I agree. 

The school is in compliance with ORC 3313.536 regarding School Emergency Plans. 
lil I agre~. . . . 

The school has designated a date it will open for the 2015-2016 school year that is in 

compliance with division (A)(25) of section 3314.03 of the Revised Code; and, 

111 agree. 

The school has submitted five-year projections of operational revenues and expenditures pursuant to 
rules adopted by ODE and the Auditor of State. 

lt1l1 agree. 

The Sponsor·has monitored and evaluated the school's short and long term financial stability and 
viability and has a plan to assume operation of its' sponsored schools to complete the 2015-2016 
school year if necessary. 
lvl 1 agree. 

12 



The school has met all of the authorizer's requirements for opening and any other requirements 

of the authorizer. 

1111 agree. · 

By signing, I attest that I have reviewed the above information and it is true and accurate to the best of 

my wledge Joseph /cU!(V'l.O <t/ia./J.5 
Print Date 

This form can be signed byfland or etectronlcally by clicking "Fiii & Sign" in the toolbar. On lhe right column ol the screenop!lon11 wlll appear, cl!ck "Place Signatureb th d 
a signalure box where you wanl to sign lhe form. A new box will appear where you can creels a new electronic signature or add an existing password protected signs' 

1 
en raw ure. 

By checking the box below, you agree to submit a revised copy of this form to the Ohio 

Department of Education no later than the 15th of the following calendar month with the board 

chair's signature. 

01 agree 

By signing, I attest that I have reviewed the information with the representative and it is true and 
accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

;(¥-6 ~ z? h ba 16 C!.oak ? /z.,1 /; ~ 
Authorizer Board Chai'ts1gnature Print Date 

This form can be signed by hand 01 electron!cally by clicking "Fill & Sign• in the too!bar. On Iha right column of lhe screen options wlll appear, click "Place Signature" the·n dr 
e signature box where you want to sign the form. A new box will appear where you can create a new electronic ~!gnature or add an fil)(isling password protected slgn~ture. aw 

Submission Instructions: 

Authorizers are required to electronically submit a completed 2015-2016 Authorizer Opening 
Assurance Form to the ODE Document Exchange in SAFE using the following format: 2016 Name 
of School_IRN. -

1. Log into your SAFE account here: https://safe.ode.state.oh.us/portal/. 
2. Click "Collaboration Center". 
3. Click "ODE Document Exchange". 
4. Click "Documents to ODE". 
6. Upload by clicking the "Add Document" button. 

The Office of Quality School Choice and your consultant will use this site to access your 
submissions. If you have additional questions that I have not addressed, or if you are unable to view 
any 61 the information described above, please contact mary.cotton@education.ohio.gov. 

Ohio Department of Education, Office of Quality School Choice 
25 South Front Street, Mail Stop 307, 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-4183 
Telephone (614) 466-7058, Fax (614) 466-8506 www.education.ohio.gov 
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8/14/2012 
9/20/2013 
10/11/2012 
10/26/2013 
11/26/2012 
12/20/2013 
1/28/2013 
2/25/2013 
3/26/2013 
4/19/2013

5/20/2013 

Cleanliness 

I 
x 16/5/2013 

8/14/2012 
9/20/2013 
10/11/2012 
10/26/2013 
11/26/2012 
12/20/2013 I "" 1/28/2013 rl 

2/25/2013 
3/26/2013 
4/19/2013  

5/20/2013 

Appropriate Safety Certlfications I x 16/5/2013 

Educational Programming 

I I 
8/14/2012 
9/20/2013 
10/11/2012 
10/26/2013 

11/26/2012 
12/20/2013 
1/28/2013 
2/25/2013 
3/26/2013 
4/19/2013 (  

5/20/2013 

Students are engaged in academic activities I ' 16/5/2013 



~ 

Classes are being taught by certified teachers ' 

8/14/2012 
9/20/2013 

10/11/2012 

10/26/2013 
11/26/2012 

12/20/2013 
1/28/2013 
2/25/2013 

3/26/2013 
4/19/2013  

5/20/2013 
6/5/2013 

"' rl 



Testing (ie. Kindergarten Readiness & OAAs) are 

administered appropriately 

Consistently communicating a dear picture of the mission, goals, accomplishments of 

the school on a quarterly basis 

Evidence of outreach to other districts both locally, nationally, and globally 

E"'.idence of collaboration with local universities, 

colleges and PreK-16 Summit County initiative 

Student Count 

10/11/2012 Meeting with Director 1-2:30 

12/20/2012 ·Meeting with Director 

1/28/2013 ·Board Meeting & M~ting with Director 

11/26/2012 ·Meeting with Director 
9/20/2012 ·Meeting with Director 

8/14/2013 • Planning and Review 

x 
8/14/2012 
9/20/2013 
10/11/2012 

10/26/2013 

11/26/2012 
12/20/2013 

1/28/2013 

2/25/2013 
3/26/2013 

4/19/2013  

5/20/2013 

x 6/5/2013 

x 10/26/2013 

x 9/20/2013 

x 2/19/2013 

x 5/20/2013 

x 6/4/2013 

Telephone conversation with Director verifying 

appropriate procedures 

10/26/12 ·Global networking and school tour; GAR Foundation was extremely impressed with the 

program 

Canadian Grant 

October: UofA foreign language dept partnered with Summit Co ESC to help the students relate to 

people globally and to give children access to our inter·related world. 

October - Teacher of Chinese, 3 spanish teacher from UofA providing students with language and 

cultural experiences. 

April - Two unique opportunities from muscican Christopher Milo and Chinese Teacher, Jing 

Turner, offered seven weeks of classroom instruction in April. 

Local collaboration with Summit COunty First Things First i11itiative to develop a countywide 
process for preschool programs to share information with Kindergarten teachers in Summit 

County. 

Sc"hoot staff participated in quarterly Summit & Portage County Global Network, reaching out to 

various districts about global connections. 

Local collaboration with Summit county First Things First initiative to develop a countywide 

process for preschool programs to share information with Kindergarten.teachers. 

University of Akron collaboration 

K · 39, 1st 27, 2nd· 17, 3rd, 17 

97 
Kl • 17 /18, K2 • 17 /18, 1st· 13/13, 1st 11/13, 2nd - 16/16 

3rd -17/17 =TOTAL 91/95 

Kl • 18/18, K2 • 18/18, 1st· 12/13, 1st· 12/13, 2nd 16/17 

3rd· 16/16 

< 
< 
<D 

"""' 
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SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Community School; Greater Summit County Early Summit County Educational Service Center 
IRN: 011381 Date of Visit: 5/30/2014 Sponsor Rep: Linda Fuline 

Legislative Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Requirements: Conditions 
121.22- Public meetings; Document review of policy Public 
notice and records of; available and/or practice; and meetings/scheduled 
to sponsor and public upon board meetings are 
request; "sunshine" law Onsite observation to available to the sponsor 

confirm and the public with all 
dates appearing on the 
GSCELC school website 

149.41 - Records Retention Document review of policy Onsite observation 
Guidelines and/or practice; and evidence was located in 

the 2013-14 Parent 
Onsite observation to Handbook on Retention 
confirm Policy 

3302.04 - School Improvement Document review of policy SIP was found on the 
Plan -OIP and/or practice CCIP 

3313.53 - Entry Year Teacher Document review of policy Consistent with the Documentation was found 
Support and/or practice Transition Resident Educator for two Teacher Mentors. 

Program verifying current 
credentials 

3313.536 - Requirement to Document review of policy All current Safety maps 
adopt a comprehensive school and/or practice and routes were found in 
safety plan each classroom and 

general areas of the 
school. A crisis plan is 
located in the staff 
handbook and a hard 
copy is kept in the main 
office 

Comments 

The district follows prevention 
practices over retention. No 
retention has taken place over 
the last 5 years. 

Certifications are in teachers 
files, making them eligible to 
serve year 1, 2. 3 and 4 
Resident Educators 

Safety training for staff occurs 
in August annually 

co 
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Legislative 
Requfrements: 
3313.608 Fourth grade 

reading guarantee, intervention 
and remediation 

3313.6012- Requirement to 
have a policy governing 
academic 
"prevention/intervention" 
services 

3313.648 - Prohibition on 
offering financial or in-kind 
incentives to enroll students 

3313.667 - To the extent !hat 
state or federal funds are 
appropriated for these 
purposes, each school district 
shall provide training, 
workshops, or courses on the 
district's harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying policy 
and develop a process for 
educating students about the 
oolicv. 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy It was found that the 
and/or practice school follows new Third 

Grade Guarantee 
legislation and does not 
promote any student to 
fourth grade who does not 
attain at least the 
equivalent level of 
achievement designated 
under the Third Grade 
Guarantee 

Document review of policy The school follows a 
and/or practice prevention/intervention 

plan. !AT (intervention 
assistance team) 
meetings are documented 
and filed where effective 
strategies are 
implemented for each 
learner 

Document review of policy A nondiscrimination policy 
and/or practice was found and no 

preference or incentives 
were found as evidence 
of selection of enrollees 

Document review of policy All teachers received 
and/or practice Bullying PD and have a 

signed statement of their 
understanding of the 
bullying policy in their file. 
HR Melissa Habowski 
completed an on-site 
training on district 
harassment and 
intimidation - Jan. 2014 

Comments 

Third Grade Guarantee plans 
were in place for students 
identified 

en 
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
3313.671- Prohibition against 

allowing a student to remain in 
school longer than 14 days 
without submitting immunization 
records or evidence that 
immunization is in progress 

3313.672 -Requirement to 
request new student's records 
from previous school (requests 
for student's records made 
within 24 hours of child's 
3313.674- Health Screening 
and Body mass Index 

3313.71 - TB testing - written 
policies pertaining to the 
school's tuberculin testing 
program, at least consistent 
with requirements of the Ohio 
public health council and 
notification requirements of 
anyone found to have TB. 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy Notices were found in 
and/or practice; and student health records 
Onsite record review to requesting immunization 
confirm record sand all needs are 

satisfied 

Document review of policy Upon enrolling new 
and/or practice; and students, the school office 

requests student records 
Onsite record review to within 24 hours 
confirm 
Document review of policy For all students in A waiver was submitted to 
and/or practice; and kindergarten, third grade, ODE for BM! exemption 

fifth grade and ninth grade or 
submit waiver to ODE 

Onsite record review to 
confirm 

Document review of policy Statewide TB screening of all As part of employment 
and/or practice; and school employees is not practices, TB screenings 

recommended. are mandated 
Onsite record review to 
confirm 

Policy should be developed for 
each school or district based 
upon the incidence and 
prevalence of TB in the local 
community as well as the 
population and/or medical risk 
factors of the student/employee 
population. 

Comments 

A follow up phone call is made 
to the outlying school when 
records are not received in a 
timely manner 

IS> 
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
3313.719 Requirement to 

establish a written policy with 
respect to protecting students 
with peanut or other food 
allergies. 

3313.80 - Requirement to 
display the national flag - at 
least one flag of at least a 
certain dimension to be 
displayed. 

3313.86- Requirement to 
ensure the safety of school 
occupants from any known 
hazards in the building or on 
building grounds that pose an 
immediate risk to health or 
safety. 

3314.011 - Treasurer/Fiscal 
Office Bond/license 

Required Elements to be 
Included in the Contract (per 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy The 2013-14 handbook 
and/or practice states that each 

classroom will have a 
peanut-free designated 
area 

Site visit observation. Each classroom displays 
a flag 

Document review of policy All chemicals are kept in 
and/or practice; and a locked area. All water 

samples are tested 
monthly. The health 
department assesses the 
building and grounds and 
provides an annual report. 

Onsite observations to The report is used to 

confirm address and solve safety 
needs prior to the next 
school year. 

Document review of policy Minutes from the January 
and/or practice 2014 Board meeting 

reflects review of policy 
and purchase of 
Treasurer bond license 

Comments 

This district follows the safety 
guidelines provided by the 
Medina County ESC Nursing 
staff. The front office annually 
updates a school wide Allergy 
list that is provided to each 
classroom teacher and remains 
confidential 

rl 
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
(3) Academic goals to be 
achieved and the method of 
measurement to determine 
progress which includes the 
statewide achievement 
assessments; 
(b) The governing authority will 
purchase liability insurance, or 
otherwise provide for the 
potential liability of the school; 

( 14) The governing authority of 
the school, which shall be 
responsible for carrying out the 
provisions of the contract 

compensation for GA 
members - per 3314.025 

at least 5 members 

Not relatives, etc. 

BC ls 

Serving on no more than 2 
community school GA's 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review Three goals are listed to 
monitor academic 
progress in the 2014 
updated sponsor's 
contract 

Document review The GSCELC Governing 
Board has purchased 
liability insurance. 

Document review of policy There are three 
and/or practice; and Governing Authority 

Board members currently. 

Onsite observation to 
confirm 

Comments 

need documentation re: 
outcomes as part of the goals in 
the contract 

Discussion from the director to 
expand the board ocurred in 
November and January board 
meetings 

N 
N 



Legislative 
Requirements: 
Assurance that no state 

moneys are used to pay taxes 
owed by the school, consistent 
with RC. 3314.082. 

Spending by computer-based 
community schools consistent 
with requirements in RC. 
3314 085. 
(17) Whether the school is to 
be created by converting all or 
part of an existing public school 
or educational service center 

building or is to be a new start-
up school, and if it is a 
converted public school or 
service center building, 
specification of any duties or 
responsibilities of an employer 
that the board of education or 
service center governing board 
that operated the school or 
building before conversion if 
delegating to the governing 
board of the community school 
with respect to all or any 
specified group of employees 
provided the delegation is not 
prohibited by a collective 
bargaining agreement 
applicable to such employees. 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy The current status is 
and/or practice "Public Conversion" that 

began in 2009 

Comments 

M 
N 



SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Legislative Documentation Notes and Documentation Comments 
Requirements: Conditions 
24) The school will comply with Document review of policy School has metAYP. 3 year continuous plan & 
sections 3302.04 and 3302.041 and/or practice School's Performance implementation 
of the Revised Code, including Index earned an "A" on 

division (E) of that section to the the new Report Card 
extent possible, except that any 
action required to be taken by a 
school district pursuant to that 
section shall be taken by the 
sponsor of the school. 
However, the sponsor shall not 
be required to take any action 
described in division (F) of that 
section. 

[Note: 3302.04 - Requirement 
to develop a continuous 
improvement plan for schools ~ 
failing to make AYP, along with 
other actions, consistent with 
ORC 3314.03 (A)(24)] 

3314.041 Distributing statement Document review of policy This is posted at the We will post in our handbook 
concerning state-prescribed and/or practice school entrance hallway and website 
testing and compulsory 
attendance law to parents: 

The governing authority of each 
community school and any such 
operator of such school shall 
distribute to parents of students 
of the school upon their 
enrollment in the school the 
following statement in writing: 



Legislative 
Requirements: 

"The (School name) school is a 
community school established 
under Chapter 3314. of the 
Revised Code. The school is a 
public school and students 
enrolled in and attending the 
school are required to take 
proficiency tests and other 
examinations prescribed by 
law In addition, there may be 
other requirements for students 
at the school that are 
prescribed by law. Students 
who have been excused from 
the compulsory attendance law 
for the purpose of home 
education as defined by the 
Administrative Code shall no 
longer be excused for that 
purpose upon their enrollment 
in a community school. For 
more information about this 
matter contact the school 
administration or the Ohio 
Department of Education." 

3314.06 (D)(2) Upon admission 
of any student with a disability, 
the community school will 
comply with all federal and state 
laws reqardinQ the education of 
3314.08 Annual enrollment 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy A non-discrimination 
and/or practice; and policy is in our handbook 

and students are coded 
Onsite record review to correctly in EMIS 
confirm 
Document review of policy A process is in place for 
and/or practice new Kindergarten families 

to enroll during the week 
of March 24-27; as well 

Comments 

. 

ID 
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
(B)(2) The governing authority 

of each community school to 
annually report enrollment 
information, including 
categories and descriptors of 
student sub-groups (CSADM 
and EMIS) 

3314.16 Placement of 
automatic external defibrillator 
in schools - staff training -
qualified immunity. 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

as families of Grades 1-3 
receive a letter of intent to 
enroll for the upcoming 
school year 

Document review of policy None on site. 
and/or practice; and 

Onsite observation to 
confirm 

Comments 

We have passed our fire and 
safety inspections. And the 
chief did not think it was 
mandatory in serving this age 
group. The governing board 
therefore does not require the 
placement of an AED 

"' N 



Legislative 
Requirements: 
If a GA chooses to require the 

placement of an automated 
external defibrillator in its 
school, the GA must also see 
that a sufficient number of staff 
successfully complete training 
on the use of this equipment. 

3314.17 Statewide education 
management information 
system (EMIS) - Required 
report specific information 
through the EMIS system or its 
successor; penalties apply for 
failure to report complete and 
accurate data. 

(C) Each fiscal officer appointed 
under 3314.011 is responsible 
for reporting community school 
data under 3301.0714. A fiscal' 
officer found to have willfully or 
negligently reported inaccurate 
or incomplete data may have a 
civil penalty imposed and may 
have his/her license suspended 
or revoked. 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

. 

Document review of policy The EMIS coordinato\ 

and/or practice and the fiscal 
representative accurately 
and timely complete the 
required data. There are 
no plans to change the 
software package outside 
ofEMIS 

Comments 

. 

t-­
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
(D) No community school shall 

acquire, change, or update its 
student administrative software 
package to manage and report 
data required to be reported to 
ODE unless it converts to a 
student software package that 
is certified by ODE. 

3314.18 Breakfast and lunch 
programs - summer extension 
(does not apply to internet- or 
computer-based community 
schools) 
(A) Subject to division (C) of 
this section, the GA shall 
establish a breakfast program 
pursuant to the National School 
Lunch Act and the Child 
Nutrition Act of 1966, if at least 
20% of the students are eligible 
under federal requirements for 
free and reduced breakfasts, 
and a lunch program if at least 
20% of students are eligible for 
free lunches. 

(B) Subject to division (C) of 
this section, the GA shall 
establish one of a choice of 
summer intervention food 
services and any other summer 
intervention program required 
bylaw. 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy This school does not have 
and/or practice; and a food license and does 

not plan to apply for one. 

Onsite observation to 
confirm 

Comments 

The GA communicates to the 
parents of its students that a 
food service program is not 
provided at this school of 
choice. Parents are asked to 
brown bag their lunch 

00 
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
(C) A GA may determine that, 

for financial reasons, it cannot, 
and chooses not to comply with 
the requirements of divisions 
(A) and/or (B). In that case, the 
GA shall communicate to the 
parents of its students, in the 
manner it determines 
appropriate, its decision not to 
comply. 

(D) If the GA is offering a food 
service program under this 
section, it shall apply for state 
and federal funds allocated 
under division (8) of section 
3313.813. 
(E) If a GA does provide a 
breakfast program, breakfast 
may be offered to students in 
their classrooms during the 
school day. 
(F) Should the general 
assembly appropriate funds for 
the purposes of this division, 
the governing authority of each 
community school that is 
required under (A) to establish 
a breakfast program shall 
provide a breakfast free of 
charge to each pupil eligible 
under (A). 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Comments 

en 
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Legislative 
Requirements: 
(C)(1) & (2): If a site-based school 
requires students to participate in non-
classroom based learning via the 
internet, the school is subject to this 
section and to division (C)(1) of ORC 
3314.21 (filtering device) in the same 
manner as an internet- or computer-
based community school unless the 
nonctassroom-based learning 
opportunities are supplemental in 
nature and do not constitute a 
significant portion of the total learning 
opportunities and the student's 
residence is equipped with a computer. 

3319. 073 - Requirement for in-
service training in child abuse 
prevention for persons 
employed by an elementary 
school to work as a nurse, 
teacher, counselor, school 
psychologist or administrator. 

3319.22 - LPDC and Resident 
Educator Transition Program 

3737.73- Fire, Tornado and 
Lockdown Drills 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

Document review of policy Online school is 
and/or practice accessible to children 

when school is closed 
due to weather conditions 
in order to access 
curriculum 

Document review of policy Child abuse training is 
and/or practice provided annually for 

those who need it 

Document review of policy An LPDC committee is in 
and/or practice place and an updated 

Resident Educator 
Transition Program is in 
full implentation 

Document review of policy A log of drill practices is 
and/or practice; and kept in the office 

) 

Onsite observation to 
confirm 

Comments 

"" M 



Legislative 
Requirements: 
37 42- Requirements to take 

actions to prevent lead 
poisoning and to control lead 
hazards in schools. 

4111.17 - Wage discrimination 
prohibited; enforcement (written 
policies); Ohio Equal Pay law. 

4112 - Civil Rights Commission; 
standard non-discriminatory 
language as per federal 
guidelines on all public 
documents. 

Chapter 4167 - Public 
employment risk reduction 
program; concern is given to 
providing a safe and healthy 
work environment 

SCESC Sponsor Biannual Onsite Visit Form 

Documentation Notes and Documentation 
Conditions 

. 

Document review of policy Annual posting of lead 
and/or practice; and levels were found posted 

at each sink area 

Onsite observation to 
confirm 
Document review of policy We are an equal 
and/or practice opportunity employer that 

follows pay scale adopted 
by the Summit County 
Education Service center 
based on years of 
experience and 
qualifications per job 
posting 

Document review of policy Non discrimination 
and/or practice language is documented 

as per federal guidelines 
in our sponsor's contract 

Document review of policy Melissa Habowski, HR 
and/or practice; and Director for SCESC, 

documented training for 
Onsite observation to the employees 
confirm 

Comments 

All levels were found within the 
safety range 

All employees have attended 

standard human resources 

trainings 

rl 
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Annual 2013-2014 Sponsor's Report 
Submitted by Summit County Educational Service Center 

420 Washington Avenue 
Cuyahoga Falls, OH 44221 

for 
Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 

IR011381 
2141 Pickle Road 
Akron, OH 44312 

1. 011381-Greater Summit County Early learning Center K-4 is a public conversion school serving 
grades K-4. Greater Summit County K-4 has evidenced in its sixth year to be true in its mission to 
provide opportunities to children and their families that incorporate 21" century skills, 
problem/project based curriculum, a literacy rich integrated curriculum and environment, 
problem solving, foreign language, formative instructional practices and assessments where 
instructional delivery and strategies match appropriately to each student's needs that are 
supported by data and research based practices. 

2. Greater Summit County Early Learning Center has been monitored and reviewed by the Summit 
County Educational Service Center and has earned the following ranking in each of the following · 
areas: 

a. Education-SCORE-1 
b. Finance-SCORE-1 
c. Governance-SCORE-1 
d. Academic assessment and accountability during school year 2013-2014-SCORE-1 

The Greater Summit Count Early Learning Center was awarded $435,000 from the GAR Foundation 
(www.garfdn.org). The operational grant amount will span over a three-year period to support the 
model site so that educators and community across Summit County can benefit from the demonstration 
model of best practices. 

Greater Summit County Early Learning Center was recognized as the 2013 Charter School of the Year 
(Elementary) from the Ohio Association of Public Charter Schools (website unknown). 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or need additional information for our 
sponsor's report forthe Greater Summit County Early Learning Center K-4. 

Sincerely, 

Linda M. Fuline, Ed. S. 
Superintendent 
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Annual 2012-2013 Sponsor's Report 
Submitted by Summit County Educational Service Center 

420 Washington Avenue 
Cuyahoga Falls, OH 44221 

for 
Greater Summit County Early Leaming Center 

IRN011381 
2141 Pickle Road 
Akron, OH 44312 

I. 011381- Greater Summit County Early Leaming Center K-4 is a public 
conversion school serving grades K-4. Greater Summit County K-4 has 
evidenced in its fifth year to be true in its mission to provide opportunities to 
children and their families that incorporate 21 ''century skills, problem/project 
based curriculum, a literacy rich integrated curriculum and environment, 
problem solving, foreign language, formative instructional practices and 
assessments where instructional delivery and strategies match appropriately to 
each student's needs that are supported by data and research based practices. 

2. Greater Summit County Early Learning Center has been monitored and 
reviewed by the Summit County Educational Services Center and has earned 
the following ranking in each of the following areas: 

a. Education; SCORE-I 
b. Finance; SCORE -1 
c. Governance; and SCORE-I 
d. Academic assessment and accountability during school year 2012-

2013. SCORE-I 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or need additional information 
for our sponsor's report for the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center K-4. 

Sincerely, 

Mrs. Linda Fuline, Ed.S. 
Superintendent 

33 



Annual 2011-2012 Sponsor's Report 
Submitted by Summit County Educational Service Center 

420 Washington Avenue 
Cuyahoga Falls, OH 44221 

for 
Greater Summit County Early Learning Center 

!RN 011381 
2141 Pickle Road 
Akron, OH 44312 

I. 011381- Greater Summit County Early Learning Center K-3 is a public 
conversion school serving grades K-3. Greater Summit County K-3 has 
evidenced in its fourth year to be true in its mission to provide opportunities to 
children and their families that incorporate 21st century skills, problem/project 
based cun"iculum, a literacy rich integrated curriculum and environment, 
problem solving, foreign language, formative instructional practices and 
assessments where instructional delivery and strategies match appropriately to 
each student's needs that are supported by data and research based practices. 

2. Greater Summit County Early Learning Center has been monitored and 
reviewed by the Summit County Educational Services Center and has earned 
the following ranking in each of the following areas: 

a. Education; SCORE-I 
b. Finance; SCORE -I 
c. Governance; and SCORE-I 
d. Academic assessment and accountability during school year 2011-

2012. SCORE-I 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or need anything additionally 
submitted for our sponsor's report for the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center K-3 

Sincerely, 

Mrs. Linda Fuline, Superintendent 
Summit County ESC 
420 Washington Avenue 
Cuyahoga Falls, OH 44221 
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SPONSOR REPORT 

2010-2011 

Summit County Educational Center- Linda M. Fuline, Superintendent 

The mission of the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center, IRN #011381, is: We, at the 

Greater Summit County Early Learning Center, provide children with a quality learning 

environment that is responsive to their individual growth and development. Our priority is to 

foster learning opportunities that emphasize high academic experiences while also nurturing 

children's social and emotional growth. We strive to ensure that all students reach their fullest 

potential by using developmentally-appropriate and research-based practices. 

At its inception the GSCELC started with two (2) full day kindergarten classes. The program has 

expanded to serve first grade students during the 2010-2011 school year. As the program 

begins its third year in operation, it will serve Kindergarten through second grade. The parents, 

guardians, students and staff are proud of the school's accomplishments and effective 

practices. Partnerships have been fully implemented with The University of Akron and Kent 

State University to support and deliver multi-language experiences on site and through the use 

of multiple means of technology. Through Kent State University and members of the Early 

Childhood State Support Team the staff of the GSCELC is implementing a demonstration model 

of best practices in transitioning children from pre-school to kindergarten. An outreach 

program exists to all interested public/private/community schools to observe the instructional 

learning formats and effective pedagogy to impact quality. 

Through numerous and comprehensive site visits, both announced and unannounced, the 

Sponsor personally reviewed data, classroom practices, student engagement, curriculum 

implementation and school climate. At monthly board meetings, the Sponsor Report was given 

to the Governing Board and any members of the community in attendance. As part of the site 

visits, the Sponsor evaluated compliance with all laws and rules applicable to the public 

conversion school. Additionally, the community school contract was reviewed and found to be 

in compliance. 

EDUCATION: 

Overall Compliant N 1 

FINANCE: 

Overall Compliant N 1 
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GOVERNANCE 

Overall Compliant - 1 

ACADEMIC ASSESSMENT and ACCOUNTABILITY 2010-2011 

Overall Compliant -
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4/ 1115- Present 
2013-2014 

2003-2013 
1998-2003 

1993-1998 

Joseph J. lacano 

 

Administrative Experience 

Interim Superintendent Portage County ESC 
Administrative Consultant Portage County ESC 
Superintendent at Crestwood Local Schools (Portage County) 
Director of Curriculum & Instruction at Garfield Heights City 
Schools 
Middle School Principal at Cuyahoga Falls City Schools 

Areas of Achievement and Experience 

Educational Leadership & Progressive Ideas 

• Initiated major staff development programs in Crestwood and Garfield Heights 
(several examples throughout resume) 

• Brought Ray McNulty of Center for Creative leadership /Bill Daggett to 
Crestwood for staff development initiative 

• Worked with multiple organizations to establish community awareness program 
related to the dangers of opiates. Include the schools, local police, Drug 
Enforcement Agency (DEA), and local social agencies. 

• Established/facilitated internet based collaborations with schools and students in 
the middle-east and with scientists and educators working in Antarctica 

• Established collaboration with Kent State University to host students and teachers 
from Africa and Asia in Crestwood and established one of the first Mandarin 
Chinese programs in Portage County 

• One of only 3 superintendents in Ohio named by former state superintendent to 
Ohio's International Education Advisory Committee 

• Invited to serve on former state superintendent's "Closing the Achievement Gaps" 
Committee based on academic improvement in the inner-ring suburb of Garfield 
Heights 

• Attended Harvard Institute for School Leadership (twice) and graduate of the 
Ohio School Leadership Institute for School Superintendents 
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" 
Shared Services and Other Collaborations 

• · Initiated and administered AppliTrack Consortium for Portage County ESC, four 
member districts, and two community schools to facilitate recruitment of quality 
personnel. 

• Worked with non-affiliated schools in Stark, Cuyahoga, and Franklin Counties to 
recruited staff as part of a fee-based system that benefitted the PCESC 

• Initiated sharing of food service administrator between Crestwood and Ravenna 
School districts 

• Helped write grants to facilitate a waste disposal project that would benefit 
Crestwood and the Village of Mantua 

• Helped Garfield Heights Schools acquire over $300,000 in grants to improve 
reading skills. This collaboration involved the district, the state of Ohio, John 
Carroll University, and Kent State University 

• Initiated collaboration between Portage County ESC and Garfield Heights City 
Schools on ALICE (intruder) training 

• Presented to Sunnnit and Po11age County manufacturing organizations regarding 
how schools and businesses can collaborate to prepare students for in-demand 
jobs in area industries 

Long Range Planning and Goal Accomplishment 

• Coordinated two strategic plans for Crestwood and one for Garfield Heights. Pian 
at Crestwood led to improvement in district rating from "C" to "A" on State 
Report Card as well as numerous non-academic improvements related to 
facilities, community engagement, etc. 

• Prepared Strategic Planning process for a community school in Cuyahoga County 

• Provided Board of Education and staff with regular updates on initiatives, 
operations and goal achievement via repmts, newsletters, website, email, and in­
person presentations 

Financial and Budgeting 
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• Reduced Crestwood expenditures from $21 to $18.5 million dollars while 
increasing academic achievement nearly 15% on the local report card 
"performance index" 

• Decentralized budgeting/expenditure process in Crestwood enabling greater 
efficiency and speed for buildings and departments 

• Initiated process to analyzing expenses and redirect resources to priority areas 
identified in the Crestwood Strategic Plan. 

• Chaired committee that reduced health insurance pl'emiums for the Portage Area 
Consortium by over 20% annually saving Crestwood $400,000 per year and 
saving over $1 million dollars for member districts 

• Worked closely with district treasurer on the five-year forecast and shared 
information with community groups and the staff to ensure understanding of the 
district's finances 

• Coordinated Federal Programs (CCIP) for Garfield Heights 

Marketing. Customer Service. School Community Relations 

• Developed marketing slogan of "Scores Up, Costs Down" with private marketing 
firm that helped present a consistent message that improved community 
perception of the schools and led to passage of the first new operating levy in 20 
years at Crestwood. 

• Developed Mission Statement of "Every Child, Every Day" in collaboration with 
board and staff to guide our actions and increase accountability 

• Worked with administrators, secretaries, and receptionists to provide high quality 
customer service and a helpful caring climate for staff, parents, and students 

•· Established a communications committee in Crestwood that significantly 
improved our presence in the community and focused our message 

• Worked with marketing firm to do community surveys, staff surveys, and focus 
groups to make sure that we were recognizing and addressing community 
concerns 

• Established district and personal relationships with area Chamber of Commerce, 
local villages and townships, area ministers, pre-school parents, and other local 
service organizations. Included "Ask Crestwood" forum, outreach to ministers, 
the business community, and civic leaders 
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• Initiated development of new district website and revamped district newsletter at: 
Crestwood. Produced several promotional and informational videos for 
Crestwood 

Team Approach to Management and Personnel Practices 

• Established team-based hiring process district-wide including informal 
screenings, structured interviews, and identifying multiple perspectives from 
administrators, teachers, and parents 

• Worked with administration and staff to develop professional learning 
communities and building/district teams consistent with the Ohio Improvement 
Process (OIP) 

• Engaged administration, board, staff, and community in expenditure reduction 
process before asking for new operating levy 

Legal and Legislative 

• Settled multi-million dollar lawsuit with a regional health-care provider while at 
Crestwood 

• Successfully lobbied for change in state law allowing district to "split" a district­
wide Ohio School facilities Commission construction project 

Licensure and Educational Preparation 

Hold Ohio certificates and/or licenses for Superintendent, High School Principal, 
Middle School Principal and 7-12 Social Studies 

M.A. in Education from University of Akron, B.S. in Education and B.A. in History 
from Kent State University 

Attended summer sessions in school leadership at Harvard University and for Phi 
Delta Kappa 

Organizational Memberships 

Buckeye Association for School Administrators (BASA) 
ASCD (Curriculum Organization) 
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.• . ' Mantua-Shalersville Chamber of Commerce 
Member of American Society of Composers, Authors, and Publishers (ASCAP) 
IDEA of Summit County 
Greater Cleveland Superintendent's Association (GCSSA) 

State Level Committees 

State Superintendent's International Education C(}mmittee (2007-2010) 
BASA State Department Committee (2009-2010) 
BASNODE State Report Card Committee (2006-2008) 

. ODE Closing the Achievement Gaps Committee (2001-2002) 
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Sondra Clevenger 

Objective 

Experience 

Acquire a position as Chief Financial Officer within an Ohio school 
system where I can grow in my profession, fully utilize my education, 
experience and training. 

1996-present 
Treasiwer 

Springfield Local School District Akron, OH 

• Changed third party administrator of sew Insurance program and network, 
the change Is expected to save the dlstrtct approximately $250,000.00 
annually. 

• Saved 66% of Insurance premiums on property and fleet Insurance by 
shopping the competlllon. 

• Wol1<ed extensively on levy campaigns. Finally achieving success tn 
March, 2000. Although the levy failed a few times prior, we were out In 
the community making positive contacts with the people of Sprtngfteld. 

• Have taken advantage of the state Treasurer's borrowing and lending 
programs saving the district more than my annual salary during the two 
years of partlclpatlon. 

• Increased the efficiency of the payroll department and accounts payable 
by bringing a fresh perspective to the office. 

• Have a positive wo1idng relationship with the Board, Superintendent, 
Princlpals and other staff members while still accomplishing the duties of 
Treasurer. 

• Each year at Springfield, was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence In Flnanclal Reporting for our CAFR awarded by the GFOA. 

1991-1996 
Treasurer 

James A. Gartletd Local Schools Garrettsville, OH 

• Created a prescription card plan that was accepted by the classified staff 
and saved the district approximately $30,000.00 per year. 

• Streamlined dally deposit procedure, enhanced Internal control, Increased 
the efficlency of the office by wol1<1ng with the staff and enc;ouraglng 
computer literacy for evel)lone. 

• Through Ugh! cash flow management, made It possible to stop borrowing 
against our spending reserve. 

• Was an Integral member of two negotiation teams that successfully 
negotiated three labor contracts. One of these contracts was negotiated 
using Interest Based Bargaining. The last contract negotiated with both 
unions resulted In a move to comprehensive major medical that saved the 
district approximately $100,000.00 per year. 

• Voled president of the Portage County Treasurer's Association, tenn 
December 1993 - December 1995. 

• Created spreadsheets that would calculate monthly medical premiums. 
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l!ducatlon 

Interests 

Simply by changing a few numbers for premium increases or employee 
data we can now calculate In seconds what use to take quite a bit longfi)r. 

• Deveioped GAAP consumable Inventory policy along with the fixed asset 
Inventory policy. 

1990-1991 
Waltre&S 

Johnnies Restaurant Fairlawn, OH 

• Ensure a pleasant dining experience through prompt and courteous 
service. 

1987-1989 
Store Manager 

Cowell and Hubbard Jewelers Cleveland, OH 

• Responsible for monthly sales, customer service, Inventory, security, hire 
and training of staff. 

• Wori<ed with Insurance companies to help their customers replace lost, 
stolen o~ damaged merchandise. 

• Completed career development training programs required by Zale 
Corpora!lon for all managers. 

• Responsible for the resutts shown on the profit and loss report lssuect at 
the end of each month. 

University of Akron Akron, OH 
• Bachelor of Science in Industrial Management. 
• Financed college expenses through full time employment. 

Motherhood, church, crafts, swimming, gardening. 

Currently hold office of Treasurer with the Five County Chapter of 
OASBO. 
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PATRICIA MALONEY, CPA 
 

Objective 

To provide administrative support offering advanced, versatile and confidential ·office management skills with 
proficiency in Microsoft Office programs. Able to utilize my strong planning and multi-tasking skills, as well as, a 
problem solver who readily adapts to change, works independently, and exceeds expectations. Able work 
independently and manage multiple priorities to meet tight deadlines without compromising quality. 

Key Skills 

Office Management 
Electronic Presentations 

Report & Document Preparation 
Spreadsheet & Database Creation 
Accounts Payable/Receivable 
EMIS/ProgressBook Administrator 

Records Management 
Meeting & Event Planning 
Inventory Management 
Technology Management 

Staff Development & Training 
Policies & Procedures Manuals 

Experience 

SUMMIT COUNTY EDUCATIONAL SERVICE CENTER 2002 - Present 

Executive Assistant, February 2015 - present 

Administrative Assistant, 2012 - January 2015 

Director's Secretary, 2007 - 2012 

Student Services Department Secretary, 2003 - 2007 

Receptionist 2002 - 2003 

• Handle complex clerical tasks in supporting the Superintendent and the staff at the Educational Service Center 
(ESC). 

Provide monthly professional development meetings for the ESC secretarial staff. 

• Assist with monitoring and supporting the ESC sponsored community school. 

• - Entrusted to manage daily office operations. Provide timely, courteous, and knowledgeable response to 
information requests; prepare official office correspondence and maintain departmental information regarding 
outside agency c?ntracts. 

• 

• 

• 

Communicate effectively with school districts and departmental staff to plan meeting, trainings, and 
engagements. 

Established strong relationships with Summit County School district personnel to gain support and effectively 
achieve results necessary for the advancement of the Summit County ESC objectives and goals. 

Developed and maintain a departmental budget together with records management of requisitions, purchase 
orders, and contract invoice breakdown. 

Maintain a current staff roster and district assignment for the Summit County ESC employees. 

Prepared business proposals, policy and procedures, and initial office system for three innovative programs 
started by tl1e Summit County ESC. 

Develop innovative PowerPoint presentations ~sed by administrative staff for staff trainings and program 
development. 

Earn excellent marks on performance reviews, in areas including care and attention to detail in daily work; 
willingness to learn new duties; positive work attitude; and commitment to service. 
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PATRICIA MALONEY, CPA 
 

Education 

UNIVERSITY OF AKRON 

Certificate of Completion 

• 
• 

Administrative Professional with Microsoft Office Specialist 

Interpersonal Communication 

• Leadership 

IAAP / Institute for Certification (International Association of Administrative Professionals) 

• Certified Professional Assistant, (2010-2015); (Recertified 2015-2020) 
• Process of obtaining Office Management Certification 
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Entity has not yet received a sponsorship 
agreement, and therefore has not been 

evaluated. 
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Summit County ESC Application Rubric Highlights 
 
For your information and possible future use, the review team highlighted specific questions for areas that needed 
clarification and/or more specificity. These questions are below. The full rubric follows. 

 

Question Follow-up 

Section I:  Sponsor Commitment & Capacity 

3 

For FY 2016, the sponsor’s school has forecasted its income from Ohio 
Department of Education to be $869,662.74. Given the 3% sponsor fee 
allowable, Summit County should have a sponsor budget of more than 
$26,000. How is this money allocated within the ESC’s operating budget? 

5 
Please provide your conflict of interest policies and signed statements, as 
well as any other policies you have regarding conflict of interest. 

Section V :  Sponsor Commitment & Capacity 

23 
How do you address the knowledge gaps in your staff?  Who provides legal, 
special education and other needed services? 
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EDUCATIONAL SERVICE CENTER (ESC) SPONSORSHIP  

APPLICATION RUBRIC  
 
 
Name of Organization:  Summit County ESC 
 
Reviewed by:  S. Cherry, K. King, and J. Hoffman   Date:  November 23, 2015 
 
 
Rate each of the items on a 4-point scale using the following criteria: 
 

1 Poor response:  Does not answer the question or response is vague; marginal evidence of quality 
practices 

2 Limited response:  Response is incomplete; fails to address what is required or expected; insufficient 
evidence of quality practices 

3 Average response:  Response is complete; sufficient evidence of quality practices provided 

4 Strong response:  Clear, thorough, and convincing response; evidence indicates consistent use of 
quality practices 

  
Put each numerical rating in the scoring box located below each question.   Enter comments/notes 
to justify the rating in the Comments section of each question.  Submit the scoring summary for 
each section in the table provided at the end of the rubric. 
 
Section I:  Sponsor Commitment & Capacity 
 
1. Describe your organization’s mission, strategic vision and core values. How has sponsoring a 

conversion community school supported or extended the organization’s vision and values? Please 
provide any examples, such as mission statement, a strategic plan, board resolutions or policies; feel 
free to use hyperlinks to the organization’s website. 

 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor’s mission for 

sponsoring schools is broad or 
sponsor has no mission. 

 

 The sponsor’s vision for 

sponsoring is vague or absent, 

with no defined priorities, no 

strategic goals, and no core 

values. 

 
 
 

 The sponsor states a clear 
mission for sponsoring 
community schools. 
 

 The sponsor articulates a 
broad vision for sponsoring, 
with broad goals over an 
undefined period of time. 

 
 

 The sponsor states a clear 
mission for quality 
sponsoring. 

 

 The sponsor articulates and 
implements a vision and plan 
for sponsoring, including 
general goals and timelines 
for achievement.   

 
 

 The sponsor states a clear 
mission for quality 
sponsoring. 
 

 The sponsor articulates and 
implements an intentional 
strategic vision and plan for 
sponsoring, including clear 
priorities, specific goals, and 
time frames for achievement. 

 
 

 

Score: 1 
 

 
Comments:  While the SCESC has a mission statement of “providing leadership and service in education,” it 
does not have a specific mission statement for sponsoring community schools.  Its vision and core values 
also do not mention sponsoring or community schools.  The response provided by the sponsor alludes to 
the idea that its mission and vision as a sponsor are inherent in its overall mission and vision, but there is 
nothing specific in the mission, vision, or core values that references sponsoring community schools. 
 
 

stacy.cherry
Typewritten Text

stacy.cherry
Typewritten Text
Note:  Below are the application and additional documents as they were originally received by ODE.  As part of the
application process, sponsors have the option to provide additional information and documentation. Therefore, the
application and scores indicated below may not be final.
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2. Do you intend to open additional or assume sponsorship of existing conversion schools? If so, describe 
your organization’s plan for sponsoring additional community schools.  How many and what type of 
additional community schools do you plan to sponsor in the future?  In which counties and districts will 
the schools be located?   

 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments: The sponsor is not currently planning to open any additional conversion schools. 
 
 
3. Describe the level of financial resources your organization has had available for on-going sponsoring 

activities.  Please provide a budget of your organization’s yearly revenue and expenditures specific to 
sponsoring activities. 

 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor has no financial 

resources earmarked 
specifically for sponsoring 
activities. 
 

 
 
 

 The sponsor’s financial 
resources are not sufficient to 
carry out all needed 
sponsoring activities. 
 

 
 

 The sponsor has sufficient 
financial resources to carry 
out all needed sponsoring 
activities. 

 
 

 

 The sponsor has sufficient 
financial resources to fulfill its 
sponsoring responsibilities in 
accordance with national 
standards and commensurate 
with the scale of its community 
school portfolio. 

 

 

Score: 1 
 

 
Comments:  The Summit County ESC has allocated $3000 per year for staff to attend professional develop 
related to sponsor responsibilities. A board-approved sponsorship agreement that states that ESC staff will 
participate in such trainings at no additional cost to the ESC. There does not appear to be a budget for 
compliance monitoring, ongoing technical assistance, or any other oversight provided by the sponsor. 
 
Follow-up:  For FY 2016, the sponsor’s school has forecasted its income from Ohio Department of 
Education to be $869,662.74. Given the 3% sponsor fee allowable, Summit County should have a sponsor 
budget of more than $26,000. How is this money allocated within the ESC’s operating budget? 
 
 
4. Describe the frequency and the areas of professional development/trainings in which your staff is 

engaged relative to community school sponsorship. For example, do any staff attend national, state or 

ODE conferences and workshops? 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Sponsor staff rarely 

participates in professional 
development, internally or 
externally provided. 
 

 PD shows no alignment with 
the sponsor’s functions. 

 

 Sponsor staff sporadically 
participates in professional 
development internally or 
externally provided, and 
typically only what is required 
by ODE. 
 

 PD shows some alignment 
with the sponsor’s functions 
or in response to needed 
corrections. 

 
 

 Sponsor staff regularly 
participates in professional 
development, internally or 
externally provided, and 
beyond what is required by 
ODE. 
 

 PD is aligned with sponsor 
functions and takes into 
account identified needs (as 
determined by its self-
improvement process). 

 

 Sponsor staff attends national 

 Sponsor staff continuously 
participates in professional 
development beyond what is 
required by ODE and that 
complements the sponsor’s 
improvement efforts and that 
takes into account staff 
member’s strengths and 
weaknesses. 
 

 The sponsor is able to provide 
examples of how professional 
development is incorporated 
into its ongoing work. 
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conferences with PD focus 
(e.g., NACSA, iNACOL, etc.) 

 

 

 

 
 
Comments:  Summit County reports its staff has attended workshops on finance, school law, and sponsor 
updates through ODE and OAPCS. These topics align with the ESC’s three strategic goals. Additionally, the 
sponsor attended grant meetings with ODE when its school applied for Race to the Top funding. The ESC 
has not attended national conferences, regarding them as unnecessary in light of the fact that the ESC 
sponsors one community school and does not intend to sponsor additional community schools.  
 
The sponsor also describes its involvement in monthly Building Leadership team meetings and District 
Leadership team meetings. We note that this practice likely helps the sponsor foster a positive working 
relationship with its community school, but this type of professional development does not get at the spirit of 
this question. We recognize that schools and sponsors can and should continually learn from one another, 
but ultimately, training relevant to the sponsor’s role and responsibilities should be separate from meetings 
offered by its school. 
 
 
5. What policies and practices has your organization implemented to avoid potential conflicts of interest in 

working with the schools it sponsors? Please provide a copy of your conflict of interest policy and 

examples of signed conflict of interest statements, if available. 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Schools sponsored by the 

sponsor have limited or no 
autonomy. 
 

 Numerous conflicts of 
interest exist between the 
sponsor and the community 
schools it sponsors. [e.g., staff 
and boards may overlap, 
sponsor may require school to 
purchase services from 
sponsor, schools may not be 
afforded appropriate 
autonomy, funds may be co-
mingled, etc.] 

 

 Decision making is not 
transparent; it is unclear 
what or if criteria are being 
used by the sponsor to make 
decisions. 

 

 Community schools are 
improperly offered incentives 
by the sponsor and/or 
required by the sponsor to 
make choices that may not be 
in their best interest. [e.g., 
may only contract with the 
sponsor for various services, 
contract services from sponsor 
in exchange for reduced 
sponsoring fee, etc.] 

 Evidence of conflicts of interest 
exists between the sponsor and 
the community schools it sponsors. 
[e.g., the sponsoring district’s 
superintendent fills the role of the 
community school’s superintendent 
with no accommodations for 
independent oversight of his/her 
role as community school 
superintendent.] 
 

 Decision making is not transparent 
and the criteria used to make them 
are inconsistently applied and not 
fully understood by sponsor staff. 

 

 In some instances, the sponsor’s 
decisions are improperly 
influenced by a management 
company or a community school’s 
governing authority.  [e.g., for 
example, a management company 
with multiple affiliated schools 
implies action related to one school 
will impact the others.] 

 

 

 No conflicts of interest 
(both in staffing and 
funding) exist between the 
sponsor and the 
community schools it 
sponsors. 
 

 While decision making is 
transparent to community 
schools and appears to be 
based upon merit, the 
process and criteria for 
making decisions are not 
fully transparent to the 
public. 
 

 No conflicts of interest (both 
in staffing and funding) exist 
between the sponsor and the 
community schools it 
sponsors. 
 

 The sponsor has a written 
policy that effectively 
prevents conflicts of interest, 
assures decision making is 
transparent and based upon 
merit. 

 

 The sponsor’s funding is 
structured in a manner that 
avoids conflicts of interest, 
inducements, incentives, or 
disincentives that might 
compromise its judgment in 
sponsor approval and 
accountability decision 
making. 
 

Score: 2 
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Score: 2 
 

 
Comments:  The rating is based more upon the lack of information to determine conclusively that the 
SCESC has implemented policies and practices to avoid conflicts of interest. The sponsor indicates that it 
has a number of policies that address conflicts of interest. However, the sponsor did not include these 
policies as part of its application. As the sponsor did not include its conflict of interest policy or any signed 
conflict of interest statements, it is difficult to discern exactly what its position is regarding this issue.  The 
contract between the sponsor and the community school includes a conflict of interest policy for the school’s 
governing board, but no policy appears to exist for the sponsor itself. Because these policies are not readily 
available, decision-making is not transparent.  
 
The application responses also state that the SCESC does not maintain the finances for its school.  
However, Sondra Clevenger is listed as the ESC’s fiscal officer (in the ESC’s organizational chart) as well 
as the school’s fiscal officer (on OEDS). This relationship is defined in the community school contract. The 
contract also provides for separate contracts for contracted services (e.g. special education services). 
Please note that HB2 will not allow the sponsor to sell services directly to the school after the current 
contract term expires. 
 
Follow-up:  Please provide your conflict of interest policies and signed statements, as well as any other 
policies you have regarding conflict of interest. 

 

6. How do you assess your organization’s performance as a sponsor?  Please provide any examples 

pertaining to an annual review by the board of the strategic plan goals achieved; or a continuous 

improvement plan, if applicable; or stakeholder input about services provided; etc.   

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor rarely examines 

its work to ensure it is 
meeting its Ohio sponsoring 
obligations and applicable 
laws. 
 

 The sponsor does not 
examine its operations for 
the purpose of improvement.   

 

 Does not evaluate self as a 
sponsor. 

 
 

 The sponsor sporadically 
examines its work to ensure it 
is meeting its Ohio sponsoring 
obligations and applicable 
laws. 
 

 The sponsor occasionally 
looks to improve its 
operations, but does not 
follow a structured process 
 

 The sponsor regularly 
examines its work to ensure 
it is meeting its Ohio 
sponsoring obligations and 
applicable laws. 
 

 The sponsor follows a defined 
improvement process to 
evaluate its work against its 
goals and outcomes.  

 

 The sponsor uses the findings 
from its self-evaluation when 
making improvements in its 
practices. 

 
 

 The sponsor continuously 
uses a defined improvement 
process to evaluate its work 
against its goals and 
outcomes and to ensure it is 
meeting its Ohio sponsoring 
obligations and applicable 
laws. 
 

 The sponsor implements 
strategic action steps based 
upon the findings from its 
rigorous self-evaluation to 
improve its performance as a 
sponsor. 

 

 The sponsor continuously and 
rigorously evaluates its work 
against national standards 
for quality community school 
sponsors. 

 

 The sponsor reports annually 
to its governing entity the 
progress it is making on its 
strategic goals. 
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Score: 2 
 

 
Comments:  The Summit County ESC does not describe a process for examining its sponsoring obligations 
from a legal or operational standpoint, nor does it seem to conduct a systematic self-evaluation for the 
purposes of continual improvement. The ESC does examine its school’s success through regular meetings 
and data monitoring, but it does not provide objective metrics or standards that would lead to an 
improvement process. We note that the ESC demonstrates commitment in its school’s academic outcomes, 
but we encourage the ESC to adopt a more formalized self-evaluation tool. 
 
 
 
 
Section II:  Sponsor Application Process & Decision-Making (Note: If the organization has not 
recently opened or planned to open a new school, and has not taken on or has no plans to take 
sponsorship of existing schools anytime within the next two years, skip this section.) 
 
7. Describe the application process that developers follow in seeking sponsorship from your organization. 

Include a timeline.  

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor has no formal 

application process – no 
written application. 
 

 The sponsor’s application 
timeline is not defined. 

 

 Application guidance is 
absent or undocumented and 
varies depending upon which 
staff member responds to 
questions by the public. 

 

 The application process does 
not include interviewing 
applicants. 

 
 

 The sponsor has an 
application process; 
however, it is undocumented 
and loosely defined. 
 

 Timelines are loosely defined. 
 

 Applications are accepted in 
the same calendar year as 
the statutory contract 
adoption date, leaving little 
time for contract 
negotiations. 

 

 The application is not readily 
available to the public. 

 

 The application provides 
limited directions on the 
content and format expected 
of applicants. 

 

 The sponsor does not 
document the criteria it uses 
to evaluate its applications. 

 

 The application process may 
include an interview with 
applicants. 
 

 The sponsor follows and 
explains a systemic 
application process; 
however, it is not fully 
documented.  
 

 The sponsor typically follows 
a defined timeline for 
reviewing sponsor 
applications.  The planning 
stage is at least six months 
long. 

 

 The application is readily 
available to the public. 

 

 The application provides 
general directions on content 
and format expected of 
applicants. (e.g., does not 
include resources or 
references to assist the 
applicant.) 

 

 The sponsor documents the 
general criteria it uses to 
evaluate its applications.  
However, these criteria are 
not publicized as part of the 
application process. 

 

 The application process 
includes interviewing final 
applicants. 
 

 The sponsor follows a 
documented systematic 
application process. 

 The sponsor’s timeline allows 
for a pre-opening stage of 
least nine months so that the 
application process is carried 
out with quality and integrity.  
It aligns with the school year 
and provides ample time to 
adequately complete the 
application, plan, and prepare 
for the school’s opening. 

 The sponsor’s application 
guidance is documented, 
detailed and readily available 
to the public through the 
sponsor’s website.  (e.g., 
includes the procedure to 
submit (word length, font size, 
electronic/paper), includes 
references to assist the 
applicant, etc.). 

 The application provides clear 
directions on required content 
and format. 

 The sponsor documents and 
clearly communicates to 
applicants the criteria it uses 
to evaluate its applications. 

  Application clearly states the 
sponsor’s sponsoring 
priorities. 

 The process includes 
interviewing final applicants 
before adopting a contract. 
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8. Describe all elements of the application, including documents that your 

organization requests from developers (please include all supporting documents, such as the 

application, rubric and interview guide and any links to the organization’s website, if available).  

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor does not have a 

written application. 
 
 

 The application includes few 
questions. 

 

 The questions are very broad 
in nature and do not provide 
enough data to thoroughly 
evaluate the applicant’s 
educational and business 
plans and capacities. 

 
 

 General application 
questions, covering four main 
areas of school planning and 
operations [education plan, 
governance, finance 
(including market research) 
and accountability] along with 
suggested attachments, 
provide adequate data for 
analyzing an applicant’s plans 
and capacities.  
 

[For example:  Describe the 
demographics of the students 
that the school will serve and of 
the charter in which the school 
will be located.  Why is the 
school being proposed in this 
location? 

 
Generally describe the school’s 
curriculum plan and provide an 
overview of the instructional 
design and program to be 
emphasized by the school.] 
 

 

 Comprehensive, detailed 
application questions cross-
reference the four main areas 
of school planning and 
operations [education plan, 
governance, finance 
(including market research) 
and accountability] provide 
extensive data for rigorous 
evaluation of the applicant’s 
plans and capacities. 
 

[For example: Describe the needs 
assessment of the school’s target 
neighborhood and student 
population, including current 
student demographics and 
academic performance of other 
schools in the charter in which 
the school will be located.  
Explain the academic impact of 
the proposed school model on the 
students and charter. Describe 
the process used to assess local 
need and provide evidence that 
the charter approves of the 
proposed school. 
 
Explain the school’s curriculum, 
its alignment to the Ohio 
Standards and benchmarks, 
specific instructional materials to 
be used to implement the 
curriculum, and the process your 
school will follow to evaluate, 
review and revise its curriculum 
on an annual basis. 

 

 

 
 

 
9. Describe the criteria that your organization considers in reviewing applications for the replication of an 

existing school; for consideration of a currently operating school from another sponsor.  
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 No additional criteria are 

required of existing school 
operators and/or replicators of 
existing schools. 

 

 Sponsor does not look for any 

 While no additional 
criteria are required, the 
sponsor completes a 
cursory look of the 
current school’s 
academic success or a 
consideration for the 

For community school operators/ 
replicators: 

 Sponsor requires the applicant to 
meet the following criteria: 
o Clear evidence of capacity to 

operate a new school 
successfully while maintaining 

For community school operators/ 
replicators: 

 Sponsor requires the applicant to 
meet the following criteria: 
o Clear evidence of capacity to 

operate a new school 
successfully while maintaining 

Score:  N.A. 
 

Score:  N.A. 
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Poor Limited Average Strong 
evidence of past success or 
the capacity for growth. 

 

 No additional criteria are 
required of the existing school 
seeking to be switch sponsors. 

 

 Sponsor does not look for any 
evidence of past success or 
the capacity to operate 
successfully. 
 

 
 
 

school’s capacity to 
expand and operate 
successfully. 

 
 

quality in existing schools; 
o Document educational, 

organizational, and financial 
performance records based on 
all existing schools; 

o Must explain any never-opened, 
terminated, or non-renewed 
schools; 

o Must present a growth plan, 
business plan, and most recent 
financial audits; and  

o Meet at least one of the 
following indicators of 
effectiveness to earn approval 
for replication:  high academic, 
organization, and/or financial 
success to earn approval for 
replication. 

 
For community schools changing 
sponsors:  

 While no additional criteria are 
required, the sponsor reviews the 
existing school’s financial audits 
(where available), academic 
success and the school’s capacity 
to operate successfully, meeting 
and/or exceeding it performance 
targets. 

 

 The application process may 
include either a face to face 
interview with the applicant or 
contact with the school’s current 
sponsor. 

 

 The sponsor does not consider 
contracting with a community 
school that is being non-renewed 
by its current sponsor. 

 
 

quality in existing schools; 
o Document educational, 

organizational, and financial 
performance records based on 
all existing schools; 

o Must explain any never-opened, 
terminated, or non-renewed 
schools; 

o Must present a growth plan, 
business plan, and most recent 
financial audits; and 

o Meet multiple indicators of 
effectiveness in all of the 
following areas: high academic, 
organization, and financial 
success to earn approval for 
replication. 
 

Examples of success include:  never 
had an un-auditable school; no 
general education or special 
education school rated below the 
top two LRC categories; no dropout 
prevention and recovery schools 
rated below “meets”, etc. 
 
For community schools changing 
sponsors: 

 Sponsor requires the applicant 
to provide educational, 
organizational, and financial 
performance records to evaluate 
the school’s capacity to operate 
successfully, meeting and/or 
exceeding its performance 
targets. 
 

 The application process includes 
a face to face interview with the 
applicant and contact with the 
school’s current sponsor. 

 

 The application process may 
include visiting the school and/or 
attending a board meeting. 

 

 The sponsor does not consider 
contracting with a community 
school that is being non-
renewed by its current sponsor. 

 

 The sponsor’s process to 
consider sponsoring a currently 
operating school is publicly 
available. 

 

 

Score:  N.A. 
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10. Describe the level of expertise of those who review applications, including existing staff and external 

sources.  

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Review team members have 

little to no experience 
working in or sponsoring 
community schools.  At least 
one review team member is 
trained in school finance, but 
has limited experience 
applying the knowledge. 
 

 No external sources are 
sought in education related 
areas for which the review 
team members lack 
expertise.  These areas 
include:  
o Community schools; 
o Curriculum, instruction and 

assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; 
o School finance; and, 
o School governance. 

 
 
 

 The sponsor has at least one 
dedicated reviewer with 
limited experience (less than 
two years) working in or 
sponsoring community 
schools, and at least one 
other reviewer  who may 
have limited knowledge in 
one or more of the following 
areas: 
o Curriculum, instruction 

and assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; 
o School finance; and/or 
o School governance. 

 When existing reviewers do 
not have the range of 
expertise needed, the sponsor 
sometimes contracts with 
external sources to complete 
particular aspects of the 
application review. 
 

 The sponsor has at least one 
dedicated reviewer with two 
or more years of experience 
working in or sponsoring 
community schools. 

 

 Other reviewers are certified 
(where appropriate) and have 
experience working in the 
following areas: 
o Curriculum, instruction 

and assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; 
o School finance; and, 
o School governance. 
 

 When existing reviewers do 
not have the range of 
expertise needed, the 
sponsor contracts with 
external sources to complete 
particular aspects of the 
application review. 

 Many of the reviewers have 
practiced in community 
schools or sponsoring for 
several years, and have 
diverse expertise (and 
certification where 
appropriate) in the following  
areas:   
o Curriculum, instruction 

and assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; 
o School finance; and, 
o School governance. 

 

 When existing staff do not have 
the range of expertise needed, 
the sponsor contracts with 
external sources to complete 
particular aspects of the 
application review. 

 

 

 
 
 
11. Provide details of applications that were both approved and denied by your organization over the past 

five years, including reasons for both approvals and denials.   

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
 
 
 
Section III:  Sponsor Performance Contracting 
 
12. Describe your organization’s process and the frequency for reviewing school performance against 

measures included in the contract on an annual basis.   
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor lacks a formal 

structure for annually 
reviewing school performance 
measures. 
 

Or 

 The sponsor meets the basic 
requirement for twice annual 
reviews. 
 

 The sponsor’s review of 
school performance is 

 The sponsor’s frequency of 
reviews exceeds the basic 
requirement, and includes 
gathering information based 
on two or more of the 
following: academic 

 The sponsor’s frequency of 
reviews exceeds the basic 
requirement, and includes 
gathering information based on 
three or more of the following: 
academic performance, 

Score: N.A. 
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 The sponsor annually reviews 
the school’s legal compliance, 
but does not include a review 
of school performance against 
accountability measures.  The 
sponsor does not provide a 
report to the school as to its 
annual performance. 

minimal, focused mainly on 
the school’s compliance with 
laws and with limited 
examination of school 
performance against 
accountability measures. The 
sponsor’s report to the school 
is provided inconsistently. 

performance, classroom 
observations, interviews with 
school staff, governing 
authority members, parents. 
 

 The sponsor’s review of 
school performance is aligned 
with performance measures 
described in the contract. The 
school receives a report about 
its performance annually. 

classroom observations, 
interviews with school staff, 
governing authority members, 
parents. 
 

 The sponsor’s review of school 
performance is aligned with 
performance measures 
described in the contract. The 
school receives a report about 
its performance following each 
review. 

 

 
 

Comments:  The ESC describes a high-quality, rigorous and frequent process for reviewing school 
performance against measures included in the contract. The ESC performs biannual site visits, which 
include classroom observations and document review of teacher licenses and OTES evaluations. In 
addition to these visits, the sponsor collects formative data from the school throughout the year, with 
established deadlines for baseline and summative data in September and in May. Each additional monthly 
visit has a prescribed data focus, and the sponsor also performs unannounced monthly site visits to collect 
further evidence of student growth and fidelity to the contract. The ESC uses this data to inform a monthly 
report, which it provides to the school’s governing board at each meeting.  
 
 
13. Describe the breadth and scope of the performance measures set forth in the school(s)’ contracts. Are 

these measures differentiated among contracts? If so, how and why? [Note: if your organization has 
revised its performance framework and the revised framework is not yet in use, please provide a copy.] 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
Most contracts include:  
 

 Vague measures of student 
performance, such as local 
report card ratings or 
statewide assessments. 
 

 No specific metrics and 
targets for school-wide 
performance (e.g., “80% 
proficiency in 3rd grade 
reading and math OAA) 

 
 

Most contracts include: 
 

 Multiple measures of 
student performance , which 
may include the following: 
o Statewide assessments, 
o Attendance, or 
o (If applicable) graduation 

rates. 
 

 Metrics and targets for 
school-wide performance 
are vague (e.g., meet state 
standards) 
 

 Targets are for the all 
students group; they do 
not include subgroups of 
students. 

 

All contracts may include the 
following: 
 

 Multiple measures of 
student performance, such 
as: 
o Proficiency rates on state 
assessments 
o (If applicable) student 
academic growth, 
o (If applicable) graduation 
rates, 
o Attendance, and 
o (If applicable) post-
secondary enrollment after 
high school. 

 

 Metrics and targets for 
school-wide performance 
are specific (e.g., 80% 
proficiency in 3rd grade 
reading, meet or exceed 
value added, etc.) 

 

 Targets include all students 
and subgroups of students. 

 

All contracts include all of the 
following student measures: 
o Proficiency rates on state 

assessments, 
o Student academic growth, 
o Graduation rates, 
o Attendance, 
o (If applicable) post-

secondary enrollment after 
high school, and  

o (If applicable) student 
performance on other valid 
and reliable assessments as 
laid out in the contract. 

 Metrics and targets are specific 
and rigorous. 

 Targets include all students 
and subgroups of students. 

 At a minimum, targets are set 
that compare the school’s 
student performance to the 
state, schools serving similar 
populations and/or schools in 
the same geographical area. 

 Mission-specific academic 
goals may be included; such 
goals include specific metrics 
and targets. 

 

Score: 3 
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Score: 2 
 

 
Comments:  The performance framework does include multiple measures of student performance, but only 
some are stated plainly in the contract. For example, the school must achieve at least 93% attendance rate 
and a student grade level passage rate of at least 90%. These goals are specific and clear. The contract 
also implies that the school must “meet the minimum standards prescribed by the State” which alludes to 
but does not clearly define proficiency rates on state assessments.  The contract also emphasizes individual 
student academic growth, as measured by progress on SLOs, but it is not clear what rate of growth is 
expected, nor the minimum number of students who must meet these individual targets. Academic goals do 
not include provisions for student subgroups. 
 
 
14. Describe the performance standards and criteria a school must achieve in order for its contract to be 

renewed.  
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Contracts rarely define the 

performance standards and 
criteria and conditions for 
renewal. 

 

 Most contracts broadly 
define the performance 
standards and criteria and 
conditions for renewal. 

 Most contracts define the 
performance standards and 
criteria and conditions for 
renewal. 

 All contracts clearly define and 
detail performance standards 
and criteria and conditions for 
renewal. 

 

 

Score: 2 
 

 
Comments:  The Summit County ESC uses the language of the contract template to generally define criteria 
for renewal.  The contract states that renewal can essentially occur automatically. However, there does not 
appear to be a high-stakes review at the end of the contract term.  According to the sponsor, the school did 
meet its contract requirements and its contract was renewed.   
 
 
15. Are there consequences for failing to meet the standards and metrics in the contract?  If so, how are 

these communicated to the school? 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Contracts rarely define the 

consequences for meeting or 
not meeting standards and 
conditions. 
 

 Consequences either rarely 
communicated to the school 
or not communicated at all 

 

 The sponsor rarely enforces 
consequences for failing to 
meet compliance 
requirements or performance 
expectations. 

 
 
 

 Most contracts broadly 
define the consequences for 
meeting or not meeting 
standards and conditions. 

 

 Consequences may be 
communicated to the school, 
but not in a timely or 
systematic way 

 

 The sponsor occasionally 
enforces consequences for 
failing to meet compliance 
requirements or performance 
expectations. 
 

 Most contracts define the 
consequences for meeting or 
the consequences for not 
meeting standards and 
conditions. 

 

 Consequences are 
communicated to the school 
in a timely and systematic 
way 

 

 The sponsor regularly 
enforces consequences for 
failing to meet compliance 
requirements, and sometimes 
performance expectations. 
 
 
 

 All contracts clearly define and 
detail the consequences for 
meeting or the consequences 
for not meeting standards and 
conditions. 

 

 Consequences are 
communicated to the school 
in a timely and systematic 
way 

 

 The sponsor predetermines 
intervention actions for 
failure to meet contract 
requirements and clearly 
articulates and enforces 
stated consequences for 
failing to meet performance 
expectations or compliance 
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requirements. 
 

 

Score: 3 
 

 
Comments:  The contract specifies the conditions and consequences for not meeting the performance 
standards.  As the school has been performing well, the sponsor has not needed to intervene or have the 
school develop a corrective action plan.  However, contract language does leave that option in place, along 
with the option to put the school on probation, suspension, or termination. 
 
 
 
 
Section IV:  School History & Performance (Note: This section is not scored; it is for informational 
purposes only) 
 
16. Provide a list of all community schools for which your organization has been a sponsor and indicate 

their current status (open; open and on probation; suspended; closed (non-renewed); closed 
(voluntary); closed (terminated); or contract assumed by another sponsor). 
 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments:  The SCESC has only sponsored the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center, which is 
still open. 
 
 
17. Indicate which, if any, schools failed to open after payments were initiated. If any, please provide 

details of why the schools did not open. 
 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments:  The sponsor has not had any schools that failed to open after payments were initiated. 
  
18. For schools that closed prior to the end of the academic year; provide details of why the schools 

closed. Did any closed school leave unpaid debts to vendors, staff, ODE, etc.? 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments:  The sponsor has not had any schools that closed prior to the end of the academic year. 
 
 
19. Indicate which, if any, schools have had findings for recovery and/or been deemed unauditable by the 

Auditor of State over the past 5 years. 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments:  The sponsor has not had any schools that had findings for recovery or been deemed 
unauditable by the Auditor of State in the last 5 years. 
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20. Indicate which schools’ contracts have been renewed. 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments:  The sponsor renewed the contract for the Greater Summit County Early Learning Center in 
July 2015.  
 
 
21. Does your organization sell services to any of its schools?  If so, what services? How are the services 

and charges arranged? Are service agreements part of the community school contract? 
 

 
Informational only – no score 

 

 
Comments:  Summit County ESC sells services to GSCELC at the school’s request. In such cases, a 
separate contract is established. In the past, the ESC has provided psychological and human resources 
support to the school, and possibly other services too.  
 
 
 
 
Section V:  Sponsor Oversight & Evaluation 
 
22. Describe your organization’s system for monitoring school accountability and compliance. What is the 

protocol for on-site school reviews; what information is collected during these reviews?  If available, 
please provide a copy of any guidance documents about the oversight and monitoring process used to 
explain to sponsored schools. 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor’s oversight and 

evaluation system is reactive, 
focused only on the school’s 
compliance with laws. 

 

 The sponsor rarely enforces 
consequences for failing to 
meet compliance 
requirements or performance 
expectations. 
 

 During an onsite review, data 
are collected from a school 
employee available at the 
school on the day of the 
review. 

 

 The sponsor’s onsite reviewers 
receive very little training on 
the site visit process and no 
protocols are used. 

 
 

 The sponsor’s oversight and 
evaluation system is minimal; 
focusing mainly on the 
school’s compliance with laws 
and with limited examination 
of academic performance. 
 

 The sponsor occasionally 
enforces consequences for 
failing to meet compliance 
requirements or performance 
expectations. 

 

 During an onsite review, data 
are collected from a school 
employee available at the 
school on the day of the 
review. 
 

 The sponsor has an onsite 
visit protocol; however, its 
onsite reviewers are not 
trained on the tool; and 
therefore, 

 

 There is no evidence of 
consistent use of the protocol 
across reviewers. 

 The sponsor’s oversight and 
evaluation system is 
proactive, collecting and/or 
accessing and reviewing 
and/or analyzing data on the 
school’s compliance with laws 
and against performance 
targets stated in the contract. 
Combined, these sources of 
data inform contract 
renewal, termination, and 
intervention decisions. 
 

 The sponsor regularly 
enforces consequences for 
failing to meet compliance 
requirements, and sometimes 
performance expectations. 

 

 During an onsite review, data 
are collected from school 
administrators and a sample 
of instructors. 
 

 The sponsor’s onsite 
reviewers are trained on and 
regularly use observation and 
interview protocols.  

 

 The sponsor implements a 
comprehensive performance 
accountability and compliance 
monitoring system that is 
defined by the community school 
contract and that provides the 
information necessary to make 
rigorous and standards-based 
renewal, termination, and 
intervention decisions. 
 

 The sponsor predetermines 
intervention actions for failure to 
meet contract requirements and 
clearly articulates and enforces 
stated consequences for failing 
to meet performance 
expectations or compliance 
requirements. 

 

 During an onsite review, data are 

collected consistently from a 

variety of stakeholders, which 

may include the community 

school’s governing board 

members, administrators, 

teachers, students, parents, and 
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Poor Limited Average Strong 
 
 

 There is evidence of 
consistent use of the 
protocols across reviewers. 

 

 Data may be collected 
through a variety of means 
and throughout the school 
year. 

 
 

staff from the management 

company (if applicable). 

 Reviewers receive ongoing 

training, formal or informal, on 

the purpose, criteria, process 

and protocols of conducting 

onsite visits. 

 Additionally, training is provided 

as needed to remain current 

with changes in law. 

 Data may be collected through a 

variety of means and throughout 

the school year. 

 

Score: 4 
 

 
Comments:  The sponsor provides thorough oversight of the community school over the course of the 
school year to monitor compliance and accountability.  The sponsor has monthly visits to the school, with 
each visit having a specific purpose and involve obtaining data from several different stakeholders, including 
teachers and parents. The sponsor completes biannual compliance monitoring visits and uses a compliance 
rubric to complete these reviews.  However, it is not clear how reviewers are changed or how consistent the 
protocols are implemented across reviewers. GSCELC appears to have complied with both the law and the 
contracted performance indicators since its inception, so it is not known how the ESC will handle the issuing 
of consequences if needed. 
 
 
23. Describe the roles, responsibilities and levels of experience of the staff members who monitor school 

accountability and compliance. Please provide the names and resumes of those individuals. 

 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor’s dedicated staff 

member(s) have little to no 
experience working in or 
sponsoring community 
schools.  At least one staff 
member is trained in school 
finance, but has limited 
experience applying the 
knowledge. 
 

 No external sources are 
sought in education related 
areas for which the 
sponsoring staff lacks 
expertise.  These areas 
include:  
o Community schools; 
o Curriculum, instruction and   

assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 

 The sponsor has at least one 
dedicated staff member with 
less than two years of 
experience working in or 
sponsoring community 
schools, and a member who is 
trained and has limited 
experience working in the 
area of school finance. 
 

 Other staff have limited 
training and limited 
experience working in the 
following areas: 
o Curriculum, instruction and 

assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; 
o School finance; and, 

 The sponsor has at least one 
dedicated staff member with 
two or more years of 
experience working in or 
sponsoring community 
schools, and a member who is 
trained and experienced in 
the area of school finance. 
 

 Other staff are certified and 
have experience working in 
the following areas: 
o Curriculum, instruction and 

assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; and, 
o School finance; and, 
o School governance. 

 

 Many of the sponsoring staff 
have practiced in community 
schools or sponsoring 
community schools for 
several years, and have 
diverse expertise in the 
following  areas:   
o Curriculum, instruction and 

assessment; 
o Special education and ELL 

instruction; 
o School accountability; 
o School facilities; 
o School law; and, 
o School finance; and, 
o School governance. 

 

 When existing staff do not 
have the range of expertise 
needed, the sponsor 
contracts with external 
sources to complete 
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Poor Limited Average Strong 
o School facilities; 
o School law; 
o School finance; and, 
o School governance. 
 

 
 
 

o School governance. 
 

 When existing staff do not 
have the range of expertise 
needed, the sponsor 
sometimes contracts with 
external sources to complete 
particular aspects of work. 

 When existing staff do not 
have the range of expertise 
needed, the sponsor 
contracts with external 
sources to complete 
particular aspects of work. 
 

particular aspects of work. 
 

 

Score: 3 
 

 

Comments:  Despite the SCESC’s recent change in superintendent, several other sponsor staff have been 
working with community schools since the beginning of GSCELC. We acknowledge the breadth of expertise 
that exists within the staff of SCESC, but do not see evidence for sponsor-specific staff who are 
experienced in school law or special education. It is not clear how the ESC addresses these knowledge 
gaps. 
 
Follow-up:  How do you address the knowledge gaps in your staff?  Who provides legal, special education 
and other needed services? 
 
24. How does your organization share monitoring and compliance information with the schools? Please 

include examples of feedback (e.g., site visit reports, e-mails, and monthly financial/enrollment reports). 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor rarely reviews the 

monitoring and compliance 
issues of each school.  When 
or if reviewed, the sponsor 
provides few details and 
feedback that is rarely of 
value to the school. 

 The sponsor minimally 
reviews the monitoring and 
compliance issues of each 
school, and provides 
occasional feedback with 
limited details and that are of 
limited use to the school. 

 The sponsor reviews and 
provides monthly feedback 
on the monitoring and 
compliance issues of each 
school. 

 The sponsor reviews and 
provides monthly or more 
immediate feedback on the 
monitoring and compliance 
issues of each school. 

 

Score: 3 
 

 
Comments:  The sponsor provides the school with monthly feedback reports resulting from the onsite visits.  
The sponsor also provides information to the school through the school’s monthly board meetings, where it 
gives a report.  
 
 
25. What circumstances have led or would lead your organization to intervene in a school’s operations? 

Please provide any examples, if applicable, including corrective action plans, probation or suspension 

notices. 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor is unaware of its 

obligation to intervene in 
accordance with Ohio law. 
 

 The conditions that trigger 
intervention are never 
articulated by the sponsor to 
its schools. 
 

 The sponsor is generally 
aware of its obligation to 
intervene with a community 
school in accordance with 
Ohio law. 
 

 The community school 
contract states the conditions 
that may trigger intervention. 

 The sponsor establishes and 
makes known to the school 
in the contract the conditions 
that may trigger intervention 
and the types of actions and 
consequences that may 
ensue. 
 

 The sponsor provides timely 

 The sponsor establishes and 
makes known to schools at 
the outset an intervention 
policy stating the general 
conditions that may trigger 
intervention and the types of 
actions and consequences 
that may ensue. 

 The sponsor gives schools 
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Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor never or rarely 

provides schools with timely 
notice of contract violations 
and/or provides little to no 
information on performance 
deficiencies. 
 

 There is no evidence that the 
sponsor (based upon its own 
oversight or evidence from 
ODE and/or AOS that a 
compliance issue(s) exist), 
intervenes or follows-up on 
issues with schools in which 
compliance problems are 
identified. 

 
 
 

 

 The sponsor occasionally 
provides schools with timely 
notice of contract violations, 
and/or minimal notice of 
performance deficiencies. 
 

 There is minimal or limited 
evidence that the sponsor 
intervenes with problems 
related to compliance which 
are identified during its own 
oversight or when identified 
by an external agency, such as 
ODE or AOS.   

 

 When intervention occurs, it 
is usually very prescriptive in 
nature and/or the sponsor 
defaults to another entity, 
such as ODE or AOS, for 
intervention guidance.  
 

notice of contract violations 
and performance 
deficiencies. 
 

 There is evidence that the 
sponsor almost always 
intervenes in the community 
school’s operations to correct 
compliance issues or 
problems in the school’s 
overall performance, based 
upon the sponsor’s oversight, 
or evidence from ODE and/or 
AOS. 

 
 

clear, adequate, evidence-
based, and timely notice of 
contract violations and 
performance deficiencies. 

 The sponsor initiates 
intervention in the 
community school’s 
operations in a timely 
manner and clearly linked to 
correcting specific deficits in 
the school’s overall 
performance.  

 The sponsor allows school 
reasonable time and 
opportunity for remediation 
in non-emergency situations. 

 Intervention strategies 
clearly preserve school 
autonomy and responsibility 
(e.g., identifying what the 
school must remedy without 
prescribing solutions; and 
understanding that the school 
may choose a different path). 
 

 

Score: 3 
 

 
Comments:  The contract indicates that if the school fails to meet the standards in place, the school will be 
put on probation and required to develop an improvement plan.  Failure of the school to meet the tenets of 
the improvement plan would lead to suspension or termination.  The sponsor indicates that the contract was 
built on a “prevention model” and serves a demonstration model for the state.  As the school continues to 
exceed its contract requirements, the sponsor has not had to intervene.   
 
 
26. Describe how your organization ensures the autonomy of its schools while providing appropriate levels 

of oversight.  Please provide, if available, any communications or written documents that may expand 

upon roles and responsibilities, apart from required contract language. 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor is 

inappropriately overly 
involved in the day-to-day 
operational decisions of the 
schools it sponsors and/or 
operates more as a 
“program” of the sponsor. 
 

 Regardless of demonstrated 
success, all schools have 
limited or no autonomy over 
decision-making. 
 

 The sponsor collects data in a 
manner that is burdensome 
to the school, without 
thought to protect students 

 The sponsor is 
inappropriately slightly 
involved in the day-to-day 
operational decisions of the 
schools it sponsors. 
 

 The sponsor collects data in a 
manner that is burdensome 
to the school, without 
thought to protect students 
and public interests. 

 

 Sponsor may or rarely (no 
more than once every two 
years) examines its own 
compliance requirements to 
possibly minimize burden and 

 The sponsor has limited 
involvement in the day-to-
day operations of the schools 
it sponsors, targeting those 
that have demonstrated poor 
performance or non-
compliance.  
 

 The sponsor collects data in a 
manner that minimizes 
administrative burden on the 
school, and protects student 
and public interests. 
 

 Sponsor occasionally (once or 
twice every two years) 
examines its own compliance 

 The sponsor has no 
involvement in any school’s 
authority over its day-to-day 
operations, unless required 
to as part of its contractual 
obligations pertaining to 
intervention. 
 

 The sponsor collects data in a 
manner that minimizes 
administrative burden on the 
school, and protects student 
and public interests. 
 

 The sponsor annually reviews 
its own compliance 
requirements and evaluates 
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Poor Limited Average Strong 
and public interests. 
 

 The sponsor never examines 
its own compliance 
requirements to possibly 
minimize burden and 
increase the autonomy of its 
schools. 

 
 

increase the autonomy of its 
schools. 
 

requirements to possibly 
minimize burden and increase 
the autonomy of its schools. 
 

the potential to increase 
school autonomy based on 
flexibility in the law, 
streamlining requirements or 
other considerations.  

 
 

 

Score: 3 
 

 
Comments:  The sponsor is not involved in the day-to-day operations of the school.  While maintaining an 
open line of communication with the school and attending various meetings and events (at the request of 
the school), the sponsor allows the school to operate independently.  However, there do not appear to be 
any policies in place that guarantee the school’s autonomy. The sponsor seems to suggest that the school 
is given trust and independence due to its track record of strong academic performance, but it is not clear 
how the school’s autonomy would be protected in the event of lower performance. Given that the school 
invites the sponsor to participate in data meetings, we assume that the data collection process works well 
for both parties. It is not evident how the sponsor reviews its own compliance requirements. 
 
 
 
 
Section VI:  Sponsor Termination & Renewal Decision-Making 
 
27. Describe the process used for renewing a school’s contract. Is a written application required? If so, 

please provide a sample of the application and rubric. 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor does not have an 

application process for 
contract renewal.   

 
 

 The sponsor may have an 
application renewal process, 
but does not consistently 
require schools to follow the 
process, nor does it specify 
criteria for renewal. 
 

 The sponsor has an 
application process and 
requires all schools seeking 
renewal to apply through a 
renewal application.  
 

 The guidance regarding the 
renewal process is non-
specific as to criteria, content 
and/or format; 

 

 The process may allow a 
school to present additional 
evidence regarding its 
performance. 
 

 The sponsor has an 
application process and 
requires all schools seeking 
renewal to apply through a 
renewal application.  
 

 The requirements for 
renewal are publicly 
available and include written 
guidance regarding the 
process, content and format 
for renewal applications, as 
well as criteria/standards 
used to evaluate the 
applicant and a timeline.  

 

 The application provides the 
school an opportunity and 
reasonable time to respond 
to the cumulative report; 
correct the record, if needed; 
and present additional 
evidence regarding its 
performance. 
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Score: 2 
 

 
Comments:  It appears that contract renewal was based on the school board sending a letter to the sponsor 
requesting contract renewal.  While the sponsor indicates that there were numerous discussions about 
contract renewal 18 months prior to the renewal, it does not appear that the school was required to 
complete an actual renewal application.  As the school has a high academic performance rate, perhaps the 
sponsor felt that it was not necessary for the school to complete an application.  However, while the sponsor 
consulted with its board attorney and state auditors, it is not clear exactly what criteria, if any, the sponsor 
used in deciding to renew the school’s contract.  In addition, there was no guidance and process in place to 
handle a renewal decision in the event that the school did not perform well. 
 
 
28. What evidence does your organization consider before deciding to renew or non-renew a school’s 

contract? Does your organization provide a report to its schools prior to contract renewal?  If so, 

describe how that report is structured and what is included in it. 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Contract renewal is almost 

always assumed or made 
based upon factors other than 
school performance. 
 

 Does not provide the 
community school a report on 
its cumulative performance, 
other than the Sponsor’s 
Compliance Review report 
submitted annually to the 
department. 

 
 
 

 The contract renewal decision 
is based upon a limited body 
of academic and operational 
evidence (e.g., recent financial 
audits, recent compliance 
monitoring reports, or the 
school’s most recent state 
accountability report card). 
 

 May annually provide the 
community school with a 
report, but it does not relate 
to the school’s performance 
against its contract; and/or 

 

 When a report is given, it 
does not include multiple 
years of performance data 
against its contract term. 
 

 The contract renewal 
decision is based upon a 
substantial body of evidence 
of legal compliance and 
performance.  These data 
inform renewal decisions. 
 

 Evidence may include at least 
two  of the following: 
o Multiple years of student 

achievement;  
o Multiple measures of 

student achievement, 
including statewide 
assessments and 
measures; 

o Financial audits; or 
o Site visit reports and/or 

other compliance reports. 
 

 Annually provides each 
community school with a 
report of its performance; 
 

 The report includes multiple 
years but may not include 
the school’s entire charter 
term.    

 

 The sponsor bases the 
renewal process and renewal 
decisions on thorough 
analysis of a comprehensive 
body of objective evidence 
defined by the performance 
framework in the charter 
contract. 
 

 Evidence includes at least all 
of the following: 
o Multiple years of student 

achievement; multiple 
measures of student 
achievement; 

o Financial audits; 
o Site visit reports and/or 

other compliance reports; 
and, 

o Status reports on 
corrective action plans or 
other required 
interventions, if necessary. 
 

 As referenced in the school’s 
contract, provides each 
community school, in 
advance of the renewal 
decision, a cumulative 
performance report that 
summarizes the school’s 
performance record over the 
charter term and states the 
sponsor’s summative findings 
concerning the school’s 
performance and its 
prospects for renewal. 
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Score: 2 
 

 

Comments:  The Summit County ESC appears to have considered multiple sources of information when it 
decided to renew its school’s contract. However, without a clear renewal application process, the protocol 
for renewal remains undefined. The data provided in the annual report does not appear to capture the 
breadth of data collected and analyzed by the sponsor, and it does not include multiple years of evidence. 
 
 
29. What is the role of your organization’s board in deciding to renew or non-renew a school’s contract? 

Please provide examples of board structure, involvement/actions pertaining to such decisions. 
 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor’s governing 

board designates all school 
renewal or non-renewal 
decisions to staff and/or 
accepts contract decision-
making recommendations 
with only a cursory review, 
taking action perfunctorily as 
part of routine business.  

 
 
 

 The sponsor’s governing board 
typically designates school 
renewal or non-renewal 
decisions to staff, which provides 
the board with general 
recommendations for which 
contracts to approve.  Decisions 
are typically made with limited 
information provided by the staff 
and without consideration of the 
sponsor’s broad vision. 
 

 The sponsor’s governing 
board, while formally 
making all school renewal 
and non-renewal decisions, 
relies upon their staff to 
carefully review and 
recommend contract 
decisions aligned with their 
sponsoring vision and plan. 
 

 The sponsor’s governing board 
actively participates in all 
school renewal and non-
renewal decisions to ensure 
that all such actions are 
consistent with the sponsor’s 
strategic vision and plan for 
quality sponsoring. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Comments:  The sponsor’s governing board relies on the SCESC superintendent for recommendations on 
whether or not to renew a school’s contract.  The board is well aware of the high-performing status of the 
school and has visited the school and had a retreat there.  However, it relies on the staff of the SCESC to 
keep it informed about the community school and what is taking place there. 
 
 
30. Has your organization ever renewed a contract with a school that did not meet all of the performance 

standards specified in its contract?  Please explain the rationale, and in the case of a renewal of a 
school that failed to meet performance standards, were additional requirements placed upon the 
school? 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor grants renewal to 

all schools regardless of 
failure to meet the terms and 
academic achievement targets 
in their contract, fiscal or 
organizational problems, or 
compliance with the law.  

 
 

 The sponsor inconsistently 
grants renewal to schools, 
even those that have failed 
to meet the terms and 
academic achievement 
targets in their contract; have 
fiscal or organizational 
problems; or have been out 
of compliance with the law. 
 

Note: This approach to renewal 
decisions is evident regardless of 
the strength of the performance 
framework. 
 

 

 The sponsor grants renewal to 
schools that are fiscally and 
organizationally viable and that 
meet most of the following 
criteria: 
o Achieve their contractual 

academic standards and 
targets; or 

o Faithful to the terms of their 
contract. 

 
Note: Even in the absence of a 
strong performance framework, the 
sponsor consistently applies 
performance-based criteria in 
making renewal decisions. 

 The sponsor only grants 
renewal to schools that are 
fiscally and organizationally 
viable based on criteria in the 
school’s performance 
framework with rigorous, 
specifically goals and targets: 
o Achieve their contractual 

academic standards and 
targets; and 

o Faithful to the terms of their 
contract. 

 
Note: it is assumed that an 
exemplary sponsor uses a 
performance framework with 

Score: 3 
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 rigorous, specific goals and 
targets. 

 

 
  
 
 

Comments:  The sponsor has only renewed one school and that school appears to have met all of the 
performance standards specified in the contract.  
 
 
31. Describe your process, including staff and allocation of resources, in completing the closure of a 

school.  

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor is unaware of its 

obligation to oversee school 
closure. 
 

 In the event of a school 
closure, the sponsor has no 
formal policy or procedure for 
school’s to follow.  The closing 
school might default to the 
ODE guidance.  

 

 The sponsor does not oversee 
the closure process. 

 
 
 

 The sponsor is aware of its 
obligation to oversee school 
closure; however, it lacks the 
capacity to oversee; when a 
school has closed, the sponsor 
may or may not have 
submitted the Closing 
Assurances to ODE. 
 

 In the event of a school 
closure, the sponsor has no 
formal policy or procedure 
for school’s to follow.  The 
closing school might default 
to the ODE guidance. 
 

 The sponsor does ensure that 
student records are returned 
to the home school district. 
 

 The sponsor is aware of its 
obligation to oversee school 
closure. 
 

 The sponsor may have a 
formal policy, but at a 
minimum follows ODE’s 
guidance. 
 

 In the event of a school 
closure, the sponsor oversees 
the school’s governing board 
and leadership in carrying 
out a closure process that: 
o Informs parents,  
o Transitions student records 

to the home school district, 
o Disposes of school funds, 

property, and assets in 
accordance with law; and 

o Submits Closing Assurances 
to ODE 

 
 

 The sponsor is aware of its 
obligation to oversee school 
closure. 

 The sponsor has a formal policy 
for overseeing school closure. 

 In the event of a school closure, 
the sponsor oversees and works 
with the school’s governing 
board and leadership in carrying 
out a detailed closure protocol 
that ensures: 
o Timely notification to parents 

including assistance in finding 
new placements  

o Orderly transition of students 
records to home school 
district,  

o Disposition of school funds, 
property, and assets in 
accordance with law; and 

o Submits Closing Assurances 
to ODE 

 The sponsor carries out or has 
the capacity and commitment 
to carry out the closure to the 
extent possible if school’s 
governing authority fails to 
carry out the protocols. 

 

Score:  N.A. 
 

 
Comments:  The Summit County ESC has not encountered a school closure situation. Nonetheless, it 
should have in place a procedure to indicate its roles, responsibilities, and timelines in carrying out closure 
processes in the event that it were to occur.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Score: 3 
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Section VII:  Technical Assistance and Sponsor Requirements in Rule & Law 
 
32. Describe how your organization provides technical assistance to its schools. 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Technical assistance, if 

provided to schools, is 
reactive to problems that 
arise. 
 

 The sponsor does not assess 
the technical assistance needs 
of the schools it sponsors. 

 
 
 

 Most technical assistance 
provided by the sponsor is 
reactive to problems. 
 

 The sponsor occasionally 
solicits information about the 
technical assistance needs of 
the schools it sponsors. 
 

 The sponsor sporadically 
provides the technical 
assistance identified as 
needed by the schools. 

 
 

 The sponsor routinely provides 
timely comprehensive 
technical assistance in 
response to issues, problems 
and concerns identified by 
either the sponsor or the 
school. 

 

 The sponsor regularly assesses 
or solicits information about 
the technical assistance needs 
of the schools it sponsors. 

 

 The sponsor routinely provides 
the technical assistance 
identified as needed by the 
schools.  

 

 The sponsor regularly solicits 
feedback on the quality and 
impact of the technical 
assistance that it provides to 
the schools. 

 

 The sponsor always provides 
timely comprehensive 
technical assistance in 
response to issues, problems 
and concerns identified by 
either the sponsor or the 
school. 

 

 Almost all technical assistance 
is proactive, intended to 
prevent problems from arising 
in the schools it sponsors. 

 

 The sponsor regularly assesses 
or solicits information about 
the technical assistance needs 
of the schools it sponsors. 

 

 The sponsor always provides 
the technical assistance 
identified as needed by the 
schools. 

 

 The sponsor continuously 
solicits feedback on the quality 
and impact of the technical 
assistance that it provides to 
the schools it sponsors. 

 

 

Score: 4 
 

 
Comments:   The sponsor appears to provide various forms of technical assistance to the school, from 
maintaining working phones and computers to providing legislative updates.  The sponsor distributes 
information regarding training sessions to the school and does an annual assessment of the school to 
examine its technological capacity.  The sponsor’s website also includes several links to external resources 
the school can refer to if needed.   
 
 
33. Describe the roles, responsibilities and levels of experience of the staff members who provide technical 

assistance to community schools sponsored by your organization. 

 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Beyond what is stated in the 

contract, the sponsor cannot 
explain the distinction in roles 
and responsibilities between 
the sponsor staff and the 
community schools it 
sponsors.   

 

 While not documented 
beyond what is in the 
contract, the sponsor is able 
to explain in general terms 
how the roles and 
responsibilities differ between 
its staff and the community 
schools it sponsors. 

 While not documented beyond 
what is in the contract, the 
sponsor has and is able to clearly 
explain the roles and 
responsibilities of its staff relative 
to those of the community schools 
it sponsors. 
 

 Roles and responsibilities of 
the sponsoring staff are 
clearly separated, 
documented and delineated 
from the community schools 
it sponsors. 
 

 The community schools it 
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 The community schools it 
sponsors do not understand 
the responsibilities of the 
sponsor. 

 The community schools it sponsors 
generally understand the 
responsibilities of the sponsor. 

 
 

sponsors clearly understand 
the responsibilities of the 
sponsor. 
 

 

 
 

 
Comments:  Due to incongruity between question 33 and the corresponding rubric, this question has been 
omitted for all ESC sponsor applicants. 
 
 
34. How do you provide legal updates to your sponsored schools? Please provide any sample 

communications, or other means of disseminating legal updates. 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor never or rarely 

updates schools on changes to 
rule and law that impact the 
schools’ operations. 

 
 

 The sponsor sporadically 
updates schools on changes to 
rule and law that impact the 
schools’ operations, but has 
no process for doing so. 
 

 The sponsor’s updates may 
include directing schools to 
another credible source for 
this information (e.g., OAPCS). 

 
 

 The sponsor has a process 
that it uses to at least 
annually, informs schools on 
changes to rule and law that 
impact the schools’ 
operations. 
 

 The sponsor’s updates may 
include directing schools to 
another credible source for 
this information (e.g., OAPCS, 
OCQE). 

 
 

 The sponsor continually 
ensures that schools are 
informed in a timely manner 
of changes to rule and law that 
impact the schools’ operations, 
ensuring that schools are in 
compliance as quickly as 
needed. 
 

 The sponsor’s updates may 
include directing schools to 
another credible source for 
this information (e.g., OAPCS, 
OCQE). 

 
 

 

Score: 4 
 

 
Comments:   The Summit County ESC updates its school on legislative changes monthly during board 
meetings. If urgent legal changes occur between meetings, a plan for communication is in place. The ESC 
stays up to date on legal issues by partnering with OAPCS and ODE. 
 
 
35. How do you make your sponsored schools aware of professional development opportunities?  

 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 The sponsor never provides 

information about PD 
opportunities for its schools. 

 
 

 The sponsor sporadically 
provides information about 
PD opportunities for its 
schools. 

 
Or 
 

 Is prescriptive or mandating 
that its schools participate in 
certain PD, excepting a topic- 
specific training that is a 
requirement of the contract. 
 

 The sponsor shares information 
about PD opportunities for its 
schools, which may or may not 
be community school specific. 
 

 The sponsor may provide PD 
directly on certain topics (e.g., 
annual meeting for updates) 

 

 While the sponsor shares 
information about PD 
opportunities, it is the school’s 
independent decision as to 

 The sponsor provides its 
schools with multiple sources 
of information about PD 
opportunities for its schools. 
 

Or 
 

 The sponsor provides at least 
some of the PD directly to its 
schools, based upon school 
need. 
 

 While the sponsor encourages 

Score:  Not Scored 
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whether or not it participates, 
excepting a topic specific 
training that is a requirement of 
the contract. 
 

and promotes high quality PD, 
it is the school’s independent 
decision as to whether or not 
it participates, excepting a 
topic specific training that is a 
requirement of the contract. 

 
 

 

Score: 3 
 

 
 

Comments:  The sponsor makes sure the school is aware of its website, which includes a detailed calendar 
of events that list all of the professional development activities available each day.  The website also 
includes links to external resources, such as the Ohio Department of Education and the Summit Education 
Initiative, which also have professional development opportunities listed.   
 
 
36. Identify those within your organization who serve as the liaisons to the governing authority.  Describe 

how your organization ensures that the roles and responsibilities of the liaisons and governing authority 
remain separate. 
 

Poor Limited Average Strong 
 Beyond what is stated in the 

community school contract, 
the sponsor has no written 
policy and no explanation that 
differentiates its roles and 
responsibilities from those of 
the community school’s 
governing authority.  In the 
absence of clarity, both parties 
frequently have 
misunderstandings and their 
mutual respect is low. 
 

 The sponsor rarely works to 
maintain a solid relationship 
with their assigned schools’ 
governing authority members 
(e.g., rare communication; no 
attendance at board 
meetings).  

 

 The sponsor provides little 
guidance to its governing 
authorities. 

 
 

 While not documented beyond 
what is stated in the 
community school contract, 
the sponsor is able to explain 
in general terms how its roles 
and responsibilities differ from 
the school’s governing 
authority.  However, both 
parties may view the roles and 
responsibilities differently. 

 

 While the sponsor tries to 
maintain a solid relationship 
with their assigned schools’ 
governing authority members, 
differing opinions and 
misunderstandings between 
the sponsor and governing 
authorities occasionally leads to 
a lack of respect between both 
parties (e.g., limited 
communication, sporadically or 
not attending board meetings). 

 

 While not documented beyond 
what is stated in the 
community school contract, 
the sponsor and the school’s 
governing authority describe 
roles and responsibilities that 
are understood and respected 
by both parties.  

 

 The sponsor regularly works to 
maintain a solid relationship 
with their assigned schools’ 
governing authority members 
(e.g., regular communication, 
attending at least two board 
meetings annually for each 
school). 

 
 

 Beyond what is stated in the 
community school contract, roles 
and responsibilities of the 
sponsoring staff are clearly 
separated, documented and 
delineated from the governing 
authorities of the community 
schools it sponsors.  This clear 
delineation is understood and 
respected by both parties. 
 

 The sponsor continuously works 
to maintain a solid relationship 
with their assigned schools’ 
governing authority members 
[e.g., frequent communication 
(newsletters, for example), 
attending as many board 
meetings as possible; directly 
informing board members about 
compliance concerns, high stakes 
reviews, and so on].  

 

 

Score: 3 
 

 
Comments:  Both the sponsor and the school’s governing authority are aware of and understand their 
differing roles and responsibilities.  The sponsor indicates that its liaison to the school’s governing authority 
would only impose any type of governance if the school were in a state of corrective action. 
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Name of Organization:  Summit County ESC 
 
Reviewed by:  S. Cherry, K. King, and J. Hoffman   Date:  November 23, 2015 
 
REVIEWER SUMMARY: 
 

Section Points Awarded 
 

Maximum Points  Possible 
 

 
I:  Sponsor Commitment & Capacity 
 

9 20 

 
II:   Sponsor Application Process &    
      Decision-Making 

NA NA 

 
III:  Sponsor Performance  
      Contracting 
 

11 16 

 
IV:  School History & Performance 
 

NA NA 

 
V:  Sponsor Oversight & Evaluation 
 

15 20 

 
VI:   Sponsor Termination &  
       Renewal Decision-Making 

11 16 

 
VII:  Technical Assistance and  
       Sponsor Requirements in Rule  
       & Law 

15 16 

 
TOTAL POINTS 
 

61 88 

 
SCORE PERCENTAGE 

 

 
69.3% 

 

 
 
 
APPLICATION SCORING: 

 

Score 
Percentage 

Standard 
Minimum Points 

Needed 
(of 88) 

90% or Higher 
Highly Recommended for an interview: Is clearly aligned with NACSA 
principles for quality sponsoring.  Move forward to an interview. 

79.2 

 
75% - 89.9% 

 

Recommended for an interview: Meets standards and is aligned with 
NACSA principles for quality sponsoring.  Move forward to an 
interview. 

66 

60% - 74.9%  

Not Recommended for an interview without additional 
information:  Partially meets or fails to meet standards and is either 
slightly aligned or not aligned with NACSA principles for quality 
sponsoring.  Refer for submission of additional information.  

 
52.8 

59.9% or Less 
Fails to meet standards and is not aligned with NACSA principles for 
quality sponsoring.  Refer for development activities. 

<52.8 



John R. Kasich, Governor 
Dr. Lonny J. Rivera, Interim Superintendent of Public Instruction 

25 South Front Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
education.ohio.gov 

(877) 644-6338 
For people who are deaf or hard of hearing,  
please call Relay Ohio first at 711.  
 

 

 

 

Sent via e-mail 
 
January 20, 2016 
 
Joseph Iacano, Superintendent 
Summit County ESC 
420 Washington Ave. 
Cuyahoga Falls, OH 44221-2042 
 
Dear Mr. Iacano: 
 
As you know, House Bill 64 required Educational Service Centers (ESCs) that sponsor 
conversion community schools to enter into a sponsor agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Education (ODE) to continue sponsoring community schools (Ohio Revised Code Division 
3314.02(B)(2)).  To that end, Summit County ESC submitted a sponsorship application in late 
October.  
 
In early November, House Bill 2 was signed into law; it becomes effective on February 1, 2016.  
House Bill 2 amended the provision specifying that ESCs must have a sponsor agreement with 
ODE by adding an effective date of July 1, 2017.  In light of this new deadline, ODE is offering 
the ESC an opportunity to either accept the initial application score or to withdraw and reapply at 
a later date.  
 
ODE has reviewed your application; your application scoring rubric is enclosed.  Summit County 
ESC received 61 of a possible 88 points, for a score of 69.3%.  A minimum score of 75% is 
needed to proceed to an interview, which is a prerequisite for approval of a sponsorship 
agreement.  The ESC scored below that threshold and therefore cannot be approved for a 
sponsorship agreement at this time.  The ESC has the following options:  continue with the 
application process; withdraw and reapply later this year; or choose not to continue as a sponsor 
after June 30, 2017.   
 
As a current sponsor of conversion community schools, if you choose to continue with the 
application process, the next step is to partner with us in developing a plan toward improvement 
in your sponsorship practices. Successful completion of the milestones required in the 
development plan is likely to lead to a sponsor agreement with ODE. 
 
If you decide to withdraw and reapply later this year, the application scoring rubric is an 
excellent guide for improving practices, which may help you with the upcoming sponsor 
evaluation. Keep in mind that all sponsors will be evaluated on the three components (academic, 
compliance and quality practices) and have ratings issued in October 2016. For operating 
sponsors, portions of the sponsor application may be skipped if the sponsor has a rating of 
effective or higher on the relevant component, or on an area of the component.  In any event, all 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3314.02v2


ESCs must have an approved sponsor agreement with ODE in effect by July 1, 2017 to continue 
as sponsors. 
 
Please email us with your decision by February 1, 2016. If you have any questions, contact Stacy 
Cherry (stacy.cherry@education.ohio.gov or 614-995-1956) of the Office of Quality School 
Choice at ODE. 
 
Thank you for your patience and cooperation. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Joni Hoffman 
Director, Sponsor Evaluation 
Office of Quality School Choice 
 
Attachment 
 
cc:   Steven Gratz, Senior Executive Director, Center for Student Support and Education Options 
        Frank Stoy, Director, Sponsor Development, Office of Quality School Choice 
        Kaela King, Evaluator, Office of Quality School Choice 
        Deneice Cooper, Lead Consultant, Office of Quality School Choice 

 
 

mailto:stacy.cherry@education.ohio.gov


Application Status:   Pending 
 
Application Rationale:  Application is currently in-process with the 

Ohio Department of Education. 


	Summit County ESC
	Table of Contents
	Application Materials
	Application Cover & Section I
	Application Sections II & III
	Application Sections IV & V
	Application Sections VI & VII
	Attachment - Organizational Chart
	Additional Supporting Documents
	Evaluation
	Application Rubric
	Application Rubric Letter
	Application Status & Rationale





